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/))MISSION

To enable the organization of
outstanding content on subjects
of interest and relevance to a range
of audiences while using the best
professional practices and ensuring
long term continuity.

V- o

VISION

| Inspired by the finest cultural,
mrp-atate and creative values to
 present content which entertains
| a?nd enriches audiences.
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VALUES

Integrity & Honesty
Respect for All
’ommitment/Dedication/Ownership
. A .| ountability & Objectivity
5. Team Work
6. Discipline
7. Safety/Health & Hygiene
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CEO’S
MESSAGE

Valued Stakeholders,

As we close the financial year 2024, | take this opportunity to reflect on a year filled
with both challenges and significant achievements. This has been a year where
the resilience of HUM Network Limited (HNL) has truly shone through, and I am
pleased to share our strong performance amidst turbulent economic landscape
in Pakistan.

The past year has been marked by economic challenges due to the unstable
political and financial landscape of Pakistan. However, there is a sense of
optimism as we anticipate an economic recovery in the coming months. Despite
these challenges, HNL has proven its ability to adapt and thrive, achieving
remarkable consolidated 63.1% growth in revenues and 54% increase in net
profits. This achievement is a testament to the success of our business strategies
and the hard work of our talented team.

The world is rapidly moving towards digital platforms, and we recognize this as
both a challenge and an immense opportunity. Digital media continues to grow
at an unprecedented pace, and we are actively positioning HNL to be at the
forefront of this shift. We are focused on further expanding our digital offerings,
ensuring that we maintain a strong presence on all key social platforms, meet the
evolving needs of our audiences, all while continuously exploring new avenues for
content distribution and audience engagement.

Among our notable accomplishments this year is the remarkable performance of
our sports channel, Ten Sports. Ten Sports has been actively pursuing new
business opportunities, notably securing exclusive media rights for multitudes of
prestigious sporting events including ICC Men’s T20 tournament, the Champions
Trophy 2025 and PCB bi-lateral series. Our team has also expanded into sports
productions, underscoring our commitment to revolutionizing sports
entertainment in Pakistan.

Moreover, | am deeply proud of HNL's philanthropic contribution in actively
supporting the education of underprivileged children. Through partnerships with
local government schools, we have renovated facilities and introduced modern
academic systems, providing a brighter future for many students. These efforts
reflect our dedication to making a lasting impact on the communities we serve.

As we look ahead to the next 12 months, | am confident that HUM Network
Limited will continue to deliver outstanding results by embracing digital
transformation, enhancing our content offerings, and staying committed to our
social responsibilities.

Lastly, | would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to each and every one of you
for your unyielding support and partnership on this extraordinary journey.

Sincerely,

Mr. Duraid Qureshi
Chief Executive Officer
HUM Network Limited
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Notice Of The 20" Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 20th Annual General Meeting of HUM Network Limited will be held on Monday,
October 28,2024 at 3:00 p.m. at Ground Floor, BRR Tower, Hassan Ali Street, Off. |.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi as well
as through video conference facility to transact the following businesses: -

Ordinary Business:
1-  To confirm the minutes of the 19th Annual General Meeting held on October 19, 2023.

2- To receive, consider and adopt Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the
Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2024 together with the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and the Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended June
30, 2024.

The Annual Report of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 has been placed on the Company’s
website, which can be assessed from the below link and QR code:
http:/mwww.humnetwork.tv/Annual_Financial_Reports.html

3- To appoint Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2025 and to fix their remuneration.
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company, has proposed the name
of retiring auditors M/s. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, for their appointment as external auditors for
the year ending June 30, 2025.

Any Other Business:

4- To transact any other business with the permission of the chair.

By Order of the Board

Sd/-
Dated: October 7, 2024 Mohsin Naeem
Place: Karachi Company Secretary

Notes:
1. Notice of Book Closure:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2024 to October 28, 2024 (both days
inclusive). Transfer received in order by our Share Registrar, M/s. F.D. Registrar Services (SMC-Pvt.) Ltd. 17th Floor,
Saima Trade Tower-A, LI. Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000 at the close of business on October 21, 2024 will be
considered in time for any entitlement, as recommended by the Board of Directors and for the purpose of
attending the AGM.

2. Participation in AGM Through Electronic Means

i)  The Company has made arrangement to provide video-link facility to members who wish to participation in the
AGM through electronic means.

ii) Toattend the AGM through video-link, Members are requested to register their following particulars by sending

an email at Mohsin.naeem@hum.tv with subject ‘Video-Link Registration for HUM AGM scheduled on
October 28, 2024’, along with valid copy of CNIC (both sides) or passport as may be applicable.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Folio/ CDC Number of CNIC/ Cell/Mobile Email ID
Name of
Member (s) Account Shares Held Passport Number
Number/ Number
CDC

Participant ID

iii) The Video link and login credentials will be shared with the Members whose emails, containing all the required
particulars as mentioned, are received at the given email address before the close of business hours i.e., 05:00
p.m. on October 26, 2024.

iv) For any queries, the Members may please contact at the aforesaid email.

3. Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:

i) A member eligible to attend, speak and vote at the Meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to
attend, and vote instead of him/her.

ii) A blank instrument of proxy applicable for the meeting is being provided with the notice sent to members.
Further copies of the instrument of proxy may be obtained from the registered office of the Company during
normal office hours or can be downloaded from the Company’s website.

iii) A duly completed instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is
signed or a notarized certified copy of such power or authority must, to be valid, be deposited at the registered
office not less than 48 working day hours before the time of the meeting. Attested copies of valid CNIC or the
passport of the member and the Proxy shall be furnished with the Proxy Form.

iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution / Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall
be submitted with proxy form.

v) The owners of the physical shares and the shares registered in the name of Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Ltd. (CDC) and / or their proxies are required to produce their original Computerized National Identity
Card (CNIC) or Passport (in case of foreign nationals) for identification purpose at the time of attending the
meeting.

vi) CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No. T,
dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A. For Attending the Meeting: B. For Appointing Proxies:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder (i) In case of individuals, the account holder

or sub-account holder and/ or the person or sub-account holder and / or the
whose securities are in group account person whose securities are in group
and their registration details are account, and their registration details are
uploaded as per the Regulations, shall uploaded as per the Regulations, shall
authenticate his identity by showing his submit the proxy form as per the above
original Computerized National Identity requirements.
Card (CNIC), or original passport at the
time of attending the meeting. (i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two
persons whose names, addresses and
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on
the form.

(ii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Directors' resolution/ power of attorney
with specimen signature of the nominee
shall be produced (unless it has been
provided earlier) the time of the meeting.

(iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of
the beneficial owners and the proxy shall
be furnished with the proxy form.

(iv) The proxy shall produce his original CNIC
or original passport at the time of meet-

ing.

(v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Directors’ resolution/ power of attorney
with specimen signature shall be
submitted (unless it has been provided
earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.
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v) In case of attending meeting by proxy through electronic means i.e., video-link facility, Cell Number and Email
Id of proxy, shall be provided on the duly signed proxy form.

4. Video-Conferencing Facility for attending AGM

If members holding ten percent of the total paid up capital, are resident in any other city, the company shall provide
the facility of video-conferencing to such members for attending annual general meeting of the company, if so,
required by such members in writing to the company at least seven days (7) before the date of the meeting.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of conference facility at least 5 days before the date of
general meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

Consent for Video-Conferencing Facility

I/We of being a member of Hum
Network Limited, holder of ordinary share (s) as per Register
Folio/CDC Account No hereby opt for video conference facility at

for participation at the Annual General Meeting to be held on
October 28, 2024 or any adjournment thereof

Date:

Signature of member(s)

5. Change in Members Addresses:

Members are requested to notify any changes in their addresses immediately to the Share Registrar M/s. F.D.
Registrar Services (SMC-Pvt.) Ltd. 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, |.I. Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000.

6. Annual Report 2024 and Notice of AGM

The Annual Report 2024 along with notice of AGM is being sent to the members who have provided their email
addresses. In case of remaining shareholders, whose email addresses are not available, a printed copy of notice of
AGM containing QR enabled code and web link to access and download Annual Report 2024, is being dispatched
on their registered addresses

The Company will provide a hard copy of the Annual Report to any member, within 7 days after the receipt of
request by Company under Section 235 of the Companies Act, 2017.

7. E-Dividend Mandate (Mandatory)

Under section 242 of Companies Act, 2017(Act), every listed company is required to pay dividend if any to their
members compulsorily through electronic mode by directly crediting the same in their bank account provided by
them. In terms of SRO No. 1145(1)/2017 dated 06 November 2017, it is mandatory for shareholders to provide their
bank account details to receive their cash dividend directly into their bank accounts, failing which the company
shall be bound to withhold dividend of those members who do not provide their bank details.

All members are required to provide to the Company’s Share Registrar, particulars relating to name, folio number,
bank account number (24-digit IBAN), title of account, complete mailing address of the bank. CDC account holders
should submit their request directly to their broker (participant)/CDC. A Form is available at the Registered Office
of the Company and the same are also placed on the Company’s website.

8. Unclaimed Dividend / Shares

Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the company, which
remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date it became due and payable shall vest with the
Federal Government after compliance of procedures prescribed under the Companies Act, 2017.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




All valued members of the Company, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend/shares, if any, are requested
to contact Company’'s Share Registrar, to file their claims with Company’s Share Registrar for any unclaimed
dividend or shares outstanding in their name.

In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all
such dividend outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date due and payable shall be deposited to the
Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend and in case of shares, shall be delivered to the SECP.

9. Conversion of physical shares into book-entry form

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing company shall be required to replace its physical
shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission,
within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of the Companies Act, 2017.

The shareholders having physical shares are encouraged to convert their physical shares into book-entry form by

depositing shares into Central Depository Company Pakistan Limited by opening CDC sub-account with any
broker or investor accounts directly with CDC.

10. Deduction of Income Tax Under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

For cash dividend, the rates of deduction of income tax, under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 are as
follows:

a. Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax returns 15%

b. Rate of tax deduction for non-filer of income tax returns 30%

In case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted
on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified by the shareholder, in writing to the Company
/ Share Registrar. If no notification is received, each joint holder shall be assumed to have an equal number of
shares.

The CNIC number / NTN detail is now mandatory and is required for checking the tax status as per the Active
Taxpayers List (ATL) issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) from time to time.

1. Exemption From Deduction of Income Tax /Zakat

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate are
requested to submit a valid tax withholding exemption certificate or necessary documentary evidence for this
purpose. Members desiring non-deduction of zakat are also requested to submit a valid declaration for
non-deduction of zakat. CDC account holders are requested to submit their declaration for non-deduction of zakat
to the relevant member stock exchange or to CDC if maintaining CDC investor account.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Pattern Of Shareholding

As At June 30, 2024

Shareholding Slab

Number Of Shareholders Total Shares Held

753 1 - 100 27,897
631 101 - 500 198,234
606 501 - 1000 459,132
1357 1001 - 5000 3,456,004
446 5001 - 10000 3,431,719
253 10001 - 15000 3,086,435
19 15001 - 20000 2,190,222
13 20001 - 25000 2,660,888
82 25001 - 30000 2,328,510
28 30001 - 35000 917,391
34 35001 - 40000 1,296,921
30 40001 - 45000 1,269,603
67 45001 - 50000 3,283,132
16 50001 - 55000 849,463
29 55001 - 60000 1,721,700
6 60001 - 65000 369,475
13 65001 - 70000 890,534
8 70001 - 75000 584,014
16 75001 - 80000 1,260,873
7 80001 - 85000 581,131
8 85001 - 90000 712,393
9 90001 - 95000 845,100
35 95001 - 100000 3,485,400
7 100001 - 105000 708,229
105001 - 110000 431,500
7 110001 - 115000 789,900
19 115001 - 120000 2,255,500
4 120001 - 125000 492,100
4 125001 - 130000 512,700
4 130001 - 135000 530,340
7 135001 - 140000 966,989
6 145001 - 150000 896,000
2 150001 - 155000 306,500
1 155001 - 160000 160,000
2 160001 - 165000 330,000
2 165001 - 170000 332,300
2 170001 - 175000 345,500
2 175001 - 180000 360,000
1 180001 - 185000 180,375
1 185001 - 190000 188,000
15 195001 - 200000 3,000,000
2 200001 - 205000 402,177
205001 - 210000 210,000

L 1 210001 - 215000 214,825 J
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Number Of Shareholders

Shareholding Slab

Total Shares Held

1 215001 - 220000 220,000
1 220001 - 225000 225,000
5 225001 - 230000 1,137,200
5 235001 - 240000 1,193,200
3 240001 - 245000 728,400
5 245001 - 250000 1,247,600
1 250001 - 255000 255,000
1 265001 - 270000 266,500
1 270001 - 275000 273,000
1 285001 - 290000 290,000
3 290001 - 295000 879,600
8 295001 - 300000 2,400,000
3 300001 - 305000 903,700
2 310001 - 315000 624,400
1 315001 - 320000 320,000
1 320001 - 325000 325,000
1 325001 - 330000 330,000
2 330001 - 335000 668,600
1 335001 - 340000 340,000
1 340001 - 345000 340,200
2 345001 - 350000 698,000
3 355001 - 360000 1,080,000
1 365001 - 370000 365,753
1 380001 - 385000 380,600
1 385001 - 390000 390,000
1 390001 - 395000 394,967
6 395001 - 400000 2,397,000
1 415001 - 420000 420,000
2 425001 - 430000 856,500
2 430001 - 435000 867,000
1 435001 - 440000 440,000
1 440001 - 445000 441,548
1 445001 - 450000 446,000
1 465001 - 470000 465,500
1 470001 - 475000 475,000
1 480001 - 485000 483,500
1 485001 - 490000 486,500
2 495001 - 500000 998,500
1 505001 - 510000 508,607
1 520001 - 525000 524,560
1 550001 - 555000 551,394
1 560001 - 565000 564,223
1 565001 - 570000 566,000
\_ 1 570001 - 575000 572,000 J
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Shareholding Slab

Number Of Shareholders Total Shares Held

1 585001 - 590000 590,000
4 595001 - 600000 2,393,375
1 600001 - 605000 604,000
1 610001 - 615000 612,000
1 625001 - 630000 629,880
1 655001 - 660000 660,000
1 670001 - 675000 72,600
1 680001 - 685000 680,100
1 730001 - 735000 731,250
3 745001 - 750000 2,247,500
1 750001 - 755000 750,500
1 765001 - 770000 770,000
1 800001 - 805000 800,400
1 825001 - 830000 828,500
1 830001 - 835000 830,500
1 835001 - 840000 840,000
1 850001 - 855000 852,000
1 855001 - 860000 856,000
1 890001 - 895000 893,200
1 895001 - 900000 900,000
1 935001 - 940000 936,375
4 995001 - 1000000 4,000,000
1 1005001 - 1010000 1,010,000
1 1045001 - 1050000 1,049,000
1 1075001 - 1080000 1,080,000
1 1095001 - 1100000 1,100,000
1 1120001 - 1125000 1120,254
1 1140001 - 1145000 1,143,277
1 1180001 - 1185000 1,182,400
1 1220001 - 1225000 1,220,472
2 1495001 - 1500000 3,000,000
1 1610001 - 1615000 1,613,200
1 1745001 - 1750000 1,750,000
1 1805001 - 1810000 1,806,000
1 1915001 - 1920000 1,920,000
1 1980001 - 1985000 1,984,500
1 2055001 - 2060000 2,059,800
1 2085001 - 2090000 2,087,503
1 2210001 - 2215000 2,215,000
1 2395001 - 2400000 2,397,000
1 2515001 - 2520000 2,520,000
1 3335001 - 3340000 3,336,000
1 3380001 - 3385000 3,383,937
\_ 1 3455001 - 3460000 3,460,000 J
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Number Of Shareholders

Shareholding Slab

Total Shares Held

\_ 4916

1 3585001 3590000 3,587,754
1 3600001 3605000 3,601,800
1 4445001 4450000 4,448,500
1 6365001 6370000 6,367,200
1 6545001 6550000 6,550,000
1 8810001 8815000 8,810,772
1 9440001 9445000 9,443,500
1 12430001 12435000 12,430,400
1 13720001 13725000 13,723,000
1 13925001 13930000 13,926,000
1 14775001 14780000 14,780,000
1 17125001 17130000 17,129,715
1 20575001 20580000 20,575,820
1 23155001 23160000 23,160,000
1 29060001 29065000 9,063,000
1 38360001 38365000 38,363,400
1 55500001 55505000 55,501,826
1 58515001 58520000 58,518,744
1 112995001 113000000 113,000,000
1 243095001 243100000 243,096,000
1 294545001 294550000 294,546,388

1,134,000,000
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Additional Information
As of June 30, 2024

Shareholders' Category Shareholders | Shares Held | Percentage
Directors, heir Spouse(s) and Minor Children

Duraid Qureshi 3 537,642,400 4741
Sultana Siddiqui 2 20,575,832 1.81
Mazhar Ul Haq Siddiqui 1 12 0.00
Mehtab Akbar Rashdi 1 12 0.00
Asif Yasin Malik 1 12 0.00
Mrs. Khush Bakht Shujaat 1 12 0.00
Sohail Ansar 1 1,200 0.00
Shunaid Qureshi 2 61,038,744 5.38
Muhammad Ayub 1 12,000 0.00
Associated Companies, Undertakings and related parties - - -
Executives - - -
Public Sector Companies and Corporations - - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking

Finance Companies, Insurance, Takaful,

Modaraba and Pension Funds 4 153,469,400 13.53
Mutual Funds 6 41,642,235 367
General Public

a. Local 4826 203,787564 1797
b. Foreign 7 229,754 0.02
Foreign Companies 2 1,188,400 0.0
Others 58 M4,412,423 10.09
Totals 4916 1,134,000,000 100.00
Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest Share Held Percentage
Mr. Duraid Qureshi 537,642,400 4741
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Corporate Calendar

MEETINGS DATE

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee Meeting to consider and
discuss employees and remuneration matters for the financial year 2023-24 Sept 25,2023

Audit Committee Meeting to consider and approve the annual audited

accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 Sept 25, 2023
Board of Directors Meeting to consider the annual audited accounts of the

Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 Sept 25,2023
19th Annual General Meeting to consider accounts of the Company for the year

ended June 30, 2023 Oct 19, 2023
Corporate Briefing session for the year 2023 Oct 19, 2023

Audit Committee Meeting to consider accounts of the Company for the
Quarter ended September 30, 2023 Oct 27,2023

Board of Directors Meeting to consider accounts of the Company for the
Quarter ended September 30, 2023 Oct 27,2023

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee Meeting to consider and
discuss employees and remuneration matters Feb 29,2024

Audit Committee Meeting to consider accounts of the Company for the
half year ended December 31, 2023 Feb 29, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting to consider accounts of the Company for the
half year ended December 31, 2023 Feb 29, 2024

Audit Committee Meeting to consider accounts of the Company for the
Quarter ended March 31,2024 April 29, 2024

Board of Directors Meeting to consider accounts of the Company for the
Quarter ended March 31, 2024 April 29, 2024

Gender Pay Gap Statement Under
Circular 10 Of 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended June 30, 2024

i Mean Gender Pay Gap =11.36%
ii. Median Gender Pay Gap =12.32%

Duraid Qureshi
Chief Executive Officer
September 30, 2024
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Six Years At A Glance

Key Financial Data

OPERATING DATA

2019

Revenue-Net 3,979,099,138
Cost of production (3,495,240,840)
Transmission Cost (193,223,194)
Gross profit 290,635,098
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
(Loss)/Profit before taxation (454,725,557)
Taxation (81,157,530)
Profit after taxation (535,883,093)
Financial Ratios

2019
Current Ratios 225
Quick ratio 2.24
Debt/ Equity Ratio 0.53
Cash Available per share- Rs. 0.13
Return on equity - % (16.97)
Share Price per share - Rs. 317
Break-up value per share - Rs. 2.78
Gross Profit / (Loss) to Sales - % 7.30
Cost of Production To Sales- % 87.84
Administrative Expenses to Sales - % 2.54
Net profit / (Loss) to Sales - % (13.47)
Interest Cover - number of times (2.27)
Debtors Turnover (number of days) 161
Price earning ratio 6.71)
Turn Over to Total Asset Ratio 0.7
Earnings/(Loss) per share (0.47)

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

2020

3,679,468,088
(2,756,142,547)
(139,069,102)

784,256,439

(136,120,065)
22,881,574

(113,238,491)

2020
2.85
2.83
0.44
012
(3.71)
12.55
2.69
21.31
74.91
12.91
(3.08)
0.43
173

(125.68)

0.77

(0.10)

2021

4,327,326,066
(2,766,997,559)
(90,436,188)

1,469,892,319

107,143,492
(92,746,807)

1,014,396,685

2021
3.40
3.38
0.18
0.31
2496
8.02
3.58
3397
63.94
11.80
23.44
12.03
155
8.97
0.82

0.89

2022

2023

2024

6,018,969,888 6,825,586,346 8,307,666,130

(3,454,551,987)
(100,165,940)

2,464,251961

1,514,839,878
(150,934,865)

1,363,905,013

2022
3
310
0.09
0.74
26.76
712
4.49
40.94
57.39
9.70
22.66
21.65
127
5.92
0.91

120

(3,540,102,628) (4,004,008,656)

(126,696,002)

3,158,787,716

2,439,316,835
(290,578,261)

2,149,238,574

2023
6.43
6.41
0.02
0.39
29.66
5.84
6.39
46.28
51.87
1297
31.49
53.97
132
3.08
0.84

190

(121,164,257)

4,182,493,217

2,927,073,108
(316,481,351)

2,610,591,757

2024
836
833
0.02
0.66

26.49

10.26

8.69
50.34
4820

1.92

3142

8313

127

4.46

0.77

2.30




Graphical Presentation

Analysis of Statement of Financial Position and Profit & Loss Account

Assets
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Break-up of Revenue Streams

0,
SA\ 8%
26%
° 23%
1% /
1.92%/
3% 65%
3% 64%

W Advertisement revenue - net W Advertisement revenue - net
M Production revenue - net B Production revenue - net

= Digital revenue - net = Digital revenue - net

[ Subscription income - net M Subscription income - net

M Film distribution revenue - net
H Other Income
M Other Income

Cost and expense break-up

1% 5% 0% .. 5%

2023

8%

2%‘

67%

H Cost of production M Cost of production

M Transmission cost H Transmission cost

1 Distribution costs m Distribution costs

= Administrative expenses = Administrative expenses
B Other expenses B Other expenses

M Finance costs M Finance costs

[ Taxation 1 Taxation

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Net Revenue
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Building a better
working world

Independent Auditor’s Review Report
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of HUM Network Limited (the
Company) for the year ended 30 June 2024 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the
Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required
to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommmendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2024.

2 B0 U,

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi

Date: October 07, 2024

UDIN Number: CR202410191G3YNdXZ8Q

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




Statement Of Compliance With The Listed
Companies (Code Of Corporate Governence)
Regulations, 2019 (“The Regulations”)

HUM Network Limited (“the Company”)

for the year ended June 30, 2024

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total of number of directors are 09 as per the following:

Female

Three (3)

2. The composition of the board is as follows (also refer note 19):

Category

Independent directors

Name

Mr. Sohail Ansar
Mr. Muhammad Ayub Younus Adhi

Non-executive directors

Mr. Mazhar ul Haqg Siddiqui
Mr. Shunaid Qureshi

Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi
Lt. Gen.(R) Asif Yasin Malik

Ms. Khush Bakht Shujat

Executive directors

Ms. Sultana Siddiqui
Mr. Duraid Qureshi

Female directors

N

Ms. Sultana Siddiqui
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi

Ms. Khush Bakht Shujat /

3. Thedirectors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,

including this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
Board/Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and these

Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. The Board has complied with the
requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of Board;

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and the Regulations;

9. The Company is compliant with the requirements of Directors’ Training Program provided in these
Regulations. All the Directors except one have either attended the required training in prior years or stand
exempted, as per criteria mentioned in the Code;

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with

requirements of the Regulations;

1. Chieffinancial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a. Audit Committee b. Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Sohail Ansar — Chairman (Independent) Mr. Sohail Ansar — Chairman (Independent)
Mr. Shunaid Qureshi (Non-Executive) Ms. Sultana Siddiqui (Executive)
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi (Non-Executive) Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi (Non-Executive)

Lt. Gen. (R) Asif Yasin Malik (Non-Executive)

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of the meetings of the committees were as follows:

a. Audit Committee — four [4] meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2024.
b. Human Resource and Remuneration Committee — two [2] meetings during the financial year ended June
30, 2024.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function with the support of an outsourced internal audit
function to M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative
(spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer,
head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors

have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; and

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations including 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

19. The term of Board expired on August 22, 2020 and fresh election was scheduled for August 2020. Since the
number of eligible candidates were equal to the number of directors fixed for election, the Company made the

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




announcement on August 13, 2020 under section 159(4) of the Companies Act, 2017. The aforesaid election of
directors was questioned by the ineligible candidates. Consequently, the elected directors also filed a counter
suit. The Honorable Sindh High Court through Order dated: 21.08.2020 has directed the Company that the
elections scheduled to be held on August 22, 2020 would be postponed and rescheduled subject to the fina |
decision by the learned single Judge of CMA No. 6787 of 2020 in Suit No. 968/2020. Hence, the same Board

continues to operate till date.

~

P

DURAID QURESHI Date: October 04, 2024 MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Place: Karachi Chairman & Director

Chief Executive

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




HUM NETWORK LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'’S
REVIEW REPORT

| am pleased to present the annual review as the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of HUM Network Limited for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Amidst a challenging economic environment characterized by high inflation and
political instability, the Company remains steadfast in its pursuit of sustainable
growth. By strategically implementing cost optimization measures and
embracing new digital media age, the Company has demonstrated resilience
and achieved positive financial performmance. The management's unwavering
confidence in Pakistan's economic recovery and its commitment to industry
leadership are key drivers of the Company's continued success.

The Board of directors comprise of a rich mix of experience and expertise in the
field of entertainment industry, finance and compliance. BOD members are well
aware of their responsibilities while ensuring adequate policies and measures are
in place which are in line with the vision of HNL.

Furthermore, the BOD has ensured that the financial disclosures are accurate
and truly represent the affairs of the company. This accountability is enforced by
the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS), Companies Act, 2017,
Listing Regulations and others relevant laws and regulations. We have designed
our corporate governance structure to ensure maximum compliance with legal
and regulatory framework and meeting the information needs of our
stakeholders. The Board has fulfilled all of their mandatory responsibilities
including providing strategic direction to the management and ensuring
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements by the management of
the Company.

The Board is constituted of Audit Committee and Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee. These committees provided valuable input and
assistance to the Board. The Audit Committee particularly focused on detailed
review of financial statements and effectiveness of internal controls. Further, an
annual evaluation of the Board of Director’s overall performance is conducted to
ensure compliance with the requirement of the Code of Corporate Governance
and the Companies Act, 2017. On the basis of the feedback received through this
mechanism overall role of the Board has been found to be effective.

I would like to appreciate and thank my fellow board members, shareholders, all
our employees, lenders and loyal viewers for their continued efforts and support.

Mr. Mazhar-ul-Haq Siddiqui
Chairman of the Board
Date: September 30, 2024
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Hum Network Limited (HNL) are pleased to present the Annual Report together with the
Company’s audited financial statement for the year ended 30 June 2024.

Financial Performance

The financial performance of your Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 is summarized below:

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
Particulars Unconsolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements
2024 2023 2024 2023

Revenue from 8,307,666,130 6,825,586,346 12,348,461,990 7,567,863,940
operations

Other income 410,619,105 629,191,219 379,185,966 488,815,703
Total Income 8,718,285,235 7,454,777,565 12,727,647,956 8,056,679,643
Total expenses (5,791,212,127) (5,014,960,730) (9,389,165,093) (5,842,197,693)
Profit before tax 2,927,073,108 2,439,816,835 3,338,482,863 2,214,481,950
Taxation (316,481,351) (290,578,261) (388,436,138) (296,715,144)
Profit after tax 2,610,591,757 2,149,238,574 2,950,046,725 1,917,766,806
EPS 2.30 1.90 2.60 172

HUM Network Limited maintains its reputation for being one of the fastest growing Companies in Pakistan. With
an impressive 22% growth in revenues and a 21.5% increase in net profits as compared to last year, we are reaping
the rewards of our long-term vision and relentless pursuit of excellence.

Our strategic investments across all business segments, particularly towards digital media, and sports
entertainment have strengthened our foundation and fueled this expansion. We remain committed on this
accelerated path of growth by leveraging innovative opportunities and maintaining a forward-thinking approach
to market dynamics, ensuring we capitalize on both current and future prospects.

Principal Activities

As a pioneer in Pakistan's media landscape, HNL has been captivating audiences for two decades with our diverse
and engaging content. Our flagship brands, HUM TV and HUM NEWS have become synonymous with quality
content, touching the lives of millions. Together with the addition of Ten Sports, our portfolio of HUM TV, HUM
News, HUM Sitaray, and HUM Masala, along with our international channels, represents our focus to bring all
segments of entertainment including sports under one roof.

Beyond our stellar satellite channels, HNL's commitment to excellence extends to our dynamic business divisions,
encompassing Films and Digital Media to create a comprehensive and engaging media experience.

Operational Performance

Guided by strategic decisions of the Board, we have achieved substantial growth across multiple dimensions, marked by
a significant rise in operational revenues, viewership, and Television Rating Points (TRPs).

Hum TV

HUM TV is a leading entertainment channel in Pakistan, amassing a substantial following not only domestically but
also among the worldwide South Asian community. HNL is dedicated to providing diverse content that resonates
with our viewers' varied interests across various regions, while also enriching the media entertainment scene
through its latest programming offerings.

Our storytelling deeply resonated with audiences, drawing them into captivating narratives that explore the daily
struggles of ordinary people, while also delving into significant societal issues, including the complex dynamics of
politics and love. By shedding light on these themes, we continue to engage and inspire, creating content that is
both thought-provoking and relatable to our viewers.

This year we continued to offer viewers with the best of Pakistani dramas. Amongst the most notables, “Fairy Tales
- season 2", "Ishg Murshid", “Jafaa”, “Rah-e-Junoon” and urdu-dubbed rendition of Turkish drama “Sultan
Salahuddin Ayyubi” along with Ramzan special series “Very filmy” were all highly appreciated by the audiences due
to their unique and engaging storyline with awe-inspiring performances.
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Hum News

HUM News in these polarized times has maintained its news reporting as an independent and fact-based news
channel. The channel is not only striving to give hope to our society but also revamping the Pakistan news industry
by objective reporting methods.

We commend our team at HUM News for their exemplary coverage of the recent election, delivering timely and
accurate reporting of polling numbers to the nation. Their commitment to transparency and precision ensured
that viewers were kept fully informed throughout the electoral process.

Our seasoned journalists bring a wealth of experience and expertise to the screen, offering viewers a fresh
perspective on current events and in-depth analysis of pressing issues.

Hum Sitaray

The channelis positioned as a hybrid channel offering both narrative as well as format-based entertainment shows.
The content mix consists of Dramas, Soap operas, fashion lifestyle shows, Celebrity talk shows and international
contents.

Hum Masala

This year marks the 17th anniversary of HUM Masala, a celebration of the collaborative efforts of chefs, staff, and
loyal viewers, solidifying its place as the most beloved 24-hour culinary channel in countless households. Over the
past year, the channel introduced new cooking and informative shows, along with fresh recipes, professional chefs,
and health consultants, making it a favorite among millions worldwide.

The annual Masala Family Festivals in Lahore and Karachi added to the excitement, featuring live cooking
demonstrations, musical performances, dance and singing competitions, and opportunities for fans to meet
celebrity chefs. The 17th anniversary celebrations were further enriched by the presence of renowned personalities
alongside the talented chefs, making it a memorable milestone for HUM Masala.

Ten Sports

Ten Sports is the latest inclusion in the HUM Network portfolio, offering a wide range of sporting events catering to
a broad spectrum of sports enthusiasts.

In its very first year under our acquisition, Ten Sports has set a new benchmark for excellence by securing the
coveted broadcasting rights to one of the world’'s most prestigious sporting events, the ICC Men's T20 tournament
along with Champions Trophy 2025 to be held in Pakistan. This monumental achievement, alongside the
broadcasting rights to several other major cricketing events including Asia Cup 2023, underscores our
commitment to delivering unparalleled sports coverage to our audience. Traditionally, during the year Ten Sports
has also ventured into sports productions. This is just the beginning of our journey to revolutionize sports
entertainment.

Digital Media Division

The HUM Network's Digital Media division has diligently upheld our formidable presence across all key social media
platforms including Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, and Youtube, a testament to the company's highly targeted and
effective Social Media Strategy.

To further expand our digital reach in MENA region, we have re-launched the hit Urdu drama 'Parizaad' in Arabic
dub on HUM Arabia for our Arabic-speaking audience. This initiative aims to bridge cultural gaps and strengthen
our connection with viewers in the region.

Direct sales (local web advertisers) have been another business avenue that has continued to grow significantly
this year as we have open opportunities for digital sponsorship.

Hum Films

In the vibrant world of HUM Films, where the magic of storytelling unfolds on the grand canvas of the silver screen,
our primary mission is to whisk you away into a captivating realm of narratives.

During the year HUM Films showcased multiple blockbusters, including Eid release "Daghabaaz Dil" an
unexpected love story with comedic trails whereas "Nayab," an inspiring story of following dreams.
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Through our films, we aim to inspire, entertain, and challenge audiences, inviting them to embark on unforgettable
cinematic journeys.

Bridal Couture Week (BCW)

In December 2023, the highly anticipated 21st edition of Bridal Couture Week (BCW) illuminated Lahore with a
display of the newest bridal fashions and trends from renowned designers. Over the years, BCW has evolved into
Pakistan's most prestigious fashion affair, captivating the attention of the country's leading bridal wear designers,
as well as celebrities from the film and television industries.

Hum Style Awards

During the month of May 2024, Hum Style Awards 2024 took center stage at Expo Center, Karachi, honoring the
efforts of stylists and fashion icons in the field of media and the fashion industry. The ceremony left the audience
in awe with masterclass production, high-quality visuals and dazzling performances.

Hum Women Leaders Awards

In February 2024, the Jinnah Convention Center in Islamabad proudly hosted the fifth Hum Women Leaders
Awards. This esteemed event celebrated the remarkable achievements of women leaders who have made
significant contributions across various fields, including diplomacy, social work, education, healthcare, human
rights, journalism, and women's rights.

The ceremony was graced by the presence of President Dr. Arif Alvi, along with distinguished guests and notable

figures from Pakistan's entertainment industry, highlighting the importance of recognizing and honoring the
impactful work of these extraordinary women.

Human Resource Management

The Network views its human resource as the most valuable asset and pays special attention towards developing
an atmosphere which fosters growth, high performance, adherence to organizational values and business ethics.

Core Values

HUM Network Limited is continuously striving to provide an enabling corporate and social work environment to its
employees as this helps them to work in complete harmony in a healthy and professional way.

For this very purpose the HUM Network Family has developed the following core values.

Integrity & Honesty

1.

2. Respect for All

3. Commitment/Dedication/ Ownership
4. Accountability & Objectivity

5. Team Work

6. Discipline

7.

Safety/Health & Hygiene

We adhere to the above core values in all the initiatives that we undertake as this helps in promoting a culture of
fairness, objectivity and teamwork.

The External Environment

Our company thrives within a dynamic and fiercely competitive landscape, where innovation, constant change,
and the allocation of resources vary significantly among players in each business segment.

The landscape of the advertising industry is constantly evolving, presenting greater challenges as advertisers seek
ever more innovative means to enhance their return on investment. Under current environment of financial pinch,
the majority of multinational companies have diligently streamlined their advertising budgets. However, our
network is uniquely poised to not only navigate this intensifying competitive arena

Risk Management
Our company boasts a reliable Risk Management framework designed not only to identify and assess potential

risks but also to recognize advancement opportunities. This comprehensive system is meticulously crafted to
enhance transparency, safeguard our business objectives, and fortify our competitive edge.
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In the ever-evolving landscape of our industry, we recognize the significance of addressing not only internal but
also external and regulatory risks. Our risk framework plays a pivotal role in quantifying our exposure and potential
impact at a company-wide level. This approach ensures that we are well-prepared to navigate the challenges and
capitalize on the opportunities that come our way.

Industry Risk

Entertainment industry is highly competitive with ever changing audience demands and trends creating an
environment of stiff competition with domestic as well as international players all competing for the audience
time.

With increasing availability of affordable internet plans, smart phones and laptops, digital media sector has
ballooned to new heights piquing the interest of many new entrants in the industry along with ever increasing
migration of media sponsors to digital media from television. In response to rapid growth in digital sphere, the
Company has developed a digital media strategy to make most of this opportunity.

External Risk

The advertisement revenues of the media industry are inextricably linked to the economic growth of the
country. Poor macro-economic environment can adversely impact the advertising revenues of the Company,
which is the largest component of our revenues.

Higher inflation rates coupled with record high monetary rates have severely increased the cost of doing
business. Further our country has a regular running Current Account Deficit (CAD) which heavily impacts
PAK-USD currency disparity and fluctuation. Any further disturbance in any of these factors will have a massive
impact on our declining economy, thus affecting our revenues and expenses.

Regulatory Risk
Any changes in law and regulations could have a material impact on the revenues and cost of doing business
for the Company.

Cash Flow and Liquidity

The Company is constantly monitoring the cash flows to ensure overall liquidity. The Company was able to manage
its operating cash flows by ensuring tight credit controls and reduced indirect costs over the course of the year. The
Company also managed to reap interest and foreign exchange rates gains taking advantage of hedging
opportunities.

ESG Stanards and Corporate Social Responsibility

The board is committed to our Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) and integration of sound ESG practices in
Company's day-to-day business activities.

We believe that sustainable business practices are essential for creating long-term value for our stakeholders. Our
environmental efforts focus on optimizing resource usage and managing waste responsibly. Socially, we prioritize
employee welfare, diversity, and community engagements. Our governance framework is designed to ensure
transparency, accountability, and ethical business conduct.

As part of our Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) efforts, HUM Network has committed a generous portion of
each year's annual net profits for the education of underprivileged children. The donations made are being utilized
to support various schools in Karachi, adopted by Momina & Duraid Foundations to provide quality education to
underprivileged children.

This is a long-term project, with renovations and academic improvements being implemented in phases. During
the first phase of this project, the government schools under DMC Central have been adopted through a
public-private partnership initiative. These schools, previously in a state of severe disrepair due to a lack of funding
and attention, were missing essential facilities such as toilets, had damaged sewer systems, leaking roofs, no
drainage, peeling paint, inadequate furniture, and outdated teaching methods.

Comprehensive renovations have been initiated to address these issues including upgrading the infrastructure,
providing basic facilities, and introducing a modern academic system. To ensure quality education, qualified
private teachers have been employed along with offering training in modern teaching methods to existing staff,
bringing them to same competitive level as private schools.

So far, we have successfully renovated three schools, with the new academic system fully operational. Several more
schools are slated for completion by the start of the next academic session, with work already underway.

As a part of our annual CSR activity, HNL collaborated with Fatimid Foundation and conducted a blood donation
drive. It proved to be a great success and HUM family members participated actively in the event.
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Gender Diversity and Equality

HUM Network Limited is committed to fostering a culture of gender diversity and equality. We believe that a
diverse workforce is essential for driving innovation, creativity, and overall success. By providing equal opportunities
and creating an inclusive environment, we aim to empower all employees and position our company for long-term
growth in today's competitive global marketplace. The current board, which includes three female members,
exemplifies our company's commitment to gender diversity and inclusivity.

Employee Training & Development

As part of our annual appraisal exercise, each employee is assessed and counseled on individual basis. Training
sessions are arranged on the basis of needs identified which creates growth opportunities for employees and
provide us with highly motivated and trained resource.

Corporate Briefing Session

HUM Network Limited successfully held its Corporate Briefing Session (CBS) for the fiscal year 2022-2023 on
October 19, 2023. The session aimed to provide stakeholders with detailed insights into our company's performance
and strategic direction. The Company's CEO together with CFO led the presentation, offering deeper insight to our
financial results, key accomplishments, and future objectives. This event provided an important platform for
two-way dialogue fostering strong investor relations.

Future Prospects & Challenges

Despite a challenging economic landscape characterized by subdued activity, tight policies, and persistent
inflation, Pakistan is showing signs of stabilization and gradual recovery. While the country faces ongoing risks,
including debt payments and potential currency volatility, the government's efforts to secure IMF support and ease
economic restrictions are positive indicators for future growth.

In response to current market conditions, our company has implemented a comprehensive strategy to enhance
financial stability and growth. This includes diversifying revenue streams, optimizing operational costs, and
aggressively pursuing new sales opportunities. The successful acquisition of Ten sports has significantly expanded
our market reach and contributed to our overall performance.

Ten Sports being a leading sports broadcasting channel, continues to capitalize on key business opportunities by
securing major broadcasting and media rights. These include a 2-year coverage contract for ICC events and
Champions Trophy 2025, a 2.5-year media rights deal with the Pakistan Cricket Board (PCB) for bi-lateral home
series, a 7-year agreement for cricket Australia's television media rights, and a 3 years television media rights deal
with Cricket Ireland. These will create significant impact on the bottom-line figures of the network. Further, the
entity is keen on expanding its reach to other sports related prospects.

Our entertainment industry is undergoing a profound transformation driven by digital media and OTT streaming.
We believe that embracing these emerging technologies is essential for future success. Our strategic focus on
leveraging the potential of digital platforms aligns with the evolving demands of audiences and industry trends.

HUM Network's legacy as a leading entertainment provider is built on a foundation of excellence and innovation.
We remain committed to delivering exceptional content that exceeds the expectations of our viewers and
stakeholders. Our strong brand portfolio and continuous development of new content positions us for sustainable
growth and increased profitability in the years to come.

Credit Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) maintained the long-term and short-term entity ratings of
Hum Network Limited at "A+" and "Al", respectively. These ratings denote a low expectation of credit risk and the
network’s established market position.

Board Composition & Pemuneration

Composition of the Board and the names of members of Board Committees may be referred to Statement of
Compliance with CCG.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of its

directors in accordance with Companies Act 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations 2019.
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Pattern of Shareholding
Pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2024 is annexed with the annual report.
Meeting of the Directors

During the year, four [4] Board of Directors, four [4] Audit Committee and two [2] Human Resource & Remuneration
(HR & R) Committee meetings were held.

Attendance by each Director was as follows:

Name of Director Board of Directors | Audit Committee |Human Resource and
Attendance Attendance Remuneration
Mr. Mazhar-ul-Haq Siddiqui 4 - -
Ms. Sultana Siddiqui 3 - 2
Mr. Sohail Ansar 4 4 2
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Rashdi 2 2 1
Mr. Shunaid Qureshi 2 1 -
Ms. Khush Bakht Shujat 3 - -
Lt. Gen. (R) Asif Yasin Malik 3 3 -
Mr. Duraid Qureshi 3 - 2
Muhammad Ayub Younus Adhi 4 - -

Auditors

The present auditors Messer EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants shall retire and may be considered for
re-appointment for the year 2024-25.

Corporate Governance And Financial Reporting Framework

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, present fairly its state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

All transactions with related parties arising in the normal course of business are carried out at an arm'’s length
with normal commercial terms and condition, as per HNL's related party policy. The Company has not made
related party transaction other than those disclosed in the financial statements.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments.

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
financial statements.

Key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed.

The value of investments of Provident Fund operated by the Company as at June 30, 2024 (Unaudited) is Rs.
481,750,118 [June 30, 2023 - (Audited): Rs. 408,052,190].

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
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There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the
listing regulations.

There has been no departure from the best practices of transfer pricing.

Outstanding taxes and levies are given in the Notes to the Financial Statement.

Trading of shares by the Chief Executive Officer, Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, their
spouse and minor children:

Acquisition Transfer

Number of shares

CEO - -
Director — Ms. Sultana Siddique 19,000,000 -
CFO & Company Secretary 12,312,000 -
Spouses & Minor Children - -

Dividend And Appropriations
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Company has not declared any cash dividend.
The Board is not proposing a final payout to the shareholders with a resolve to utilize this growth in revenue and

operations by directing the funds available with the Company to materialize Board’s plans of growth along with
achieving our vision of becoming the largest media network of Pakistan.

October 04, 2024

Karachi
e
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chief Executive Chairman & Director
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Report Of The Directors On Consolidated
Financial Statements

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to submit the Annual Consolidated Financial Statements along
with the Auditor’s Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2024.

The consolidated financial statements comprise of group companies consisting of;

Company Region Relationship Shareholding %
Skyline Publications (Private) Limited Pakistan Subsidiary 100%
HUM TV Inc. USA Subsidiary 100%
HUM Network FZ LLC Dubai Subsidiary 100%
HUM Network UK Limited United Kingdom Subsidiary 100%
HUMM Co. (Private) Limited Pakistan Subsidiary 100%
HUM Mart (Private) Limited Pakistan Subsidiary 70%
Tower Sports (Private) Limited Pakistan Subsidiary 100%
Sphere Ventures (Private) Limited Pakistan Subsidiary 100%
TS3FZ LLC Dubai Indirect Subsidiary 100%

For the financial year ended June 30, 2024 the group recorded revenue of Rs. 12,348 million (June 30, 2023: Rs. 7,568
million) and profit after tax of Rs. 2,950 million (June 30, 2023: Rs. 1,918 million). The results translate into earnings
per share of Rs. 2.60 (FY 2023 - restated: Rs. 1.72).

The Directors’ Report on HUM Network Limited for the year ended June 30, 2024 has been separately presented in

the annual report.

October 04, 2024
Karachi

~

P

DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chairman & Director
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Code of ethics & business practices

1. Introduction

11 The provisions of this Code as set forth are mandatory, and full compliance is expected under all
circumstances. The Code affirms the Company’'s commitment to uphold high moral and ethical standards
and specifies the basic norms of behavior for those who are involved in representing the Company i.e. every
director or every employee or other person(s) associated or working with the Company (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “Members or We or Us or Our”).

1.2 Failure to comply with the Code can result in consequences for both the individual and the Company. The
Company can impose appropriate discipline which may include discharge for violations of the Code.
Furthermore, conduct that violates the Code may also violate federal or provincial law and could subject both
the Company and the individual to prosecutions and legal sanctions.

1.3 All members are responsible for complying with the Code. Any director or employee who becomes aware of
a violation or possible violation of the Code must report that information immediately to his/her superior or a
senior officer of the Company or the audit commmittee of the Board of Directors. It is a violation of the Code to
discriminate or retaliate against any person for reporting such information.

2. Build Trust and Credibility

21  The success of our business is dependent on the trust and confidence we earn from our employees, directors
and shareholders. We gain credibility by adhering to our commitments, displaying honesty and integrity and
reaching Company goals solely through honorable conduct. It is easy to say what we must do, but the proof
is in our actions. Ultimately, we will be judged on what we do.

3. Compliance with the Law

31 Company's commitment to integrity begins with complying with laws, rules and regulations where we do
business. Further, each of us must have an understanding of the company policies, laws, rules and
regulations that apply to our specific roles. If we are unsure of whether a contemplated action is permitted by
law or Company policy or in case of any other ambiguity, we should seek the advice from the HR
Department/HR & R Committee/ Company's Legal Counsel/ Audit Committee as the case may be. We are
responsible for preventing violations of law and for reporting to the appropriate person(s) if we see possible
violations.

3.2 Many of the Company’s activities are subject to complex and changing laws. Ignorance of the law is not a
defense. Accordingly, Members must diligently ensure that they are aware of, and that their conduct cannot
be interpreted as being in contravention of laws governing the affairs of the Company.

4. Confidential and Proprietary Information

41 Integral to the Company’s business success is our protection of confidential company information, as well as
nonpublic information entrusted to us by employees, customers and other business partners. Confidential
and proprietary information includes such things as pricing and financial data, customer names/addresses or
nonpublic information about other companies, including current or potential supplier and vendors. We will
not disclose confidential and nonpublic information without a valid business purpose and proper
authorization.

4.2  Certain records, reports, papers, processes, plans and methods of the Company or to which the Company has
been permitted access are considered to be secret and confidential by the Company or the party who has
permitted access thereto, and employees and Directors are prohibited from revealing information
concerning such matters without proper authorization.

4.3 Directors, individuals, clients, agencies, investors and the public should have information about the Company
as is necessary for them adequately to judge the Company and its activities. The Company believes that full
and complete reporting to governmental agencies and the provision of information to the public as required
constitutes a responsible and workable approach to disclosure. However, the Company except as required by
law, will not disclose information important to its competitive effectiveness or which might violate the private
rights of individuals, enterprises or institutions. Employee and Directors are therefore prohibited from
discussing or disclosing any secret or confidential information about the Company or in the possession of the
Company unless such disclosure has been authorized by the Board of Directors and /or as required by the law.
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4.4 Allmember shall comply with Company'’s policies and procedures relating to the retention and orderly
destruction of the Company’s documents.

45 It is important that we respect the proprietary rights of others. We will not acquire or seek to acquire
improper means of a competitor's trade secrets or other proprietary or confidential information. We will not
engage in unauthorized use, copying, distribution or alteration of software or other intellectual property.

5. Use of Company Resources/Property

51 The employees and directors will always maintain in good condition Company property/resources, which may
be entrusted to them for official use during the course of employment and shall return all such property to
the Company prior to relinquishment of her/his charge, failing which the cost of the same will be recovered
by the Company.

52 Company resources, including but not limited to the materials, assets (moveable or immoveable), intellectual
property, equipment, electronic devices, telephones, fax machines, emails, WhatsApp, mobile/cell phones,
mobile sims, computers, laptops, internet connections/devices, social media accounts, digital platforms, data
and information etc. (“Company Property”) are provided for company business use only and no personal use
is permissible.

53 All employees and those who represent the Company are trusted to behave responsibly and use good
judgment to conserve company resources and properties. Head of the departments (HOD) are responsible
for the resources assigned to their departments and are empowered to resolve issues concerning their
proper use.

54 No employee shall be allowed or permitted to use Company Property in the conduct of an outside business
or in support of any religious, political or other outside daily activity, except for company-requested support
to nonprofit organizations. Company will not solicit contributions nor distribute non-work-related materials.

55 In order to protect the interests of the Company and/or other employees or associated person or
undertakings, the Company reserves the right to monitor or review all data and information contained on an
employee's company-issued computer or electronic device, the use of the Internet or Company’s intranet.
Company will not tolerate the use of Company Property or other resources to create, access, store, print, solicit
or send any materials that are harassing, threatening, abusive, sexually explicit or otherwise offensive or
inappropriate in any manner whatsoever.

6. Create a Culture of Open and Honest Communication

6.1 Atthe Company everyone should feel comfortable to speak his or her mind, particularly with respect to ethics
concerns. Head of departments have a responsibility to create an open and supportive environment where
employees feel comfortable raising such questions. We all benefit tremendously when employees exercise
their power to prevent mistakes or wrongdoing by asking the right questions at the right times.

6.2 Employeesare encouraged, in the first instance, to address such issues with their managers/superior, as most

problems can be resolved swiftly at this stage. If for any reason that is not possible or if an employee is not
comfortable raising the issue with his or her manager/HOD, HR does operate with an open-door policy.

7. Gifts and Entertainment

7.1 Members shall not on behalf of the Company, furnish directly or indirectly, expensive gifts or provide
excessive entertainment or benefits to other persons.

7.2 Members whose duties permit them to do so, may furnish modest gifts, favors and entertainment to persons
other than public officials, provided all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The gifts are not in form of cash, bonds or other negotiable securities and are of limited value so as not to be
capable of being interpreted as a bribe, payoff or other improper payment;

(b)  theyare made as a matter of general and accepted business practice and does not constitute unfair business
inducements that would violate law, regulation or policies of the Company;

(c)  they do not contravene any laws and are made in accordance with generally accepted ethical practices; and

(d) if subsequently disclosed to the public, their provision would not in any way embarrass the Company or the
recipients or reflect negatively on Company'’s reputation
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For example, reasonable expenses of the entertainment of current or prospective business associates or
customers are permissible by employees whose duties embrace the providing of such entertainment,
provided prior approval from the CEO are obtained and proper accounting is made.

7.3  Members who award contracts or who can influence the allocation of business, who create specifications
that result in the placement of business or who participate in negotiation of contracts must be particularly
careful to avoid actions that create the appearance of favoritism or that may adversely affect the Company's
reputation for impartiality and fair dealing. The prudent course is to refuse a courtesy from a vendor when
Company is involved in choosing or reconfirming a supplier or under circumstances that would create an
impression that offering courtesies is the way to obtain Company business.

8. Public Officials

81 All dealings between employees or directors of the Company and public officials should be transparent.

8.2 Even the appearance of impropriety in dealing with public officials is improper and unacceptable. Any
participation directly or indirectly, in any bribes, kickbacks, illegal gratuities indirect contributions or similar
payments is expressly forbidden, whether or not they might further the business interest of the Company.
Maintenance of a high standard of integrity is of the utmost importance to the Company.

8.3 Since the furnishing, on behalf of the Company, of even an inexpensive gift or a modest entertainment or
benefit to a public official may be open to the interpretation that it was furnished illegally to secure the use
of his/her influence as public official, no such gift, entertainment or benefit may be furnished by an employee
or director.

9. Political Contributions

91 The use of the Company’s funds, goods or services as contributions to political parties, candidates or
campaigns is specifically forbidden.

9.2 Contributions include money or anything having value, such as loans, services, entertainment, trips and the
use of the Company'’s facilities or assets.

10. Personal Gain

10.1 Directors or employees shall not use their status to obtain personal gain from those doing or seeking to do
business with the Company.

10.2 Except as hereinafter provided, employees and directors should neither seek nor accept gifts, payments,
services, fees, special valuable privileges, pleasure or vacation trips or accommodations or loans from any
persons (except, in the case of loans, from persons in the business of lending and then only on conventional
terms) or from any organization or group that does or is seeking to do business with the Company or any of
its affiliates, or from a competitor of the Company or any of its affiliates. However, employees and directors
may accept modest gifts, favors or entertainment up to the maximum limits prescribed by the Board of
Directors of the Company from time to time provided that doing so is consistent with the tests relating to the
furnishing of gifts set forth in section-7.

11. Conflicts of Interest

1.1  Members should avoid situations in which their personal interest’'s conflict or might conflict with their
responsibilities towards the Company. All such conflicts must be fully disclosed to the employee’s superior or
in the case of directors, to the audit committee of the Board of directors.

1.2 Members should seek to avoid acquiring any interest or participation in any activities that would tend to:
Deprive the Company of the time or attention required to perform their duties properly; or

Create an obligation or distraction which would affect their judgment or ability to act solely in the Company’s
best interest.

oo

1.3  All members are required to disclose in writing to their supervisors or to the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors all business, commercial or financial interests or activities where such interests or activities might
reasonably be regarded as creating an actual or potential conflict with their duties to the Company. Every
employee of the Company who is charged with executive, managerial or supervisory responsibility and every
Director is required to see that actions taken and decision made within his/her jurisdiction are free from the
influence of any interests that might reasonably be regarded as conflicting with those of the Company.
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1.4 If personal financial benefit is improperly gained by an employee or director, directly or indirectly, or through
a spouse or child or a relative sharing the same residence as the employee or director, as a result of his / her
employment or position with the Company or by the use or misuse of the Company's property or of
information that is confidential to the Company's business, then the employee or director must account to
the Company for any benefit received. Member must do more than merely act within the law. They must act
in such a manner that their conduct will bear the closest scrutiny should circumstance demand that it be
examined. Not only actual conflicts of interest but the very appearance of conflict should be avoided.

1.5 Determining whether a conflict of interest exists is not always easy to do. Member with a conflict-of-interest
question should seek advice from management. Before engaging in any activity, transaction or relationship
that might give rise to a conflict of interest, employees must seek review from their managers or the HR
department/ Company'’s Legal Counsel/Audit Committee.

12. Inside Information

121  Members shall not use for their own financial gain or disclose for the use of others, inside information
obtained as a result of their position within the Company.

122 Members may find themselves in violation of the applicable securities laws if they misuse information not
generally known to the public and either trade or induce others to trade in the stock of the Company or in the
stock of another Company. Specific confidential information would include but not limited to financial
information, information concerning acquisitions or dispositions of properties and proposed acquisition or
mergers with other companies.

12.3 Confidential, price-sensitive information may only be acted on or passed on if the transfer of information is
necessary for legitimate business reasons (“Need to Know-Principal”) or unless it is required by the law.
Anyone who has such information may not recommend or initiate transactions with respect to any securities
or other financial instruments the price of which may be affected by such information. The Company must be
informed immediately if a member has reason to believe information is being or has been shared that violates
insider trading regulations.

13. Client Information and Advice

131  Members must not seek to mislead the market or clients in any manner. When working with a client,
appropriate care shall be taken that the client receives information which is necessary for a reasonable
decision by the client. This includes information and advice given. Members shall not provide advice and/or
recommendations regarding any service in which they are not appropriately authorized.

14. Authorization and Recording of Transactions and safekeeping
of Assets

141 The Company’'s books and records must reflect, in an accurate, fair and timely manner, the transactions and
disposition of assets of the Company. Member responsible for the Company's books and records must ensure
that this occurs.

14.2 All transactions must be authorized and executed in accordance with the instructions of management and
the Board of Directors. They must be recorded so as to permit the accurate preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and other generally accepted laws
applicable to such statements and to maintain accountability for assets.

14.3 Access to assets is permitted only in accordance with the authorization of management.

14.4 The use of Company funds or assets for any unlawful or improper purpose is strictly prohibited and those
responsible for the accounting and record keeping functions are expected to be vigilant in ensuring
enforcement of this prohibition. The recorded accountability for assets will be compared with the existing
assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action will be taken with respect to any differences.

14.5 We must notimproperly influence, manipulate or mislead any authorized audit, nor interfere with any auditor
engaged to perform an internal independent audit of Company books, records, processes or internal controls.

14.6 Safeguarding the company’s assets is the responsibility of all members. Theft, carelessness, and waste have a
direct impact on the company’s profitability. Assets should be used efficiently and maintain such assets with
care and respect, while guarding against waste and abuse. Look for opportunities to improve performance
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while reducing costs. The use of company time, materials, assets, or facilities for purposes unrelated to the
company’s business, or the removal or borrowing of company property, is prohibited

15. Discrimination-Free Work Environment

151 The policy of the Company is to provide a working environment free of discrimination and harassment in
which individuals are accorded equality of employment opportunity based upon merit and ability.

15.2 Discriminatory practices based on race, sex, color, national or ethnic origin, religion, marital status, family
status, age or disability will not be tolerated. Members are entitled to freedom from sexual and all other forms
of personal harassment in the work place.

153 It is not a discriminatory practice to make a distinction between persons based on bona fide occupational
requirements. Since bona fide occupational requirements are narrowly defined, such distinctions should not
be undertaken without first obtaining express authorization.

16 Competition and Trade Practice Standards

161 The Company shall compete vigorously and creatively in its business activities, but its efforts in the
marketplace shall be conducted in a fair and ethical manner in strict compliance with applicable competition
and trade practice laws and regulations.

16.2 Under no circumstances shall any employee or Director of the Company be a party to any collusion or
concerted effort of any type involving any competitor vendor, supplier, customer or other party, which is in
restraint of trade or violation of laws and regulations designed to foster competition. Because laws relating to
competition are complex, employees and Directors should refer matters about what they are in doubt to their
superior or should seek the advice of the HR Department/ Company's Legal Counsel/ Audit Committee/
HR&R Committee as the case may be.

17  Accountability

17.2 Each of us is responsible for knowing and adhering to the values and standards set forth in the Code and for
raising questions if we are uncertain about Company policy. If we are concerned whether the standards are
being met or are aware of violations of the Code, we must contact the HR department/Legal Counsel/Audit
Committee/HR&R Committee.

172 Company takes seriously the standards set forth in the Code, and violations are cause for disciplinary action
up to and including termination of employment.

18. Standards of Conduct

18.1 Although the various matters dealt with in this Code do not cover the full spectrum of employee or Director
activities, they are indicative of the Company’s commitment to the behavior expected from employees and
Directors in all circumstances.
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_-"Annual Report 2024
Whistle-Blowing Policy

1. Purpose

To encourage employees to disclose any malpractice or misconduct of which they become aware and to provide
protection for employees who report allegations of such malpractice or misconduct. The main purpose of this
whistle blowing policy is to give all employees an opportunity to disclose matters they feel need to be reported in
the interest of fair-play and larger benefit of the organization; high standard of corporate governance; compliance
with legal requirements and protection of the Company’s interest.

2. Policy

The whistle blowing policy is designed to encourage employees to report alleged malpractice or misconduct, to
ensure that all allegations are thoroughly investigated and suitable action taken where necessary. Any
whistle-blowing employee is protected against adverse employment actions (discharge, demotion, suspension,
harassment, or other forms of discrimination) for raising allegations of business misconduct. An employee is
protected even if the allegations prove to be incorrect or unsubstantiated as long as there is no evidence of willful
misreporting. Employees who participate or assist in an investigation will also be protected.

3. Requirement of policy

This document thus sets out a formal whistle-blowing policy, consisting of safe and effective procedures for
misconduct disclosure or reporting so that appropriate remedial action can be taken. A written, formal policy is also
a means of preventing and deterring misconduct that might be contemplated but has not yet taken place. It is also
a transparent method of addressing issues relating to whistle blowing, such as answering standard questions,
giving assurances, providing information and offering explanations.

4. On what should one blow the whistle
What is reportable misconduct?

Any serious concerns you may have about any aspect of the operations of the Hum Network Limited (the
Company) and those who work in the Company can be reported under this policy. This may be a conduct that:

Is against the governing rules, procedures, and policies, or established standards of practice of the Company.
amounts to improper, unethical, or unlawful conduct;

Amounts to waste of company's resources; makes you feel uncomfortable in terms of your experience with
the standards you believe; or

Amounts to an attempt to cover up any of these types of actions. Conduct becomes reportable when it
happens or when it is reasonably likely to occur. Harm to the Company or to its integrity may occur when any
of this conduct is unchecked or unaddressed. Importantly, in determining whether to report conduct, harm
is not only measured in terms of monitory loss to the organization, or damage to a particular program or
initiative, but the harm may also be done to the integrity and reputation of the Company itself, or its survival
and/or growth.

Reportable conduct falls into the following categories:

4.1 lllegal or unlawful conduct

Conduct may be illegal or unlawful in terms of the Rules and Regulations of the Company and other applicable
laws. We all have legal responsibilities, obligations or duties. Criminal offences - such as theft, fraud, corruption (for
example, bribery), or money laundering - are in breach of legal duties and therefore constitute reportable
misconduct.

4.2 Un-procedural conduct

Conduct may be un-procedural since it violates clearly communicated procedures (in the form of policies,
regulations, or rules) governing the operations of the Specific rules and processes, together with other best
practice procedures, guide accounting practices and controls, financial reporting, auditing matters, the transfer of
funds to recipients, approved recipient accounts, and the like. Such procedures are important for good governance
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and breaching them may expose the application of funds to risk of loss or real loss.

4.3 Unethical conduct

Conduct may be unethical since it undermines universal, core ethical values, such as integrity, respect, honesty,
responsibility, accountability, fairness. For example one could exert undue pressure on a person in position of power
in order to gain an advantage. That would be unfair to others and as such unethical, although neither unlawful nor
un-procedural. But not all unethical conduct is reportable. For example, some kinds of conduct may be
disrespectful and therefore undesirable, without harming any serious interests other than personal feelings. This
would not be reportable misconduct.

4.4 \Wasteful conduct

Conduct constituting a gross waste of resources is a reportable category in its own right since responsible
stewardship of resources is as crucial to the success of the Company as all employees have an obligation to ensure
that all resources are used prudently and efficiently. If resources are spent in a wasteful manner, and in breach of
the public trust under which they are provided, and an employee knows about this then this would be reportable
under the whistle-blowing mechanism.

5. Whistle-blower protection

HNL shall take all necessary actions to safeguard the interests of the whistle-blower. Where an individual makes a
report under this policy in good faith, reasonably believed to be true, there will be no retaliation (please read detail
below) against the reporter should the disclosure turn out to be misguided. Retaliation means any direct or indirect
detrimental action recommended, threatened or taken because an individual reported conduct described in
Section 4 of this policy. When established, retaliation is by itself misconduct which may be pursued under the
appropriate mechanisms - for example, through disciplinary action initiated through mechanisms of HR Policy or
more broadly and as appropriate, through other mechanisms of the company's rules. Reporting under this policy,
however, in no way immunizes or shields a whistle-blower against action following from his or her own
misconduct, which includes willfully making allegations through the whistle-blowing mechanism that the
individual knows to be false or makes with an intent to misinform.

6. Whistle-blowing procedures

HNL encourages all its employees to act responsibly at all times and protect themselves and the company against
any illegal or immoral acts (see section 4) by immediately reporting any such actions to the Designated Person.

Designated Persons (DPs)

Company secretary, and
Head of Internal Audit

Shall be the "Designated Persons" (DPs), and all information shall be directly conveyed to the DPs by the
whistle-blower.

Access to the Designated Person

The whistle-blower shall have direct access to the Designated Persons at all times. This right of the whistle-blower
shall be upheld under all circumstances and respected by the management of the Company.

Medium of Reporting

Reports to the Designated Persons can be made by: Official email address of the Designated Persons.

Follow up Procedure

The DPs will initiate an investigation and take any consequent action as deemed appropriate and will record the
same for information of the Board of Directors, keeping at all times, the confidentiality of the Whistle Blower's
identity.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

‘Wa havws audied the annexed unconeoficdatad financial stalemente of HUM Mebaork Lmited {ibe Company), which comprize the
wnconsolidatad statement of financlal position as &t 30 Juna 2024, and the unconsofdated etatamsaat of profit or loes, unconsalidated
statemanl of comprehensivae Income, the unconsalidaled slatemant of changes n squily, the unconzalidalted stxlament of cash fows
for the year thean anded ard nofes to the unconsolidated tinancial slatemants, incledng matarial accounting policy information and
other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained a¥ the Information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowladne and Balial, were necessany lor ihe purposes of e gl

In owr opinion and to fhe bast of pur mdoemation and according io-the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated statemmen of inancial
poedion, unconsalidated slatament of profd or loss, uwnconsofdated statemen of comprahenaive meome, the unconsolidated etetamanl
of changes in equily and the unconsalidaled statemend of cash flows logether wilh 1he notes ferming pas thareof contarm with the
accounting and reparting slandards as appScable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XI5 ol
2017), in tha manner so raguirad and respactivehi give a tres and fair view of the state of the Company’s atfairs as at 30 June 2024
and ol the prafil, the othar comprehensive income, the changes in eguily and s cash flows for the year then ended,

Basis for Opinion

‘We conduciad fur sudh in accordance with Inlemational Standsrds on Audiing {(158s) a5 applicable in Pakistan, Our regponsibilities
undar those standards are further descnbed in the Audilers Rasponsibilfies for fe Audit of the Financial Staiemants secllon o our
raport. 'Wa ares independent of tha Company in accardance with the Intarnational Ethics Standards Board lor Accountants’ Coda o
Ethice for Professional Accountants as sdopted by the Instiute of Chartersd Accouniants of Pakistan fthe Code) and we have fulfiied
cur lher ethicy responsteilies in accordance with the Code. Wi bellave that the audit evidencs wa have oblaned s sathicient and
approptiate 1o prowvide a basss for our apinion,

Key Audit Matters

Kty audit matiers are those mattess that, in aur prolessicnal judgment. wane al most sigrilicance = oar audit of te lingncial stabements
of the gurrend year. Thesa matiers ware addrassed in the context of our audit of the unconscdidated firancial slatements as a whaole,
and in ferming ol oplnion thaseon, and we do not provide 3 separate opeesn on thess maters,
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Foliowing ara the Key Audit Matbars:

Key audlt matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Het realizable walue of television program costs

Az gl the yaar and, the balance of leevision prograrm costs
amountad bz Bs. 750447506 (30 June 2023; 4B3 447 278
which represents unamorized cast of complated talavizon
programs and lelavision programs in produclion,

A5 par he acoourting pollcy of the Company, television program
Giesls A changed o sspansn basad on e mio ol the meenues
sarnagd B date to tolal revenias o be sarned fom the program
ngluding future estimated revenuas, less cost expensed n
priar yaars o an indadual grogram bagsis,

Allocaton of television program costs over saveral accounting
perods involves estimation of fulure revenues by the
managamant. Wa have idarifiad fis area as key audit maties
due to the significance of the estimation and 1the amount of
nilit eflafs In relation o this area.

Rafer nofes 3.3, B and 22 to the unconsolidatad fnancial
statemeants,

Dur sy procaduras amongs! olhars, comprisad ravidwing
thi asgroprisenass al (he accounbng policy o (he Company
in gocondanca with 1he applicabée tirandal regarting standeds.
Further, we cotained understending of the revanue estimation
ard amortization process of tha Company!

I Ml regard, we selected & sample of lelavision programs

and conaldered the faclors wsed by the managemsnt for

revanie estimation and amortization of television program

cost mcluding;

. hestaric experinnce of nnaenue sarmisd by similar programs,;

. ratings ol the program from available evidences;

- ratas wsed by the Company and its Huctuabon based an
the frend analysis; and

' wa also considared eubsequant evants which may have
an impact on unamorlized oosl

Wi alsn evaivated whether adequiale dsclosunes have baen
mads in the eccompanying unconsolidated financial siatements
in accordanca wish the applicabls fimandal reporting standands.

2. Revenue recognition

Rafar node 3.12 and 21 1o the accompanying unconeoidated
financial statemerts)

The Company aams revanis from a variety of sourcas among
the ditferent busness aress of which 95% perains iz revenus
fram agverisements and subscriptions,

As reported in the explenatory notes, revendes from
Acvarisamant are recognizad ol the lime of the appearancs
of the advactisament and subscriplion income i recognized
i the month in which sarvice is rendared.

Wl concluded tha this area constitutes a key fedd matier for
the Company consldenng the significance of the amount, it
being a key parformancs inicater and also the Incregse ol
15% and 36% in advedisemen and subscripbon moome as
compared fo the prior yaar respectivaly.

Wi obtained an understanding of the Company's proceseas
in place for revenus recognitien and tested Ray controls over
AECN SERTlicang ra e SINem,

We inspecied a sampla of confracts to check that revenue
recogribion was in accordan oe with the comeact ferms and the
Company's ravemss recognition polcies

Wa parformed analylical review procedures ang other tast of
dedails ovar navanoe ingleding cut-of procadunes o check thal
revanua has been recognisad in the eppropeaie acoounting
Pt

We azsassad the adegquacy of the Company's disclosures in
accorgance wih the applizable fingncial reporting standards.
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information Cthar tham the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thareon

Managemeant 5 responsile for the ather information, The other information comgeses the information included in the Anngal Repart
bt doas not include the unconsolidated fimancial stetamanis and ouwr auditor's repor thereon

Qur apanion an the unconsodidgied linancial statermenls doas nol covear the othar infarmation and we do nof axpoess any form ol
gssuTanca conclusion tharaon.

Ir eonmection wilh our audi of ths unconsolidated Inancal statemants, our responsibigy is lo read the ather Information and, i doing
g0, consider whether tha othar iMormation ls matarially incofsisian with the uncotsolidatad inancis slalements, of our kKnowlsdgs
potained in the audt or cdhemwize aopears to be metadally mizstated, |f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
ihers s a malanal misstalement al iz afher inlormation, we are required to repon (hal lact. We Bave nothing 1o repart 7 Ehis regard.

Responsibiities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statermants

Managemant s resporsible bor ha pregaralon and faes presentation al tha wnconRsalidstad Hnancial stabemanls in aocordance with
tha accounting and reporling standerds as applicabla in Pakistan and the raquirements of Gompanées Act, 20017 (X040 of 20171 and
for such intema contred B8 manegement determinas is necassarny 1o enabla the preparstion of unconsolidated fnancia! slatameants
Ihal are res from malendal misskhbemen], whaltes doe 0 Iraud oF amod

In preparing the unconsolidated finarcial statemeants, managemant is respansisle lor assesaing the Company's ability to contines as
i going congern, disclosing, a5 applcable, matiers related 1o galng soneam and usng the going concern basis of acsounling urhless
management either inlands o liguidale the Company or o ceass operations, or has no reakistic altemate el o do so.
The Board of Directors are responsies for oversasing the Company's linancial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statemenis

D abjectives e bo oblain reasonable asgerance abaut whether fhe pncongolidated Anangial stalements as a whole are free fram
material misstaimment, whether dus 1o fraud o eror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assranca
iz a high leval of e=surance but ks not a guararies that sn ewdit condwuctad In accondance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan will sbweys
deect & material misstatement when I exdgls, Misstatemenis can arisa from fraud or eror and are considersd matenas il indhdually
of in the apgragate, thay could reasonably be axpected 1o infuence the sconoms decssions of usars fakan on the basss of thasa
urconsdidated financial statemants;

A paed of 3 audil in accordance with 1S4 as applicable in Pakistan, we exercize prolessional pedgment and masdtain professional
skapliciem throwghout the audi. We also:

Ideniily and assess the rsks of matedal missfalemend of the unconsolidaled Trancial stalemants, whether doe to fraud o
aror. design and perform audit proceduras responsive to those neks, and abtain awdit svidanca that is sufficiant and appropriate
1o provide & basia tor aur oplnion. The Ash of not detecting & meteral misstetameant resulting from frawd iz higher than for
o resdting from arror, &5 fraud may IAvalve callughan, largery, Infentionsl ormissons, masrepresantations, of the overnds
of mternal control

. Ontain an understanding of Intemal control relevant 1o the audi In order 1o design mest procedures thal are appropists m
tha circumstances, But not for the purpcse of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cormgany's imlarnal control,

Evaluate the appropriateness ol accounling policies used and the reasonableness ol accounting
estimales and ralaled dscloserss mads by managemenl

Conclde an the approprizieness of managemen!'s uss ol the going soncern Basis ol ascaunbng and, based an the audit
ovidence oblained, whither & matardial uncertainty sosts related o evants or condifions thal may casl signiflicant doulbd on
the Company's ability io continua as-8 going corcarn. H wa conclude that a matarial uncartainty aests, we are required to
draw attention R our rEiter's repa 10 the retaied dsciosures inthe unconsalldsted financs statements ar, If such dischasienas
g inadedguate, 1o modily our opinion, Our conclusions ane based on he audit evidence oblained up o S gt of our adibor's
report. Howawsr, future avanis or condifions may ceuse the Company 1o casse 1o continue &8 a going concarn,

Evirhuidi lse ovarad presentalion, staciung and contess al (ha uncostsoidiatbed linancial statormaets, including tha dischesu s,
and whathsr the unconsolidated linancial etatamants repregent the underlying ransactions and swante in a mannas that
schlgves fair presantabon

We cormmuricala wih tha Board of Directors regarding, armong ofher matters, the plannad scope and tming of the audit and signilicant
gudit findings. Including any significant deficlencies In Internel control thet we identify during our audit.
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W efzo provide the Board of Deactors with a statamand that wa have compled with relevant ethical requiremants regarding ndependence,
and b communicate with them &l reletionships and other matters thal may reasonebly ba thought 10 bear on our Independenca, and
whire applicable. ralaled saleguards

From the matters commamicated with the Board of Directors, we detesrming those matiers that were of most signiticance in the awds
of the unconsoidated fnancial statemeants of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in
our auditor's reporl unless law or reguiadion praciudes public desckosure about the malter or whan, in extremaly rare circumestances,
wa datarmine that s matter should not ba communscated in owr report becauss the edvense consaquences of doing so wowd reasonabéy
be axpected (o eutweigh the public merest banstits of such communicatlon.

Report an Other Leagal and Regulatery Requiremants

Basad on our audit, wa further repoet ad moour opinion;
aj proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2007 (XX of 2017},
b the unconsalidated Setement of Finapcia Pesition, the uncansolidated Staternent of Profit or Loss, the unconsoldated
Statement of Comprehansive Inceme, the wconsolidated Statormeat of Changes in Equily and the unconsolidated
Statemant of Cash Flows togather with the notes thereon have bean drawn up in conformity with the Companies
Aot 204 T (MK of 2097 and are in agresment with the boaks ot account and retems,

&l investments made, axpindilline mduifed and quarantises adendsd duting the pear werd tor the pufpase al the
Company's businese; and
)l o Zeshat was deductible al source under the Zakat and Ushe Ordinansce, 1830 (¥VI of 1530).

The engagemsnt partner on tha audi rasiufting In this ingependant auditor's repon is Arslan Khakid

2 B MU,

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartarad Accouniani

Placa: Karachi

hate: Octaber §7, 2024

LIDAM Mumibar; AR2034101971 d3phlEs
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

Directar

Chief Executive

66

2024 2023
Nota - RUpfis ————
ASSETS
HON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and eguipmesn 4 1,464 494 G55 1,402 053,544
intangible as=eis ] T42.503 2,365, 208
Long term investments ] 348,898,481 336,848, 481
Lang term deposits and prepayments 7 80,263,583 30,337 428
Talavision program cosis | GEB, 959,141 387 B17.618
Dedferred lax assel 4 145,021,022 131,016,868
2,717,380.255 2,302,840,052
CURRENT ASSETS
Irveenlonias 24,505,623 16,715,587
Current portlon of lelevision program costs | 81,538 365 BS 825,658
Trade debts 0 3,100,150,777 2.BEE 341,840
Sharl larrm vesinsnis 11 1,062 444,005 GEO, 143,299
Advancas 12 ZT0,208, 840 154,575,620
Trade deposits and short kerm prepayments 13 60,923 418 28,904 208
Oither recaivablas 14 Z,880,377,368 1. 742,173,897
Taxaticn - net 41,863,203 202 602 801
Cash and bank balances 15 T48,140,168] 447,795, TEE |
B278.151.7T0 5856 124,170
TOTAL AQSETH —10.99%,533,085 9,250 64,222
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AMD RESERVES
Authorsed capital
1,500,000,050 (2023 1.500,000.000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 15~ each 1,500,000,000 i IE||:||:|.l:h:r|:.=!|:||:||:|
Issued, subscribad and pad-up capital 16 1,134.000,000 1,134, 000,000
Unapgmoprated pralil 8,732 456 137 6,111,864, 380
8,856 456,137 7,245 864 380
MON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liahilitios 7 148,492 417 55,234,536
Lang term financing 18 - 31,250,000
149,492 417 Fifi 484, 536
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and olher peyables 18 Q20,247 077 A14,018 597
Conlract lkability 15,280,135 26,734,620
Aecrued mark-up 109,056 218,809
Unclaimed dividand G066, B 6,153,603
Ungaid dividend 740,472 1,374,738
Curran portion of kease liabilites 7 16,889,875 15,664,034
Currand portion of koryg term financing 16 31,250,000 2,500,000
200, 583,511 026 655,306
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 20
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10,996,532 065 8,250,004, 222
The annaxed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial slatemants
T b il /j
I:jl_":- o S i~ 3
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAD SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Revenue

Cost of produstion
Transmission cost

Gross profit
Distribution costs
Adrministrative expenges
Qthar income

Cher expensesicharges
Operating profit
Finance costs

Profil before incomae tax and levies
Levias - inal Lax
Profit before income tax

Incme tax

Profit for the year

Earnings per share = basic and diluted (Rupees)

Mote

21

22

23

24

25

26

a7

28

29

Sivdd 2023
(Riestated)
- Rupeaes
8,307 ,668.130 G.B25 5B6 346
(4,004,008,658) 3,040,102 628)
(121 164,257} {126 6O, 002)
{4.125,172,913) 3 BES TSR BA0)
4,182,493,217 3,158, 7R7 . T16
(525,217.080) (400 42T 718)
(990,120,081) (B85, 354 383)

ai

410,619,105 629,191,219
(115,060,720) {7,320,805)

2.962,714,431 2485 87594
(35.641,323) (4% 058 108)
2827073,108 2,430 816,835
(54,105,424} {37,200,204)

2,872,967 684 2402 526631
(262,375,827} (253, 288 05T
2 610,594,757 2,149, 238 574
2.30 1.90

The annesed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these unconsolbdated financial statements.

!
A
DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDI4QUI
Director

J

-

ll'll.l'l'l.ﬂl.hﬁ".lilil ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer




UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
O T e R —
Prafit for the year 2,610,591,757 2,149,238,674
Other eomprehensive Income -
Total comprehensive income for the year T 2610.591,757  2.149.238.574

The annewed notes from | to 349 form an integral part of these unconsalidated financlal statements,

A i
Pﬁﬂﬂ? --_J'J" £l ,ﬁ

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAD SIDDICGLI MUHAMMAD ABRAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Dirgctor Chief Financial Officer
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Isgued,
subsecribed
and paid-up Unappropriated
capltal profit Tatal
TEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE ssR U PR O S e nanananannn
Balance as at June 30, 2022 45, 0040, 000 4,151 625 BOG 5006625, 806
Profit for the year - 2149 238,574 2.148 235 574
Oitheer comprehinsive incoame - a =
Tetal comprehensive income for the year - 2,149,238, 574  2.148,238 574
Isswe of Donus shames @@ 20% 185,000,000 (189,000 000) -
Balance as at June 30, 2023 1,134, 000, 000 6,111.B64_3E0 7245 B854 38D
Profit for the wear - 2,610,591 757 || 2,610,591,757
Dithesr comprehensive income . .
Total comprehensive income for the yesr 2,610,591, 757 2,610,591, 757
Balance as ai June 30, 2024 1.134.000.000 8,732 456137  S9.B56 137
The annexed notes from 1 to 3% form an integral part of these unconsolidaled financal statements.
b1 ._'. . f@é}’
T |
.'l:'\- A * — j""'-\:-'."
(e Ao 8 ;
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAG SIDDIGLI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Nots = RUpBAS ==sssaase

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generabed from operatians 31 1,275, 756,822 3,029,002

Incoma tax and Evies paid {169,746 BOT) (106, 727.8148)

Financn costs paid (19,B77.575) [33,141,385)

Long term deposits - met 7 (58,936,165) 1,638,803

Telavision program costs B {271,341,623) (62,274 408

Met cash generaled from [ (used in) operating activities 755,854,652 (205,474,747
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Addition to proparty and eoulprmnasnt 41448 (96 408 BE3)| | (314 570,888)

Short term invastmants - ned (434, TH5 054} | BLE 408 063

Lang ferrn invesirmen mads (10,000, 00| | {750, 000,000 )

Profid recaived on deposit accounis 25 81,308 456 55,453 532

Dividend recaived 25 93,3599 999 5B 231,534

Procesds from disposal of operating fixed assets 4.4 7.531,113 4,922 839

Mat cash (used in) [ generated from investing activities (355,054,349} 214,145,980
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid {T20,973) (H25,07T)

Lease rentals pald (33,235,932) (24,258,533}

Long term financing — net (62,500,000)| | {270, 188 964)

Wet cash used in financing activities (96,456 905) (304,372.974)
Met increase | (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 300,343,390 (385 701,791)
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year 447 THE TED B33 458 560
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year 748,140 168 47 TEE TR
The annexed notes from 1 10 38 form an inlsgral par of these uneonsalidated financial stalements.

S ] " IJ'-'\-\.
.fr#j_ﬁé’ el i /Qﬁ/
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAD SIDDIGUI MI-HHH-IED ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1.2

2.1

2.2

221

222

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

HLUB Metwaork Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public Emited company on 25 February 2004
undar the repealed Companies Ordinance, 19494 (the Ordinance) now Companies Act, 2017, Tha shares of the Company
are quoted an Pakistan Stock Exchangs.

The Company's princiasl busansss 05 0 aunch ransnational satefile channals and aims al presenling & wide vaneaty of
cultyral hantage and naws. Iks core amas of oparation are producticn, advartisement, entarainment and media markatng
It cowers & wide variety of programmes with respact to information, enterainment, current affairs, education, health, food,
rrugis and sociely,

Gaographical location and address of business units

Regisierad allice Fiot Mo 1011, Hassan Al Streat, O, LI Chundngar Rosd, Karachs, Paklstan,

City office — Karachl Alifalah Ciowrt, L1 Chundrigar Road

Cily office - Kasachi E.R.R Tower, Hassan Ali Siread, O L1 Chundigar Road

City office — |slamabad 28, |&T centre, sechor G-81

Cily affice - Islamabad Flol 20, Shakesd Express Building No. 2, Whasaban & Subarwardy, Aabpara,
Islamabacd

City office — Lahora House ¥ 58, R-24, Masson Road

ity office — Peshawar Fiot Mo. 7-A, 28 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment

City affice — Casstta Fiot Moo 4-A, Ground Floor, "Aksan & Mashng” Hall Road Model Town, Quetla

These are separate financial statements of the Company in which invesimeanis in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
Irmpalrroent, i any,

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements hewve been prepared in accordance with the sccounting and reporting
standands &9 applicable in Fakiaten, The accounting and reparting standands applicabbe in Pakistan comprse of:

- Intamational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (LASE)
ae netified under the Companies Act 2017 (the Act): and
- Provigions of and dirsctives isseed under the Ac

Where provisions ol and direclives issued ender the Acl diflers From IFRS, the provisions ol and direclives issued under
the Act have baan followed

Accounting convention

These unconsolidated financial stalements hawve been prepared under the historcal cosi conventon except olhervize
apacfically stated.

These unconsolidated fnanciol stalerments ara pressnted In Pak Rupses which is the Compeny's funcional and
presantation curmency.
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New standards and amendments to approved accounting standards
Adoption of amendments to approved accounting standards effective during the year

Amendments to approved accounting standards

1As B Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendmaents)

The armendments 1o IAS 8 clarily the dstnclion belsesn changss in accounting eslimates, changes in accouning poRcies
and the comecton of erors. They also clenfy how enbties use measurement techniquas and inputs 1o develop accounting
astimalas.

&5 1 and IFRS
Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments)

Staterment 2

The amerdments to A5 1 and IFRS Pracice Siafement 2 Making Maiesality Judgements provide guidance and
examples to help entities apply materialty judgements 1o sccounting policy disclosures. The ameandments sim to help
enfilies provide acoounting policy disclosures thal are more el by replacing the requinerment for entiies o dischase
their ‘significant” accounting policies with a requirement to disclosa their ‘matarial’ accounting policies and adding guidanca
on how entiies apply the concep! of materalily in making declsions about acoounting policy disclosumes.

The amendrments kave had an mpact on the Company's disclosures of acoounting policies, but not on the measurement,
rescognition of presentation of any ibems in he Company's Tnancal statemens,

1As 12 Deferred Tax related (o Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments)

The amendments o A5 12 Income Tax narmow the scope of the irllial ecognition exceplion 5o that it no kenger appies 1o
transactions {hat give mse to egual texable and deductibée temporary differences e, leases and decommissionng
liabilties

1AS 12 International Tax Reform—Pillar Two Model Rules (Amend ments)

The amendrments 1o 1AS 12 have been miroduced in response to the DECD's BEFE Pifar Two rules and mcluede:

+ A mandatory temporary exceplion to the recognition and discloswe of deferrad taxes arsing from the jurisdictional
implermertation of the Billar Two model rules; and

= Disclosure requirements for affected entfiss to help users of the fmancial statements batter understand an entiy's
exposure o Pikar Teo income Laxes arisng frem that legisiation, pariculerly before ils effectee dale,

The mandatory tlemporany excepbon = the use of which is required 10 be dsdosed = applies Immedately. The remaining
disclosure requirements apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, but not for any inerim
penods ending on or before 31 December 2023,

The above amendments 1o the approved accounting standards had no material impact on these financial statements,

Standards and amendments to approved aceounting standards that are not yet effective

The followdng stardards and amendments 1o approved accounting standards a6 applicable In Pakstan would be effective
from the dates mentioned balow against the respectve standards. amandmaeants ar improswemants:
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Effective date (annual

Standards § Amendmenis periods beginning on or
after)
A5 Clazasfication of Liablitlizs a8 Current or Mon-current and Mon-cumant Jdanary 01, 2024
Liabilfizs with Covananis - Amendmanis o 145 1
A% T and IFRS 7 Disclosures: Suppler Finance Arangemenls - Amendments Lo 145 7 January 01, 2024
and IFRS 7

Effective date (annual

Standards f Amendmants periods beginming on of
after)
IFRS 186 Lease Liabiily in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments to IFRS 16 Jdanuary 01, 2024
a5 21 Lack of axchangeabilty - Amendments to 145 21 January 01, 2025
IFRS & and IFRS 7 Chssdfication and Measurement of Financal [nstruments - January 01, 2026
Amendments to IFRS S and IFRS T
IFRS 17 ingwrance Contracts Jdanuary 01, 20246
IFRS 18 Prezentation and Discoswre in Financial Stalements January 01, 2027
IFRS 19 Subsidiarias without Pubbc Accountabilty. Disclosures January 01, 2027
IFRS 10/ 1A5 28 Sale or Contrioufion of Assels between an Inestor and its Associate Mot wel inalised

or Joint Vaniure - Amendment to IFRS 10 and |45 25

Furiher, Tollowing new standands hawve been sseed by WBSE which are yel to be nolified by the SECF for the purpose of

applicabdity in Pakistan
IASE effective date
Standard {annual periods beginning
an or after)
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Itarmatiznal Financial Reporing Standards Jdanuary 01, 2004

The Cosmpany éxpects thal above Slandands snd amendinents b e approwed acoounting standards sl not have any
materizl impect on the Compsamy's financial statemeants in the pariod of initial application.

24 Significant accounting judgmaents, estimates and assumptions

Tha preparation of the unconsolidated financal sElements in conformily with approved accounting standards, as
applicable In Pakistan, reguees the management to make |judgment, estimates and asswnplions that aflect the
application of pobcies and the reporded amounts of revenues, egeenses, assels and Rabdilies and accompéarying
discloswres. Uncartainty about thess judgrments, estimates and sssumptions could result in outcomes thet reguire a
rraterisl adjusiment ta the carmydng amound of sssels or liabiRies allecled in Rfure penods

The judgments, estimates and assumplions are based on historcal expenence and varous other factors thal ane believed
o be ressonable under the circumsiances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments abou the camying
vaiues of agsets and llabdites that are not readily spparent from other sources,

Judgmenis, estimates and assumptions are reviewed on &Bn ongoig bess. Revisons to accountng estimates are
recagnized in the period in which the estimate & revised & the revision alfecls only thal period, or in the pedod of the
rewision and future penods § the revision affects both coment and fiture penods.
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In the process of appling the accounting policies, management has made he folowing judgments, estimales and
assumplions which are significant (o the unconsolidated financed statements:

Property and equipment and intangible assets [note 4 & 5)

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rale of depreciation / amorisation, useful life and residual value used in the
cabculation of depreciation | amortisation. Further. where appicabla, an astmata of the recovarable amount of assets is
mmiade far passible impairment onan annual bass. Any change in the sstimates o e Tuleee might alfect te carrying
amount of respective iterm of property and eguipment and intangdde assets, with coresponding effects on the
deprecaiion [ amortisation charge and impairment.

Investment in subsidiaries (note 6)

The Company determines at each reporting date, whether thers is any objectve evidence that the neestments are
impairad. Il this & the case, the Company calcuiates the amount of impairment a5 the diference bebwesn the recoverable
amount &nd its carning value and recognize The same inthe uncorsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Tebevision program costs (note 8)

Television program costs represent unamorised cosl of complefed lelevision programs and belevison programs in
production. In order te datermine the amount 1o be charged 1o siatemant of profil or loss, the management estimates future
revanuas from each program. Estimatas of futwee ravenues can chanpge significantly due 1o a variety of faciors, mncluding
advertising rates and the level of market scceptance of the producton in different geographical kecations. Sccordingly,
revenue astimates are reviewed perdodically and amortisation s adjusted, |If necessary. Such adjustrments cowld hawe a
material efiect on resulis of operations in fulure periods,

Taxation (note O & 39)
In making the estimate for Income lax peyable by the Cormpany, the Company takes nlo sccount the applicable tax [aws
and thie decizion by appellale suhorities on cerlan issues in he pazl

Deferred tax assels are ecognized for all unused tax losses and credits to the extent thal it is probable that taxable profil
will be avallable against which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant management judgment is reguired to
detarming the amownt of dafesred 16x Be3ata that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and lewved of future texable
profits together with fulure tax planning sfrategees.

Impairment of financial assets (note 3.4.3)
The Company uses a provision makhia b calculale sapeched cradit kuss Tor trade datds and other recaivables, The provision
rales are based on days past due Tor Cormpany’s vanous customer thal have samilar koss patbems,

Contingencies (note 20)

The aseeasment of the contingancees inherenlly invoives the exercise of significant judgment as the oubcoms of the futura
events canned be predicied with cartalnty. The Company, based on the avallabliity of the lslest information, estimates the
value ol comtingent liabiities which may differ on the ceoumence | nor-occurrence of the unceartas fulure events.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate (nole 17)

The Company cannet readily determing the inlenast rabe implct o the lease. therefore, i vaes i incremental bormawing rate
['IBR") ko measure lease liabilikes. The IBR is fhe rabe of inleres] thal the Company would have 1o pay 1o barrow ower &
gimilar larm, and with a similar securly, the funds necossary to oblain an assol of a similar value (o the right of wse assel in
8 similar Boonomic anvironmand,

Leases - Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options (note 17)

The Company datarmines tha lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covared by an
oplion 1o extend the kesse i it (s repsonably certasn to be exerciesd, or Bny pencds coversd by an oplion o tarminate tha
lezse, i it is reasonably certam not to be exerciged

The Company has lease conbrscts that nclude extension and fermination optlon. The Company applies jesgement in
evaluating whelher it & reasonably ceain whelher or nod lo exercse the aplion o renaw or lerminabe the Ease. That is, it
congiders all redevant faciors that creale an sconomic incenlve Tar il 10 exercise aither the renewal of lermenalion. After he
cormmancement dabte, the Company meassosses the wase term if them is a significant event or change in circumstances that
is. within ils control that affects He ability o exarcise or not lo exercisa the option o renaw or 0 termanaia
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The malsdasl accounting palicies adopled by the Company in the preparadion of these unconsolidated financial statemenis
ang as fallows:

31 Property and equipment
344 Operating fixed assets
Thase ara siated at cost less accumulated deprecaation and mpairment. if any,

Dapraciation is calculated so 25 o wite off the depreciable amount of the assats ovar ther axpected useful lives at the rates
specifed in note 4.1 to thesa unconsolidated financa! stetemants. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated on &
straight line basis after taking into account the residual value, if any. The residual valuss and useful Fves are reviawsd and
adjusted, if appropriate, al each statement of financial positon dats,

Mainbenance and normal repairs are charged b stalemeant of profil of [oss as and when incurred, Major renewals and
improeemanis, il any, arme capitalived whan il is probable thad respaciive fulure economic benefils will flow ko e Company,

Deprecialion on addifions is charged from e month the assel s available far e Mo depreciation is chamged in e month
of disposal,

An itern of property and equipment is desscognized upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are espected from
= wse or disposal. Any gain or loss arsing on derecognition of the asset {calculabed as the difference betesen the net
disposal proceeds and 1he camyng amount of the ssset) i included in stsiement of profit or loss in the year the asset s
derecognized,

3.1.2 Right of use assets

The Company recognises & right of use assats al the commencement date of The lBase e, e date he underlying assel is
available for use) Right of use assels are measured al cost less any atcumulded deprecalion and impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasurement of Ieass liahilites. The cost of right of wse sssels includes the amount of lease liabildies
recognised, initial direct costs incumred, &nd leese paymeanie made at or before the commencament date bess any leass
ncentives recaived. Right of wse essets are deprecatad on & straight-line basis over the shorer of lease tamn or useful life,
excepl for the leases in which cwnership of the underying asseds transfer to the lesses by the end of the lease tarm or cost
of vight of use assets reflects that the lessee Wil Bxarcise a pufchase oplion, the Company degreciate those right of use
fssel aver e wseful life of the underlying assat,

3.1.3 Capifal work in prograss

Theese mre stated at cost less accwmulated impairment and conssst of expenditures incurred and advances made in respect
of specific assels during the conatrucilon perod. Thess sre transfermad to specific assets as and when ssseta are avallable
for use.

3.2 Investments in subsidiaries

Inwestment in subsidiary is initally recognised &l cost. At ssbsequent reporting dates, the Company reviews the camying
amount of the Investment o sasess whether there = any indication thai such investneents have suffered an impalment loss.
If ey such indication exigls, the recoveraile amount & estifmaled in order o determing the exlent of the Impairment kass, |
amy. Such impasrmant losses or reversal of mpairment losses ate ecognigsed in the slatement of profit o loss. These ane
classified as Tong term imastment’ i the unconscéidated financial statements,

3.3 Television program costs

Television program cosis mepresent unamoriised cost of completed television programs and television programs n
production. These costs include direct prodection costs, cost of inventony consumed, and production ovarheads and ans
steted at the bower of cost, less eccurmuleted amorlisgtion and nef reslzable value MRV NRV = estimated by the
management on the basis of fulure revenue generatisn capacity of the program. Acgused lelevision program Beenses and
righls are recorded when the license perod beging and the program 18 avadabie for Use.
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Televizsion program costs and acquired television program llcensss and rights are charged o expenss besed on the ratio of
the rewenees eamed Bl date 1o batal revences 1o be eamed from the program incheing future estimated revenues less cost
expensed in pror years on an individual program basis,

Financial instrumenis

A financial Instament is ary contract that gives rize to & financlal asset of one entdy and a financial llablity or aquity
instrumeant of anather entity.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instrumeants)

Financial a=sats at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to
impairmant. Gains and losses are racognisad in profit or loss when the aseed is derecognised, modified or impairad.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL]

Financial assels al FYTPL malude Rngncial assals held Tor trading o those designaled FYTPL on inibal recognibon,
Financial assets wilh cashiows thal are ndd solely payments of Dﬁntﬂml and inberes] are classibed and measured al FYTPL,
irrespactive of the business moded

Financial as=sats &l FYPL are camied in the unconsolidated statemant of financial position at feir valee with net changes n
fair value recognsed in unconsoldseted statement of profit or loss.,

Disidends an listed equity inmvestments and mulial funds are aslso recegmnsed as otber ncorms 0 profil o kss when the rght
of paymenl has been established,

Impalirment of financial assets

For lrade debts, the Company applies a simplificd aggroach in calculaling mapected cradil loss, Therefors, the Company
doas nol irack changas in credit risk, bul instead recognises a loss alowancs based on lifelima expected credil losses al
each reporting date. The Company has established a provision malrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking faclors specific to the deblors and the econamic environment,

The Company ponsiders a financial assel n defaull when confractual payments ane B0 days past dus. However, in cerain
cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in dafault when inlermal or extemal informatson indicates thal
the Company i unlikely to recaive the outstanding contrectual amowents n full before taking inta account any credit
enhancements hald by the Company. A financial asast is weitten off when there s no reeonable sxpectaton of recovering
the contraciual cash flows.

Financlal llablities st amorised cost
After initial recognition, bormowings and payables ara subseguently measurad a3l amortised cost using the EIR method.

Gains and kosses are recognised in profil or loss when the lisbiliies are derecognised a5 well a5 through the EIR
emaortisation process.

Offaetting of financial nstruments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are offsat and the net amound & reported in the slatemant of financial posiion if
thera is & cumrently anforcaaibls legal right to offsat the recognised amounts and thers is an intention to setthe on & et basis,
o realize e assets and setile the labllites simullaneowsly.

Contract liability

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company o transfer goods or serices 1o 8 customar for which the Company has
received considerstion (or &n amowent of consideration k3 dus) from the cuatomer. If a cuslomer pays coneiderstion before
the Cormpany transfers goods or gervices to the custormer, & contrect labdity is recognized when the payrment |5 made or the
payrment i3 dis (wheschever = earlier), Contract liability are recognised as revenue when the Company fullils ils pedommance
abligaticn mentionad in the conbract.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The camying amounis of non-financial assels are asseseed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any
indication of impairment. i such an indicstion esists, the ssset’s recoversble amount i3 estimated to detarmine the exdent of
impairment loss, f any. An impalsment ioss s recogntied, as an expense in statement of profit or loss and obher
cormprehengive Income, The recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's fair value bess cost to disposal and value in use.
Value in use 15 ascerained thrsugh discounting of the estimabed fubere cash fows wsing a discount rate that reflects curment
markel assassments of the Bma value of monay and the nsk specific to the assels for which the estmate of fulure cash flow
hava nol baen adjusted, For the purposa of asssssing impairment, asests ane grouped al tha lowest levels for which thera
are separately dentifisble cash fows (cash-gamarating wmis).

Taxation
Currenl

Provision for current tax = based on the tesable iIncome in acocordance with the Income Tex Ordinance, $001.

Deferrad

Deferred tax is recogmsed sty the balance shesl habilily method, on all magsd tempofary Glferences anging al the
staternent of financial posdtion date bebaepen tax bases of assefs and labdities and their carying amounts in the financial
staterments.

Deferred tax liabilites are recognized for all tazable temporary diferences. Defarred tax asseis are recognized for afl
deductible tamporary diffarences to the extent that d is probable that the future taxabée profits will be aveilable Bgainst which
the sssets may be utilized. Deferrad tax assats sre reduced bo the extent that it is no longer probable that the releted 1ax
banefit will be realize.

The camying amount of deferrad tax asse! 15 reviewed al each slalemen of Srancal posilion date and reduced jo the exdent
that il is no longer probaike thal sufficient @abie profits will be availabie (o allow all ar part of the delerred 1ax assed o be

recognized,
Deferred lax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rale that arme expecited o apply o the period when the assel is

rezalisad or the Habdlity is selfled, bassd on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted o substantively enacted at the
staternent of fieancial position date

Levies - final taxes

Pursuard to the release of circular 772024 by the Instiute of Chartered Accountants of Pskistan, the company has alected to
change the methad of socounting for minimam taxea and final taxas,

The Company designates the amount calculated on taxable income wsing the enacled ta as an (ncome Lax within the scope
of |AS 12 'Income Taxes” and recognise iL as current income lax expense

Ag cormputation of final taxes under provisions of ITO, 2001 = not based on taxable ncorme, therefore, final taxes fall under
Iy within the sooge of IFRIC 21 7 145 3T and not income tax in the statement of profit or loss,

The Comgany rectassdied the evies that fall under the scope of IFRIC 29 ¢ [AS 3T from income taxss in the unoonsolidated
statement of profit or loss retrospectively. There |5 no change to the prafit for the year reported n the price percd due o this
reclassifcation. The thres colemn imgact, i the contexl of restalemen) in ihe Comgany's uncorsolidated financial
slatements, 5 nol material,

Leasas

The Company assesses at confract incaption whether a contract is, o contains, a lease. That is, if the confract conveys the
right o controd the use of an identfied asaet for 8 penod of time in exchangs for consideration.

Company as a lessee

They Company apples a single recogniton and measuremenl appraach for all leases, sxcepl for shod-form heases and
lpases of lowalue assels, The Company recognises lease liabiifies 1o make lease payments and righl of use asscls
reprasenting the right to use the underiying assets,
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it Lease liabilities

Al the commencement dale af the lease, the Company récognises lease ablilies meéasuned a1 the present value of lease
payments fo be made over the leass term. The lease payments include ixed payments (including n-substance faed
payments) less any bkease moentives receivabla, varabée lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounis
expactad to be peid wnder rasidusl walue guarantees The keasa payments aiso include the exsrcize pnoe of 8 purchase
opltion reascnetdy certain to be exsrcissd by the Company and payments of penalties for termineting the leesa, if the
bermination option s reasonabdy cemaln to be exercEed. Varlable ease paymenis that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as expermes (unless they aee incurred 1o produce invenlories) n the period Inowhach the event or condition
Ihad trigagers the paymenl ccowers. 0 calculaling the present value of lease pavmends al Bwe lease commencemeant dale, he
Company uses the merest rate implicit in the lease, In case where the interesi ate implicit in the lease s nol readily
daterminabla. the Company uses ils incremental bomowing rsta. After the commancement date. the amound of leass
limhilities is increased to reflecs the accretion of smterest and reduced for the lesse paymenis made. In sddition, the camying
amound of lease llabllites i remeaswred if there = a modification, & changs In the lease term, &8 change In the leasse
payments of a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underying asset

if) Short-term leasas

The Company applies the shor-term bease recognilion exemplion 12 #s short-lerm leases of office premises (e, those
leases that have a lease lamm of 12 months or bess from the commencament date and do not contain & purchase oplion],
Lease paymeants on shor-ierm leases are recognised as axpensa on a sireightdine basis owver the lease term.

Provisions
Frovisians arg recognized when the Company has a present oblagalion (legal or constructve) as o result of past events, il is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable estimale can ba made of the

amound of obligation, Provisions are reviewed at each statemant of financial position date and adjusted 1o reflact the current
best estimate.

Ruvenue recognition

Acheertlsing rewenue s recognized at 3 point In tirme when the related advertisernent or cormmercial sppesars before public Le.
alred.

Production revenue is recognisad at a paint in bme when produection work appears before public,

Digital rewenus s adwvertising revenues from digial properties which are recognized on the bagis of nember of Impressions
on the adverisement ained on websibe

Subscripton Income arses from the monthdy bdling to subscrbers for services provided by the Company and from digital
avenuas based on number of views, Fevenue is recognised @0 e manth the service is rendered.

Film Disfribution Revenus is recognized &l a point in Bme upon receipt of elated sales reports from cinemas,

Cradif imits in conlract with customers ranges from 2 to 90 days,

Other income
Profit on bank deposits s accounted for on effective intarast method.
Dividend imcome is recognized when it i declared and right to receive is established,

interest f mark-up incoms is recognized on accres! basis.

Ciher revenuss are accounied for on an accrual basis.
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Staft retirement benafits
Defined contributicn plan

Tha Company oparates a funded and approved provident fund scheme for 88 8 permanent employess. Equal mandhly
condributions are mede, both by the Company and the employeas, to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of the basic salary.

Forgign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency (ranssctions are franslaled mlo Pakistan Rupees osing the exchange rales ruling ol the dabes of e
transaclions, Manelary asscts and labilites in foreign currencies ang Iranslaled into Pakistani Rupees using the exchanges
rate at the statemant of financial posdion date. Mon-monetary assets and Eabéilies are translated using eschange rata that
gxigiad whan the velues were detarmined. Foresgn exchange gains and losses rasultng from the aatlement of such
transactions and from the translations at the pesr-end exchange rates of monetary assets and llabilities denominated m
foreign cufrencies are aken lo unconsolidated slatement of profit or loss currently.

Contingencies

Conlingencies are d@sclosed when the Company hias a possible obigation thal anses rom past events and whose exisience
will be confirmad only by the ococumenca or non-pocurrence of one or more uncartain futume events not wholly within the
condrol of the entity or & present obfigalion thal arises from past events but is not recognised becauss it is nof probable that
an owtflow of resowncas embodying economic benefils will b required to settle the obligatisn or the amount of the abligatan
caaned e measurad wWith sulficien reliability.

Earnlngs per ahare

The Company prasents basic and diluied eamings par shara [EPS) data for ds ordinary shares. EPS is caloulated by
dividing the profit or loss aliributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weightad average numiber of ordinary
shares cutstanding during the period.

Functicnal and presentation currency

These financial ststerments are presented in Pakisteni Rupees, which is the Company's functional and preseniation
CUFTERCY.

Segment Reporting

Segment reporting & based on the reponing opersling (business) segmenis of the Cormpany. An operatng segment i &
component of the Company thel engages n business activties from which i@ may eam revenue and meur expenses. An
pperating segment's operating results are reviswed regulary by the senior management of the Company 1o make decisions
aboul resources f0 be allocaled (o the segmenl and assess 5 pedormance, and For which discrate Tinangial information is
available,

FROPERTY AMD EQUIFMENT 2024 2023
Nate Rupess

Operating fixed asseis 4.1 1,109,447 150 1,148 183,211

Right of use assels 45 139,818,734 51.884, 192

Capital work-m-progress 4.6 215,208,771 200,676,146

1,464,494,655  1.402.053,549
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4.1  Parlicufar of immovable assets imthe name of the Company ame as folows:

Locatian Adcmupes Tatal Aras
®arach Pint Mo, 1011 Hemear Al srest, oFf |1 Chundnigsr mad. 20740 = yards
Blamabad Pt Mo. 26, BT cenire sscior G-811. B0 &0 sk
slamabad B-7 km. Eashrrir Highoway, adacent o Seclor H-17 H3 m yards
a0z 203
Hobe -
4.3 Depreciaban for the year on openating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:
Comt of production 2 52 189,550 A1 6T
Dispbution cows b 11,024,078 #213.258
A sEralive SNpanass 24 SEA47.BAB AT A6
1&1 83T 262 ELITHATE
4.4 The detasils of opecatng ed aessts dsposed (anllen o, duing The veor are as ilows:
Accumusated Muoikes ot
Degsription Cadal dapracialicn Dl f el Pariculars of By
Vahaslas
FoTa.A11 s per Company Magir Thahorany
podicy
2 70T, N A per COmpErYy fanan Lalar
Ealizy
Fems having book wabes
iof e than Rs. 600,000 BTEL,07 teegotation W arious
a4 18 543,082 14,983,087
2023 13782226
2034 Y
4.5 Faght of uss assals
Dpanng nil Dook valia 58,084, 152 TH, M5 338
Audifions in maws Habilles 97526 1,638 463
Cranges due In modification [ |6, 262 102
Chanpes e 1o reassessme 15,348,366 -
Transhs 1 eradng Mind sareta - mal gk vake [4,075,TT&) 11807 433)
Deprelinion Srange Mo 1 el 4528453 (30,514, BEE) {30,550 0751
Closing net book valus 451 135,030, 734 51,884 152

As at June 30, 2074
Cendl

Aooumulsied depredation
st ook waliee

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

34,944 544 163,655 S5
(93,908,214 104 BE2 358

139,838,734 51,064 190




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4541

452

483

4.6

Breakup of not book value ol ng of use assats by dass of underhing assed 5 as folows:

Lard and buiiding
Wahices

2024 2023
R
13% 784,758 41,343 304
4 D55.9T8 10 640, 566
139,838,734 51,9084 192

The rght ol use agesls s deprecialed an giraag) ins Bags over The leass tamn, Deprstahon changs for he vaer an such adsels haa Boen

alocrad o foll ows:

24 2023
Mobe o QUpERs e
Cost of praduction 22 18,330,073 15,605 265
Disbributinn costs & - BB GG
Admerisiratne axprnses 24 2 575 855 4 (HE1 2
25!1#92! EIZIIEEIZIETE
Breakup of dapraciation of dght of use assets by class of undardng sssal s A5 follows:
Lard and buiding 18 406,807 16,540,141
ahities 2 508 1219 4 0045 934
El.'l.iHEH 20,550,075
Capital work-in-progress
Lessakhald land 163.337,.830 162,327 930
Legsakabd Imgniemens S B0 B4 35545216
&6.1 215 208,771 200,076 146
Movement in captal work-in-progress during e year
Balance &t beginring of the yaar 200 878 146 106 B4 820
Addiions dusing tha yaar 14332628 3,861 526
Ealanca &t and ol ths vaar 21 771 ?'I.'.I:IIHTEI.ME
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Cosi Accuitsilaied amortisstion Book value Amostisation
As at Additions s at Az at Chargs Az at as at rate
July i,  during the  June 33, July @1, far the June 3@, June 13, e
x02d e 2024 2023 yoar R 2824 jpET ANEIEm
Rripees—--
Compuber softwares B8 466 118 B0 454 114 56 BOT BE4 v 5D AT BT BBOS2E 508, 592 X -5
Lican s fee 1050000010 - 10,500,000 10, 254, 700 200,00 10,434 500 65200 G487
Tradesmark 33 803500 - 33,883,500 33,140,856 ETOLSE3 33811780 .11 20
Aume 50, 2024 102,849 615 - 102849618 903410 2,723,705 102107115 742503
Cost Accumuildted amorlisstion Book valus Amoriisation
As at Additions &5 af A= at Ghargs Az at as at rate
July 01,  during the  June 38, July @1, far the June 38, June 3, %
022 i 20273 2022 year 2021 2823 per annum
Raipees,
Computer soMwares  £f 466 118 Ba 568,118 Bi4a04R8  50BA365 56,507,854 1,058, 2604 -3
iLicanes Toa 100, 500, 0080 - 110, 500LOH 0034600 ID0LIO0 10,254,700 265,300 687
Tracameark 33,883,500 - X5 883 500 MM 282508 1 BTT.IS0 33,140,855 T2 Bald 20
Jdune 30, B33 102,849 515 102 MHE 618 B2 74T 505 T 135RI5  80.EE3 490 2,566 205

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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2024 2023
51 Amortisation for the year has been allocated as follows: Moabe Fispsaes

Coest of prosducton 2z 1915852 E2T1.976
Adminisiralsa eapenses i 30T R53 863,838

2,223,705 7,135,615

[:3 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS = unguoted subsidiarss
Country of Huhdineg {%)
incarporatian | Mots ety il

[ —— Rm rermim
HUM TV, lne Uriitesd Siabas of Amnedca 100%
10000 Cormmian slock a8 E0.01 (8 1005 8,603 8,603
Advance for future Isss of shares (§ 200,000) 18716, 750 18,716,750

18. 725,353 18,725,353
HUM Metwoark LI Ltd LEnfted Kingdom 1080%
553,677 ardinary share of 1 GBP [G8P 553,67T) 9597375 a8 a3y vh
Sky Ling Publication [Private) Limited Fakistan 1065
3,595 957 ordnary shares of Rs. 10 each 39, 899.970 A0 400 arn
Prowisaan for impaiment (3%, 099 970) [A5.850 970y
HUM Metwork FE LLC Liniled Arab Emirales 100%
2400 ardinary shares of AED 1,000 sach (AED 2 400,004} 63,802,374 G802 ,371
Advamer o fubune jssiee of shares (AED 175.431) 4 448 986 4 446, 056

T4,.240.337 74,248,337

HUMM Co, (Private) Limiged Fakistan 100%

4 ordinary shares of Rk, 10 e 40 4

HUM Mart (Private] Limited Pakislsn T05s

140000, D00 ardirary sharas of K, 10 aach 140,000, 0040 140,000 000

Provisan for impaimmen {140,000000)| | (140000 000)

Tawar Sports (Private) Limited Pakiztan

20,100 prdmary shares of Rs. 7,482 %9 pach 6.1 180,000,000 150,000, (D

Sphere Ventures {Private) Limited Pakislar

1,000 000 crdinary shares of s 10 pach 6.2 13,090,000 =
— 0000 30) ___J0.386351

g4 The Company acquired 100% sharshoiding of Tower Sports {Private) Limited in the plor year, L. 20,100 ondinary shares having face value
of Re. 1,000 esach, isaued at Re. 7462 60 asch, at & cost of Re. 150 milion. Resusartly, Tower Sports [Privale) Limited became a subsidary
ol the Campany sMective 01 May 2023, Tawer Sparts [Private) Limied is sngaged in Ibe bushess of provideg specialised spors sarvicas
wehich inclsde But gre not limited 1o graduction, sales, markating and distribulion of spans media conlent

6.2 Duwring the year, the Company scouined 100% shareholdng of Bphare Ventures (Privata) Limied (Spherel e, 1.000,000 ordinary shares
having Face valug of Bs. 10 each, issieed 8l & ool of R 10 midlion. Rezultanly, Sphere bacame a subgiiany of e Company afactive fnom
26 July 2023, Bphera is engagad n the businesa of production, acauisilian, marketirg. buying and sedling of programs.

2024 2023
Rippes sammmas
7 LOMG TERM DEFOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Sacurily deposits - unsacared - considared good
= Ranl 12 661,044 B 0Es Q44
- Trada 15,975,435 15,875,435
- ey 3149 872 3,149 972
34.TRT 25 QB2 351
Prepayments
- Salvwsre develoomenl fas 37380242 2108 077
= Mambarhip fes 20086, 00 -
83263593 _ d0izrazn

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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ki3

A

0.2

2

103

10.4

TELEVISION PROGHRAM COSTS

Unraleased  releassd - nel of amaortisslion
In praductan

Less: Curreni portion

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

Taxable lemporary dilferences ariging in respect of:
Unraalised gan on revaluation of imestments
Exchangs gan - nai

Deductible temporary differences arsing in respect of:
Provisions

Lease Bamlilies - nal

Aotelpraled tax depracalion and amortisalion

Linraalised Inss an shor berm invasiments - rat

Exchange ass - net

TRADE DEBTS = unsecured

Gonsidard goord
Congidared douibii

Lass Allowsnos for expected onedit nss

Allowance Tor sxpecied credil loss

Balance a1 lhe beginning of the yaar
Provision | {reversal) dunng lhe year
Balance g thi end of the yaar

Paricudars of receivabies from foreign jurisdictiors:

Lindted Kingclom
United States of America

2024 X231
Mate s RUPREE  seee——
G341, 711 432 619,736
GE B85, Ta B0,827.660
750,407 506 AB3, 447,378

(81,538,365 (B5,879,858)

B6E, 250,141 397 617,518
{3,365, 706} .

[, B0, 000

{3,968, T06) (2,855,9048)

132 434,762 123,957 122

10,351,988 7,376,545

5,268,646 1,664, 566

. 915,112
933,292 -

148,908,628 133,913,776

14-5=E|J1IH‘E 131 iE|1E|E|'E-H

3,100,180,7FF 2688381 940

52,255,449 36,221,115
3,152,406,226  2,724,604,055
11 (52, 255,443) (36, 21,115)

0.3 3,109,150,777 2,988,381,340

38,211,115 B, 965,632
26 16,034,534 (B2, 745,617)

52,255,449 36,221,115

104,908,200 108,772,218
126,463,809 128,164 961
23 482,199 2 G5 T, 208

Thesa recaivables are covered under confFaciual bare and here are no defauling pedies as ol June 30, 2024 and June 30,

2023,

Ineheex amount receivabls from the felloeing relaed partios:

HLUIR Mefaors LK Limiged
HUIR T I,

204 2023
[ Hu““ [R—

104,505, 290 108, 72,218
126 483, 500 128,184 B
£31 482 185 236,957, 2048

The aging of trade dabils othar than miatad parties at the statement of financial postaon dala was:

Post dug 1-30  Pasl dus 31-60 Past due 6190  Past due mors

Mot past due
2024
(3ross receiveble (Rupees) 2.075.305,104
Logs rale (%) 0.63%
2023
Gross receivable (Rupees) 2824 111,856
Loss rata (%) 0.48%

days days than 00 days
112,555,684 3,970,007 116,679,612
442% 13.48% 18.00%
43,260,747 146,810,237 56,704,171
AEI% 12.82% 17 .83%

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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10.5

10.6

11

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

The aging of rade debts from relabed parfies is as followes:

Meither past duse nor impaired
Past dug but nod impaired

- 01 o 30 days

- 31 10 B0 days

- Ower BO days

Thia masimum amaunt oulsianding from relabed perties at any lima during the year, calcualed by referenca to month end balances are as

follovws:

HLURA Medvasrk LK Lt
HUM TV Inc

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
&t fair walue through profit or loss

L} Microfinanca Bank Limiled
2023 8,400 TFCs having face value of Ra. 2,456 each (Fair Vaue: Re. 1 00587

Listed securities

Javedan Carporation Lenied
M arkcet walue: 5000 000 shares &1 Re. 35.06 / share (2023 NIk

Mutual Funds

AKD Copomunity Fund
853,788 (2023 542, 247] unils having MAY of R 110,31 (203 R, 86 .64) e Ll

AKD Igtamic income Furd
196.510.43 (2023 90,0981 ) unils having MAV of Rs_ 5151 (2023 Re. 50.85) per unit

AKD Gokden Arow Siock Fund
2,088,880 (2021- 2,900,838) unils having NAV of Rs. 18,02 (2022 R, 12,00} per unit

HEP Money Markel Fund
3021494 Q0% 272 536 ) units having NAV of R 10,01 {2023 Ra. 998) per unit

UBL Liquadity Phis Fund
2P 00 B (2027 220 5441 unils having MAW of Ris, 10136 (2020 Rs. 100.19) per uni

Faysal Islamic Cash Fund
1,487 517 1166 unils hawing MAY of Rs, 100,97 per und

Aifalaty Islamic Capilal Presarvaion Plan 4 Class &
2023 Sunits having MAN of Rs, 100,52

Alfafah GHP Monay Market Fund

2,068 916,63 unita (2023 1,320, T47] hewing WAY of Fs. 96,54 (2023: Fs. BE86) par unil

MEB Pasistan Cash Managerment Fund
3464122 TH unis [(H023: 2,086,698] haswng MAY of Bs. 5047 (2025 B4, 50.38) pér il

Fayzal Financial Seclor Opporiuniy Fund
9180 45 iils having NAY of Rs. 103 60 per unit

2024 2%
F31 482 1599 238,557,208
231.492,199 L35, 857,208
2024 2013
Rupoes mssmums
106,915,871 108,772,214
130,750,782 126,154 501
237 BEEB53 236,557 204
& 21,143,158
175,300,000 =
E1,088,579 43,170,651
6,001,813 5,087,356
TE 455472 45,031 TED
38 24% 012 24, Gia aar
T 427 M8 23,115,568
150,000,000 =
- 248
204,703,774 130,306,874
174,826,656 105,131,135
851,026
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111

12

121

122

13

Faysal Halal Amdani Fund

T252 7Y urds having MAY of Rs. 101,42 par unil 735,504 -
HBL Cash Fund

1,180,164, 73 unils {2025 1,004 202} hiaving WAV of B 10321 (2023 102-18) per unit 124,005 E24 102 5584 1149
ABL Cesh Fund

2747 252 45 umils {2023 2,318,350} having WA of Fs. 10.24 2023: B 10.23] per unil 28,129 867 23,683 247
Agkari High Yield Bchams

1432 5 units {2023; 512 883) having WAV of Ra. 104 35 (2023:103.87) per unh ?TIIBEIJ E-EIIEEH.ES'I'

1063 444 004 5H9 143281

Thase carry imleres] riskes rangng rom 20032% 10 21.62% (2025 18.73% 1o 20,329 per anmum.

Py 202
Hate Rupses —-—
ADVANCES
- Unsecured
Irderesi fres advances o
- Producers 121 &4922 186 587 669 gg, 04 08
= Buppliers 77568074 48 164 845
284 156,643 147,258 a24
- Gacured
Ineres] fres advances W
- Empicyees 6082137 T36, 706
270,208 840 154,575, 629
Irchudes arance amosning 1o M (2025 Bs, 20108 714) paxd 10 M.D Produsclions (Private) Limied
The aging of advances o redated panms 15 a5 follows:
2024 2023

[T H“m-.

Meither past dus nor impaingd . 29,108,714
Fast dus buf nal iImpared
-0 o 30 days
« M ta GO days 2 i
- Qyer 60 days - -
- 28,108,714

TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMEMNTS

Depogils - unsecured

- Rent 1,364,500 1,364 500

Prepaymeanls

« Insuramcn 35,330,112 22588 130

- Rent T 489 248 2711 483

- Soltware Savelooment fes 9,751,367 -

- Ohes 15,885,181 2 2%1 876
63,568 918 2T S3.TOR
60,023,418 24 904 208

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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14 OTHER RECENVABLES

Sales tax receivable 14.1 154,150,827 129 &35 A0
Cua from rdated parbas 14.2 2, T84, 531,308 1,659,654, 904
Cilhers 4,934 B57 10,288,417
2943685792  1,799,7T9.216
Allawance: for mepecied credi loss (63,308 424) (57 B05.219)
2,880 377, 168 1,742, 1739487

144 Agper rubs 305) of Sindh Sakes Tax Specal Procedure (withholding) Ruks 2014, registansd persons &2 reclpeent of advertsamant sarvices
shal withhold whels of sales B spplicabile an ihe peron providing adverisemant sendoas, Accordngly, The Company i Lnable io adust
its Input tex deducied on purcheses of tacatle goods and servces as 100% of the cutput 1ax on the Company's txebin sendces ane
belng withhedd by the reciplent of theea sendoes, However, the Company & in comespondance with the ralevant authorities. through ia
Il advisof 1o reslve the maller

2024 2023
Maote snsmnanaes RUPEES ssessmeaes
142 [ue from relabed paries
Considered good
Hurm Metwork F2 LLC 1421 2,590,348 261 1,538 285 006
Hum TV, Inc 14.2.1 53,111,397 56,339,751
Towear Sports (Private) Limied 1,535 226 -
TSAFZLLC 4.2 ?E_&E-l],m
2,721,222 184 1,504 505 747
Considered doubtful
Skyfine Publications (Private) Limited 63,180,424 aa.n&a.15-?|
HUM Marnt {Privale ) Limited 128 00 -
63,308 424 65 DR3 15T
2 TB4,531. 308 1,659.554 804
Less: Allowance for expected cradit loss 14.5 (63,308 424) §57 805, 219]
2,721,232 B84 1,602,042 GBS

14.21 These repracen] curmenl accounl balances with wholly owned gubsidiades of the I:r:nmpany. These balances are
denominated In thelr reapeclive foresgn curmencies and are In the normal cowse of business.

14.3 The aging of recaivables from relatad padies is a5 follows;

Meitiesr past dug nor impained 2,657,590, %63 1,601 003,221
Fast due bt not impaired

- B0 1090 days 226,940,345 .

- ower 9 days - 58651 GBI

2, 784,531,308 1,655.654.504

144 The maxkmum amount oulstanding from related parlies at any tme durng the year calculated by referance to month end
balancas are as hollows:

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Hote 2024 2023
cnsmsmee FLPBES e
Hum TV, tnc. 54 003 034 56,339,751
Hurm Rart (Privage) Limiled 12E,000
Skline Publicataons (Prnvata ) Limited 65,082 301 65,0589, 157
Hum Metwork FZ LLG 2,605,164 196 1.538 260,990
Toaer sparts (Private) Limited 1,535,226 -
TSI FZLLE TE,230,000 ‘
B IIER0T, BRSO SELE0
145  Allowance for expected oredif loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 57,605,219 a7.605215
Frovisson made dunng the year 26 5,703 205 -
Balamce at the end of the year 63,308 424 GTE05.21%
15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash im hand 213,784 BE3, 125
Cash at banks
- in current SCoounts 151,783,261 126,706,622
= |7 deposil aecounis 15.1 595443 118 1B 117,021
TAT 226,378 446,913,543
T48,140,168 447 706, TES
154  These camy profit at the rates ranging from 18.5% to 20.5% per annem (2023 5.5% to 12.85%) per annum.
16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AMND PAID-UP CAPITAL
2024 2023 24 2023
(Mumbar of shares) EETCRLLEEnS RUP@RE ssssssems
Cirdinary shares aof Bs. 15 each
500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
34,000,000 G4, 00000 |sswed as fully paid bonus shares 624,000,000 G234, 000,000
1,134.000,000 1 134|mu_nm 1I1:u|nnnim 1=13¢|ﬂﬂ&.fﬂﬂ

16.1  Woling rghts, boand selection, rght of first refusal and block wating a9e in proporion fo the shareholding.

16.2 Bonus shares issued o directors of the Company are il {2023 86 657,902 shares).

2024 2023
[r— Rm"‘ e ——
17 LEASE LIABILITIES

Crpaning balanca 70,899 475 BA, 049, 467
Aciditiong in lease hakbiliied 97,526,882 1,375,281
Changes due to modification = 16,262, 102}
Changes due [ reassessment 15,31E,368 .
Mark-ug on lease liabilities 15,873,501 10,985,762
Lease rentals paid {33,235,932) {24,268,933)
Closing belance 166,382,292 70,800,475

Currenl parion af lease labililies
Mon-curmeni porlion of lease liabilities

149,452 417

{16,883 875) 115,664,5334

5,254 536

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

171 Includes lessa finance faci#y antered into by the Compeny with a8 commercial bank for wehicles amounding o Re.
50,000,000 (2023 Ra_ 115,000,000% out of which Re. 40,394 158 (3023 Rs. 105,265 270 remain unutilized a1 period end,
Lease rentals are payatde in monthly mstallments snd had commenced from September H022

2024 2023
18 LONG TERM FINAMCING - Secured Maote remrmeeees RUPEES e
Izlamic banks
Diminishing Busharaks 16.4 31,250,000 83,750,000
31,250,000 93,750,000
Lesg: current msturty (31,250,000 (62, 500, 000,
- 31|250|mn

18.1 Represents Diminishing Musharaka facility cammpng profit &t the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The
financing is repavable in 38 equal quarterly instaimeants commencang afler a grace perod of 12 manths from the date of
dishursernent e December 2021, Financing & secured by way of Equilable Morlgage over registered office, first
hwpothecation charge over plant, machinery & equipmend, first pand passu charge over receivables of the company and firs
par passu charge by way of constructive morgage charge over lsiamabad office.

2024 2023
Mote T
19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Credilors 12.1 379,255,510 362,775,566
Accrued liabilites 446,423,700 368,661,167
Withhokding Lax payable 44,714,830 17,196,303
O#hers 49,853,037 45,385 551

'BE]H?!MT E14IEI'1 EI.’:GT
181 Inchudes amount payable fo the followimg related parties:

B.D Productions (Private) Limited
Blomina and Dursd Foundalion

36,021,464 -
68,203,007 56,079,451

104,224,561 __56.075,451

20 CONTINGEMCIES AND COMMITMENTS
20,1 Contingencies

There are no contingencies to report in these unconsolidatad financisl statemants except those dieclosed in note 29 to
these uncensalideted financial statemanta.

203 Commitments

2024  Purchase of ielevision programs commilments with M0 Productions (Privabe} Limited - a related pary a5 o June 30,
2024 amounted to Ra, 308368 667 (June 30, 2023: Rs. 258962 000). Commitment for purchase of telewision
programs with other than relsted paries as at Juns 30, 2024 amounted to Re. 980,108.808 (June 30, 2023 s

41 215, ().
2024 2023
Hate semmncanne RUPEEE =-cceeee—
21 REVENUE - nat

Adeerdisemen revenie 5,566,997 201 4 8442208 308
Production revenus 244 357 644 221 648 3856
Digital revenue 167,425,196 A0, 6435, (0
Subscription revenue 2,286,941 831 1,677,330, 185
Fibmi distnbulion réevenig 41,844 171 1,725,568
2115242 B,307,666,130 & 825 556, 345

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

291 Revenue | net off the foliowing Rerms:
Sales lax 40 444,340 722 6B1,112
Trade and wolwme discount 617,472 906 598 ETD 841
1,457,917 246 1,321 .551,853
2.2 Represents revenws from the following geographical regions:
Asia 6,105,672 873 5,172.962,977
America 2,201,993 257 1,652 625,389
B,307 666,130 6,825 566,345
22 COST OF PRODUCTION
Cosl of oulsourced programs 2,200,028 467 1,854 664,603
Cost of in-house programs 355 574 243 1,230,418
Cost of svwanbory consemed 1,061 462 2,000,487
Salaries and benefits 221 1,284, 770,254 1,076, 741,255
Technical advisory fes 222 54,751,500 64 . 751,500
Dieprecation 438 4,032 70,498,731 57,223,159
Travedling and conveyanca 172623208 138 336,274
Ulilities 20,970,205 14, BE3, 487
Rent, rates and taxes ETE, 547 205,538
Inaurance 33,266,219 27,315,856
Repair and maintenance 33,508,118 26,034,116
Fee and subscriplion 7,080,344 4,514,981
Communication 25072393 21,765,697
Security charges 726,000 438,350
AmortEaton 54 1,915,852 B.271.976
Consultancy - 1,166 346
Printing and stalioneny 1,215,245 1,008,477
4,271,058 THE 3,597 BER TEG
In producthion television programe - opening 50,627 650 35460, 250
In prosduction televiston programs - closing (66,855, T95) (50,627,650}
4, 255,030,641 3,582 492 366
Releasad / upreleased programs - apening 432,619,726 d50.229,538
Releasad / unreleased programs - closing (683,641,711} (432,610,726}
4,004,008, 556 3,540 102 528

221 This includes B 33490473 (2023 Bs, 28,765,962) n respect of sEf refiremend benedits.

22.3 Ropresents fee paid io a Direclor for technical advisory services rendensd in berms of the 2chnical advisory agresment
duly approwed by the Board of Derectors of the Company.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

23 DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Advartizament and promotion
Salaries and banefils
Trawvelling and conwveyance
Rend, rabes and taxes
LiHinities

Depreciaton
Communicalion

Insuranca

Rapair and maintanance
Fees and subsoriplion
Printing and stationeny

MNote

231

438452

il ] 2023

wmnnnnmens RIS e nn——
260,980,311 179,032,045
211,036,492 180,243,803
30,666,581 28,135,827
- 532,297
3,079,048 2,890,633
11,024,675 9,096,867
B3, 193 474,255
4,509,124 3,688,871
1,315,656 2461343
Q50,040 1,120,873
B17,960 1,546,798
525,217,080 409 427 716

231 This mcledes Bs. 8527 681 (2023 BE. T,889,125) in respect of stall retirerment Banedits

24 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits
Diepracialion

Amodisation

Repair and maintenance
Cammunication

Traweling and conveganos

Fee and subscrption

LHilibies

Legal and professional charges
Printing, staticnery and pariodicals
Renl, rales and laxes
Ingurance

Auditors remuneration
Security charges

Cionation

Mote

241
438452
o

24.2

M43E24

2024

Ee

2023

et H]jpui AFAL LA

24.1 Thiz ieclisdes RBs 9186 396 (2023 Rg. 7 030,04.3) in respact of staff retirement benefits.

24.2 Auditor's remuneration

HAudil fes for uncomscfidated financial stalements

Al Nise for congolidaled financial stalements

Fes for half yearly revisw

Tax and other assurance serdices

Chd of pochel eapenses and Sindh sales 1ax on serdces

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

546,281,058 475 677 349
61,018,804 42,508 527
307,853 BE3.639
67.239,122 53,483 407
5,850,853 ¥,.262 502
89,838,276 GE, 565, 845
12,144,499 13.579. 225
66,841,289 47,703,555
21,798,132 28,071,062
8,255,301 11,145,315
618,683 8,061,102
9,978,520 7457 705
8,544,793 G 480,533
12,806,811 8,284,141
77,548,097 106,230,292
9!U=1 Eﬂlﬂ!'l B85, 554, 383

2024 2023
R - . 7 S
2,328,750 2,025,000
853,875 742,500
698,625 BO7, 500
3,693,840 2,200,000
969,603 205,533
8,544,793 £ ,480,533




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Daonabion enciedes the following donees i whom donations excesd 10% of total donalon or Bs, 1 millice;

24,3

25

55 Garden
Momina and Duraid Foundalion

2024 2023
———eees RUPEEE -
1,100,000
75,223,087 105,655,292
76,323,097 10:5, 655,292

Reciplents of donations do not include any donee in which any director ar 12 spouses had any Inferes! exceapt for
denation paid ta Momina and Duraid Foundation. Fallowing direciors af ihe compamy ane lso brusiees of e said nest

- Mr. Duraid Cureshi
- BAg. Sultana Sicdigis

OTHER INCOME

Incomea from financial assets

Prodit on deposit gocounts

Exchangs gain - nel

Diiviclesnd lrome

Interest | mark-up income

drrinrisalion of governmenl gram

Unreslised gain on revaluation of imvestments
Gakn on redemnption | sale of invesimenls

Income from non financial assats

Gam on disposal of cperating fleed assets - net

Reversal of expecied credil loss
Liabdities no longer payable - written off
Management fes from redated party
Sale af canten and festival inmorme
Sundry income

OTHER EXPENSES | CHARGES

Allswiance for expected credt loss
Exchange loss - nel
Linrealised Ioss an revaluation of imesiments

FINAMCE COSTS

Mark-up an loag term financing
Mark-up on shert tarm bomowings
Mark-up on hease Babilities

Bank charges

2024 2023

Motg mamememnae RUPEES s

81,308,456 56,453,532

. 293,418,532

13,390,909 58,931,534

- 7,128,948

- 478,147
31,733,646 -

6,772,018 27 660,465

243,214,119 444 069,258

4.4 3,170,318 936,087

10.1 - 52,745,517

54,741,167 948,671,515

76,230,000 7.511,340

38,404,287 14,546,062

24,859,214 10,710,530

197 404,986 185,121 961

410,619,105 629,191,215

10.1 & 14.5 21,737,539

93,323,181 z
- 7,320,895
115,060,720 7,320,895
16,379,996 34 506,149
. 48,402
17 15,873 504 10,995,762
3,387 826 458,793
15,641,323 46,059,106
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

28 LEVIES - FINAL TAX

28.1 This represents final taxes peid under section 5 (tex on dividend) and 1544 (export of sendces) of Income Tax Ordinancs,
2001, represanting leves in lammns of requirements of IFRIC 21 7 IAS 37 (also sea ndle 3.7.3),

2024 20E3
(Restated)
e [RLpEES

29 INCOME TAX
Current 288,851,435 181,732,978
Deferred (14, 005,054) BT, 952 265
Prior (12,470, 454) 3,552 814

262,375 93T 253, 188 067

28.1 Relationship between accounting profit and tax expensea
Predit before incorme e and [eves 2.927,073,108 2,430 816 535
Tax &t the applcable rate B48,851,201 TOT S48 882
Tax effects of:

Tax at reducad rate (1,245,335) (4,563 977}
Income subject to fmal fax regime (E618,481,923) (445,632 .559)
Effect of levies (54,105 424) [57 260, 204)
Prowision for super tax 86,388,777 a5, Fa7 467
Prior year tax (rewarsal} [ charge (12,470, 454) 3,552 814
rhars 3,443,085 (36,072, 366)
262 375,927 253,288 057
Effaclive % E: 10%

29.2  The retumn of income for the tex year 2023 has been filed by the Company which is deamead to be sn assassment under
the provesions of section 120 of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001,

28,3 During e year 2017, Depuly Commissionss nland Reverms: isansd o show e nofics o e Comgany, Tor the tax
vear 2014, showing his intention bo disallow the deduction claimed on account of agency commission on alleged non-
deduction of tax on such agency commession. The Company filed a suit before the Hon'ble High Court of Sindh
chabenging the above showeauss nobice,
Based on a recont judgemeant of tha Hon'ble Supreme Court of Pakistan, suits filed by taxpayars are not to be mairtained
unless 500 of the tax due & deposited by the patitoners, In complance 1o the above order, the Company has deposited
an amount af Bs, 24 355012 Into the Gowemment treasury. The decision in respect of the Suit fled by the Company is
slill pending. The management. based an the legal advice, is confident that the ulimale oulcorme will be in faver of the
Company and accoedingly, no provision has bean made in this respect in thess unconscidated financsal stataments.

29.4 Durirg B year ended 30 June 2022, e Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) Bsued show-Cause nolice dabed 15 May

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

2022 wheraby hs had raised cerain guenea relating to tax year 2017, In response, the Company filed sxplanation along-
with documentary evidence. The Cornrmissioner inland Revenue [(CIR) being dissatsfed with the response of the

Company, lssued an order under Section 122(1) of e Ordinance whereby lax demand of Bs, 771,644 257 has been

raised, Whike the Company’s appeal was panding before the Commissioner Inland Revenua (Appeals) for Tax Year 2017
but the deparbment was seeking to recover the outstanding tax Therefore the Comparny filed a petition before the

Honorable High Court of Sindh for ssuance of 3 stay order. Subssguent 1o the year end, on T July 202, the Company

recaivad a slay order on e malter and e cage s pending bafore the Commassionar Inland Fevenue (Appeals), The

management, basad on the legal adwvice, & confident that the wtimate outcome will be in favor of the Company and

accondingly, mo prowiskion has been made in thes respect in these unconsoldated financisd statements.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
MNote sesssssees  FUPRRE s————
30 EARNINGS PER SHARE - basle and diluted
Profil for the year 2,610,581, 757 2,148 238 574
- ... ]
Waighted averags numiber of ondinany shares
oubstanding during e year 50,1 1,124,000,000 1,134,000.000
_—
Earnings per share (Rupes) 2.30 1.90

0.1 Thara & e dikkive effect on the basic eamings per ehare of the Comipany

2024 2023
Mate RUpgif =—————
3 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before income tax and evies 2,927,073, 108 2438 816835
Adjustments for;
Depreciaticon 4384562 142,542,210 108 828,553
Arnartisation 5.1 2,223 705 7,135,815
Finance costs ar 35,641,323 46,050,106
Exchangs lnss | {gain] - net 26 & 25 93,323 181 (293 418 832)
Profit on deposil accounis 25 {81,308, 456) (56,453 532)
Gain on desposzal of oparating fixed assats 25 (3,170, 318) (336,087
Gain an redemplion [ sale of nvestments 25 (6,772 018) (27 660 465)
Dividend income 25 (93,3090 0] (58,031 534)
Amariisation of gowvarmmaeni grant 25 - (478,147
Allowance for expected credt bss 5 21,737,539
Unrealized (gain) ! loss on revaluation of investmeants 25 & 26 {31,733, 646 7,320,895
79,083 521 (268 534 038)
(Increase) | decrease in current assels
Imientoriss (7.7090,036) [BE 328)
Curmant portion of elevision program costs 4,251,493 4,517,281
Trade debts (427.803,171) (155,234, 563)
Advances (115,633,211) (45,913,501)
Trade deposts and shom lem prepayments (21,018,120} (3,743 845)
Oiher recetvables {1,237,228,T57) (1,575,471, 190)
{1,825, 183,802) (1.776,424 064)
Increase | (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and cihar payables 106,228 480 (403 B84 S48)
Contract Rability (11,444 405) 12,144,815
1,275,756, 822 3,025,002

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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- REMURERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, MRECTORE AND EXECUTIVES

Uk ik
Lt Exatislive Mo Emie e " Criel Exmcadive Huork Exstulies 5

Execilive Dipgonar Mot o e Extoasting Déredor Derachen .
Pammg Enal T P 42 9715 3§ - - 56, 3T 55D AT S - - Pl L |
Tuwchracal sabamory T - 54, M50 500 - - . 54,751, 500 - -
Fiia: . ' 5000 040 . - 3920000
Bepras AT, For AR - TR 184, 35,714 184,350,204 J -
Fafremant beneliy . . b ERACE IR i * - VA EGE G
Heizsa ranl 18,544 B85 - - 137,508, 14T LIS LN L w182
it £, 1 < F TE T, 35 LR - - i N3 BiEE
e T e T LTET 184 ' “ 51,568 347 2076798 0. 500 0D . 30,20 E,
FLed ars carsspancs 2A7EER B 04 A1 A,7 R 0RG - . Br Al Rk AT AT -

MI!EI EE!:E!T h?EEI.E 1, 3Hd ??'.IﬁI?E ﬂ'li k] AT AT AR O
Marnbss 1 i IE 1 ! i é

3z

rembusement of Expenses reloled o busness Favel

33

TRAMSAC TIOMS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The chdal mescitve and cefsn aeetilfenk are asa presdded odih s ke ol Compary meimened cors I acoordancs with e Compery'e polcy sl

Foatated paisc of e Com pary codmpitie subaldaiaes, asiooiabe! companiss, ainement unds, Srecioes and key rmanagimanl pirsonmsl. Dataibt of Fefkadiors
il reinled partiss dusing The ear, other fhan thoss ‘which hpee besn discipse d sl sewhiem in thess unoorsoéidated foancisl sfabe ments ans as folicws

Ralatonakip
Bul=sidiarss

Agsoclaied Companies

Cihars

Mature of trarmactions

Expenges nadd on hehall of thie Company
Expmsinga puit! on batuall of the subelary
Payrman] rocotied on boqall of subsidiary
Fayman recshied on bemall of ths Comparny
Wanagemani s

Amound paid on SBehat! of the Compeey
PFrofessional or promobona! seraces acgared
Eushsacripbion |noome

Purishizin of lakessnn geoogas iyghts
Paymrents recsived durmg the y=ar
Purchasses ol tdavishon programe rigas
Faymanits made dunng the yoar

Contribusion 4o the provicent hied

| 23
el 1] 11 1 B
211,138,885 13,561,069
8,608 951 28 529 1 5F
31,471,706 P2 TS
2,097, 560,706 1. 490EAT, 704
76,250,000 751,340
TrASTAND 0 E3A,081
o A RA% 000
24,061,418 34 015,85
1,511,798 -
S, ATEAT2 -
150,003,534 1,97 200,000
1. B16,827 568 1,883.774,343
S1,164.000 &4 505150

Al transactiors with refalsd partiss ars emsrssd nhe of agresd s duly approwved by the Beard of Direciors of the Compary. The oulstanding seceivabie ard
payahle balanmes of thi reialed pardes ane dscloaod in Fer Mapend s nokEs 1o hase unoensoldaied inancal sements

S.Ha.

el B S N~ B ARE S

Campany Bama

Skvine Fublcatiors {Presfe] Linsled
HLE TV g

HLEd Hitwois FZLLE

HUF Matwork LI Listid

HLFdM a0 (Privale b Lim e

Tireesr Epoirts (Privahe) Limilsd

HU Wl ¢ Privatin) Lisimad
TEAFZLLE

MO Produckans (Prvale) Limied
Kimine & Duraid Sl (Prbiaka) Limiied
WA et @] D] Foia dRsan

HLE Metwori Limiss- Employess’ Proscem Fund
k. Bukana SEnw

hir_ Pebazhar il Hag Skddlinu

b, Cyrasd CJomsnihi

W Shuraid Oursshl

Wirs. Mahiab fikibar Raseadi

L1 e (R Al e Wald

k. Mubammisd b Younoe Adhi
kY. Sohall Anzar

k. Khush bokht Shusal

Folloawing are the refaied partiss with whom the Comparns ned emensd inno iransactons or have ormangsmenis | appsemanls in clace:

Basis ol assocathen

Euhbskkany
Hubgidiary
Buhsidary
Subzidary
Subsklary
Bubisiskany
Bubekbary
ndirecl Subsddiary
Bazrataatod campaig (3211}
Asscecialad fonpeny (33 7,1)
Assccmsted compeny (ELT1)
Restrement Fund
[T
Cracior
Diracior
Diractior
[w{{TeC
Diracior
Ciracior
Diraoior
Chracior

3¥1.4 Tress entilies are assoecabed companiss. [ onderakongs of e Cormpany in acoordance with the reaquirssnent ol Compandes &b 2097

33z

Hame

M TV Ine

HUN Wetwork FE LLT
TEIFEZLLE

HUM Metwork LK Limlie®

Subsidiaries Incorporated outside Pakistan:

ELE
REE]

Bdnin o the ey gamait

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

il Foad mevy
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Agpregate i of
sharuhalding

A00%
00
s
A00%
100%
00
To%

1.01%

47.41%

Eoundry of Incorporation
Lindad Bigles of Smanioa
Unibad &eah Emicstas
Uniisd Aot Emirates
Uniled Kingodam

welh the Comipersy olhar e ths smpoprsn donlmcd

s iments cul of proyiden] Saed hves been made 5 acoordsnoe with T provisons. of Segdion 2F0 of the At snd The regubstiprs. lormolmiss for ths pomoss



NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35.1

35.2

2024 2023
MNote Rupees
FIMAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Financial assels at amorlised cost
- Secunty deposite r 31,787,351 28,222 351
- Trade debis 10 3,100,150, 777 Z,688 381,940
Trade depoais 13 1,364,500 1,364,500
Drtressr recaliwables 14 2,726,217 .,541 1,612,338 102
Cash and bank balances 13 748,140,168 447,786,769

£,607,660,337 4 77a 103,662

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Short berm invesimenis LN —1,063.444,008 582,143,281

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

Fimancial lkabilities at amortised cost

Long tesm financing 18 31,250,000 83,750,000
- Lease Liabilities 17 166,382,202 F0,889.475
- Trade and other peyables 19 875,532,247 THE, B22 204
Accrued mark-up 109,056 218 809
Unelaimed dividand 6. 066,898 5,153,603
Urngnaid divichond 740, 472 1,374,738

!!EEEIEEEEEE EHEIE1§Ia12
FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's acliviles expose i 1o a vansly of financial risks Le. markel risk {ncuding curency rsk, mlerest rate nsk
and price rsk), credil sk and liguadity risk. The Company's owersll nsk manrsgemsent program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and soeks o minimise poiential adverse effects on the Compamy's finamcial
pesformance,

The Company's seniod management oversess (he management of these risks. The Company's senior management
provides polides for overall rsk managemeant, as well &3 policles covering apecific areas such as foreign exchange sk,
interast rate risk and cradit risk, use of financial dervatives, financial instruments and investmant of excess liqguidiy. Itis
thex Company’s policy that no trading in dedvadives for speculative purposas shall be undertaken,

The Board of Ceéreciors review and ageres poficies for managing each of thesa riske which are summarn zed below:

Market risk

Marked risk i the risk hal Tair value of fulure cash Rows will Neciuate because of changas in markel prices, Market
FII"IEEE. COMmgrse threeg 15..';:1!-5 of risk meresl rate risk, Curmemcy' rigk and BOURY prln::e fAsk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk (& the rigk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of financial mstrurments will flucheate because of
changes in the market mtarast rates. The Company's interest rate rsk anses from kong Serm Fnancing, fnance lease
obdigations, shart ferm borrowings and bank balances. The Company manages these risks through risk manssgement
slrategies.

Sensitivity analysis:

The Tollowing figures dermansirate the sensilivilty 1o a reasonably possible change n inlerest rade, with all alkber
variables held constant, of the Company's prodit before taxaton:

croase | . .
dlill'.!::iii in basis B o
before taxaticn
points
Rupees
June 30, 2024 +100 8,648,117
-100 18.648.117]
Jure 30, 2023 +100 & 2dd D58
=100 (4 244 036}

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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383 Correnoy risk

Foreign curmanay risk is the sk that the value of financia® assets ar financiad liabiites il fucuate due 10 a change in foreign exchange
ralas, |L arses mainly where receivables and payables exist due (o transactions n foregn currencies. The Compamny's expasune 1o [onign
cirrency rigk o as folkows

- June H, 2024 —— mm— Jibive 30, 202 ——m
s Daltar GRP AED LIS Dallar GEP AED
Trada dabks 454 406 FhEBRD 4548 404 298650 -
CHher recetvabivs 100,808 - 33,300,667 19808 - 18, /596 591
Trade ard alher payaiies * + 4 (85,000 ) £ *
FIIJPEII Ssassiass FYT= PP HHFI“ rre—
Clasing exchange rales PRl b 451,53 TE23 2E5 S o4 14 77,686

Sansitivity analysis:
The olowing labks demonsirates the sensitivity 3o a reasonably possible chanpe in the AED USD and GEP suchange rales, with al othar
varables hald corstant, of the Company's polil befare lamation:

Change in Effect on Effect on
eecin  paiion S o CIALD S st
rate (%ak Lax Lax
es RUpREE == cos RABPHGR -as = RUpeaE =
June H, 3024 +10 17,968,532 +10 10,459,514 +10 258,054,625
-1 (17,058,533) Al [10,450.814) =11 {250,054, 625)
June 30, 2023 +10 16,021,560 +10 10,878, 461 +10 133 B2 506
-0 (16,021, 5600 -0 (10876 4611 -0 1153, B25.596]

354 Equity price risk

The Company's rivesimenis are susceplible 1o maked price risk arising from uncefainlies aboud fulwrs vaiues of irestmeant Securiss,
Tha Company mansges e agity price risk frough dversificaticn and placing imils on individua! and 1eal nvestmanis, Reports on ihe
inwesiments porticlo sre submified to the Company's senikor management on & regular beeis

Az of The glatement of inancia! posilicn dats, s axdposune Do rveabmants & falr valoe heough peofl of loas was Re, 1,062 444 008 (2023:
R, 5B4,143,291)

355  Cradit risk

Cradd risk = e risk which arises with e possiblity that ane parly o a mancial instroment will il o d=chage 115 obligation and cause
lhe oifier party ta incur a fmancial bss. Concentration of credi rigk ansea whean & number of counerparies are sngaged in simedlar business
adtivities or hava simBar economic feabures that would cauge thair sisty fo meet congrachaal obdigations 3o e amilady affectad by changas
In @conomic, pobtcal or athaer conditiones, Concentrations of cradf rek ndicala the redative sensitivity of the Company's performanca o
oevelopments affecting o paricular indusirg.

Management of credif risk

Tha Company's pobcy i o anier nto fnancial conlracs in accordance with this puideknes et by the Board of Diracione and oiher Inkermal
pulElnes

Credd nsk s managed and controlied by the managament of the Company in the follosing manners

= Credf rafmg and / ar credi worthiness of the courderparty = teken inta accound alang with the firanoal background so as to minimes the
risk of defEull

- The risk of counbarparty arposune dus io falod agrasmants causing @ loss 1o the Company ks mitigatad by a periodic resew of thelr credi
ratings. fimancal staiemants, credit worthiness and market infarmaticn an a regular basis.

- Cash is held with regutabie banks anly,

fz of tha unconsalidated statemant of financial posticn dage, the Company |5 axposed o credi fsk on e olomng asseis:

2l2d HZ3

e el 111121211
- Security deposils b B | 28,202 351
- Trade debis 3.100,150, 77T 2,588 381 940
- Sharl barm ivesiments A elE, 444 008 089,143,291
T Trade deposits 1,364,500 1,384, 500
- Diher receivailes 2,726,117 541 1,612, 338,102
- [Eank balances 74T 126,378 446,513 643

7,869, 190,556 5,366,353 827
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

35.6

CQuality of financlal assats

The cradit quality of linancial asssts can be assessed by reference o exiemal credil ralings o to Rslarical information about
counterparty default rates:

2034 2023
Hm - HUNH! mmmmEmrre
Bank balances
Ads - 2 362 575
Aubt - 211,048 650
A . 218,474,872
A . 15,007 445
B+ 729,904 111 -
b 17,321, 848 ;
a1 430 -
15 TaT 3 416,513 543
Shori berm investments
Mutug funde
L 136,544,051
At 175.300.000 .
AT TT4,920 53 264 537
AT 251,026 5 067,356
AAdl 185,978,600 20,668, 00
Al 556,303,403 B4 BED, D48
Af- &,001,318 "
Mar-rated - 85, 107, 259
1,062 244 008 OAT 585 153
Tam finance cedificata i . 21,148 1548
v leeasions, __SOTHZNT
Liguidity rishk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not bs abla to mest its financial obiigations as thay fall due, Tha Company
applies prodent risk management policies by maintaining suflicient cash and bank balances and by keeping commitied credit
lines.

The lable below summarzes tha maturty profide of the Company's finencisl liabilities as at thea following regarting dates:

Less than 3

2024 O dhern and A 3 i 12 months 1 to 5 years Tatal
- Ru“-; [——

Lease Liakdlias - 4 FFF 469 12,667 406 140 £02 417 166,382,252
Long termm financing - - 31,250,000 . 31,250,000
Frada and othsar payables 406 ITE.TIT 1688, 311,415 200, 044 005 - 875,532 247
Unciaimead dividand 6,066 BDE - - - 6,066, B06
Linpaid divigend 40,472 - - - TaD4T2
Accrued mark-up 109,056 109, 056
Eﬂéiﬁym %% EE%EE!EEHH 48, gﬂf 1,050,080,863

2023 On demand L-:n:::: 3 wizmontns  1to B years Total

RUpBEE -

Lease Liabdilies : A.T81.138 11, BE3.803 56 234 518 TOBE2AT5
Long term financing E 15,625,000 &G, 75,000 31,250,000 O, 750, 00
Trisie and ather payables 434 D48 T8 161,054 257 200,821,309 - TOE 622,204
Linclaimed dividend 6.153.603 - - - &,153,603
Unpaid dividend 1.374 738 - - - 1,374,733
Ancried mark-up 218,605 - - - 218,609
441 T3 B7E 1E1 383 253 5R0 112 g6 48B4 536 968 218 819

s it e ) e i ol St v e m i i
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

J5.6.1 Changes in Habilitles from financing activities

=Jdul-23 Gash Flows Maw leasas Crthars M-fun-24
- Rupess
Long term financing 93, 750,000 62,500,000 = - 31,250,000
Lease Liabilities 70,858 475 {33,215 832) a7 526,882 31,181,867 166,342,292
1=Jul-22 Cash Flows Hew lpasoes Others Al=Jun=23
ssmsmsassmmmmmnEs Rw
Long tarm financing 372 936 964 {278,186, 964} - = 3,750,000
Lesasar Liabilities 09,049 467 {24, 256,933) 1,375,281 4,733,880 7.B99.475

A5.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying values ol all financlial assels and Eabilites reflected in the unconsobdated francial staterments appropriale their
falr values.

35.7  Capitad risk

The Company fimances iz operadions through equity, borrowings and managemeant of working capital with a view of
maintaining an approprate mix belwesn variows sources of finance to minimize sk, The primary objective of the Comgany's
capital managament lg to ensure that 1 malntaing healthy caplted ratios In order 1o support ts business sustain fulure
development and maximize sharsholders' valee, The Company menitors capital using a debt equity ratio &5 follows:

Hiad 2023
Rupees

Mote S

Leasa Liabilibes 17 149,492 417 85, 234, 536
Long tarm financing 16 - 3,250,000
fccruad mark-up 109,056 218,809
Current portion of long borm lease liabdities 17 16,889 875 15,664,939
Curreni porlion of lang berm firsncng 1E 31,250,000 62,500 040
Total debt 187,741,348 1684 855,284
Share capital 16 1,134,000,000 || 1.134.000,000
UnEIl:ﬂrl:Ipl'Imad |:-r1:d|t 8,722,458 137 G, 111, 864,380
Todal equily 9,656 458 137 T.245 Bfi4 3480
Total delst and equity 10,054,107 485 TAT0,TI2 654
Gearing ratio 1.57% 2.22%

A58  Falr value messurament

Fair walue is lhe price hal would be received b sell an assel or paid o iranster a Rability in an ordedy ransaction belweaen
market participants at the measurement dete

The carrying values of @l fingncaal sssels and liabiliies reflecied in the inancial stalements approsgmate lair values,
The foloaing 1abke shows sceels recognized ab fas value, analysed balasen (hose whose falr value (s baged on:

Leved 10 Quoled prices in aclive markels for identical aszets or liabiliiea;

Level 2 Thosa invotving mputs ofher than guated prices included in Leved 1 that are obsenvable for the assat or liahility, either
direcily (as prices) or indirectly (derived fram prices), and

Level 3: Those whose inputs for the aseat or liability that are not based on cbearvable market deta {unobservalla inputs),
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

J6.1

ar

Asaets measured af talr value

204
Level 3
(Rupeas)

175,300,000 BET, 144,008 £ 1,062 444, 0103 239,143 291

During the year, there were no ansfers betaeen level 1 and level 2 fair value messurements, and no ansfers indo and out of level 3 far
wakiE measirement,

Lewef 1 Lewel 2 Todal

Shiort tesmn irvestmients

Firarsszal instrumenls which s iradable in an ogen mackal are revalusd al the markel prices prevailing on e slatamenl ol Snancial
posilian dils.

OFERATING SEGMENTS

For managemsant puposas, the Company has detenmened Iodoweng reportable cperatng sagmards on tha basle of areas of operaticns
l.a. antarEnmant and rEws.

Entermnmant segment & engaged N advertisement, entedainment and madia markating,

Mawes sagments B angapsd in DMAncaEssng o NBWE IMMFRME

Entartainmant Hews Toidal
2024 2023 2024 2023 Had 203

Rawvanie
Mot revenua rom axiema

customer L3433 _ SOZASHISA __ 9SQURGRT _1Z030:4080 _ BI0TEE6II0. _RAZSSHROME,
Rosult
Segment prafit / (loss} a,728 466,326 2324 paY 472 (74,190,185} 428 d6F SR 3,687,276, 437 2,749 250, Da0
Taxation (316,481, 351) (280 578 261)
Unalkacabad incomes !

[EEpsanEag)
Adminiatraliea sepsinges (R0, T30, 091) (HiEh 354 H1)
CthRr axpenses ¢ charges (115,060,720) (7. 320.89%5)
Cither moamss 440,619,108 629,191,219
Finanoe cost {35,641,323) {45, 055, 108)
Prafit for the yoar 2 010,891,757 L N LT
Othar imformation
BrnpriEatian (1,713,058} (3,564, 024d) (510649 (3,551.791} [2,223,705) [7,135,615)
Depreciation {86, 308, 1400 155 2053 91 Eggnrgl !53&95.?&2; !1Q!M§1ﬂ! EEI:IS!EE-E-.H:I-!
Segmang assens 588,031,236 5EG,.BOG, B2 BTa, 21]55’22‘ E3D.213.836 1,465,237 150 1 A06,098, 757
Ungliacabad bsseis s 3,531,294 907 6 53 B84 458

Captsl axpandiung

Segment labililas

MMMMWW

:-Illmlﬂﬂ 1;:"&?";1 Tt 4!#35!1!- a3 210 A7E Eliﬂlﬂﬂ 2303451 ?’E
347,393,509 Ja5, 718,643 132 682,415 ErTddn 1H 1,140,075 %28 1013, 30 B d

Fevanue from threa majer customars of tha Company during the year constiutad 675, (3023 574 of 1ha total revenie

HUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total rumbar of employess and average number of employees a2 year end and dunng the year respectively are as folows:

Todad musmber of amplogaes

Average numbrer of employess duding he year

2024 033
T5h 71
Td3 E2E
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

F- GENERAL

181 Coresponding figures have been rearanged and redassified, whersver necessary. Howeves, other than thome disclosed in thess
unconsoidated linancal slalements, fere were no signilican] reciassifications 1o reponl

382 Figuras have been rounded off to tha nearast Ruper
) DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

Thase financal statemants have baen suthorised for issis on Oclober (41h, 2024 by the Board of Directors of 1ha GCompaeny,

- ._’_:3. - :I'i I-'
(e e
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAG SIDDIGUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Direstor Chief Financial Officer

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




THIS PAGE |5 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

1‘ e



CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e _



Building a better
working world

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consoclidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We havs audited the annaxad consclidated fimancial statemants ol Hum Network Limited {the Holding Company) and its subsidiarnias
(the Growp), which compaise the consolidated statement of financial posilion a3 at 30 June 2024, and the consolidated ststamant of
pradit or loss, eonsolidated platemenl of comprahansiva ingoms, the consolidalad staiamen of dranges i aquity, he consalidalad
statarmend of cash Bows for fha year then andad and notas ta the consobgatad linancial statamentz. including matarial accounting
podicy information and othar explanstory information,

In our opinian, gonsalidated hnanciad statamoss ghea & Bee and laif Gew of the consalidatad linandal pesitien al the Group as a1 30
June M24, and of #e consolidated financial performance and its conscidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordancs with
thi accounbng &nd repening standards as applicabla in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

Wi conductid pur audit in accordancs wih Inematicnal Standards an Auditing 1SAs) &5 applicabie in Pakstan. Our msponsibliies
unias those standards are further described in the Suditer’s Responsibilifies for the Audit of the Corsolidated Fmancial Siatemanis
saction of our report. We gre iIndependent of the Group in accordance with the Intematonal Ethice Standards Board for Accountans
Code of Efdes for Prodessional Accoumants as adopted by the Instinne of Chanered Accourtants of Pakistan fihe Code), and we
havie lulflied our ofthaer athical responsibifties in accordance with the Code, We ballave that the audd svidence wes have obtainaed is
sufficlant and approprate to provide a basie for our opirdon,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are thoss matters thet. in owr professional jJudgment, were of most significance in ouwr audst of the consolidatsd
finencial statements of the current yess, These matters wers addressed in the comext of our audd of the consalidated finencial stalemants
a5 a whole, and in lerming ouf opinion thefeon, and wo do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key Audit Malters:

Hay audit matiers

Koy audit matter How the matter was addressod in our awdi

1. Acquisition - purchase price allocation [TWS)

Churing the yesr ended 30 June 2023, the Group acguired
100% sharehoiding in Towar Spots (Private) Limited {TWS)
for Rs. 150 millpn. This fransacion resufed in tha recognition
aof provissonal goodw i amounting 1o Re. 125 million, panding
allogation of the purchase prce ("PFAT 10 he assels and
liabiities acquired. In acoordance with IFFRS 3, the final allocafion
of they purchase price must be finalizad within & period of twalve
madtihig fellewing the date on which contral was abitainaed. In
thar curranl year,

PP& axarcize hae been complatied which resulled o the
recogrition of gocsdedl and Intangibles amounting 1o Rs. 107.2
millign and Rs. 178 mifion respectivetly, The 2083 comgarativa
infiormation has bean restated to reflect tha adjustmant to tha
provissonal amournts.

Wa have gdetermined this to ba a key audit matier bacawsa
tha accounting tor PR of this acousalon required 2 slgnifican
amounl ol management sstimalier. The significant managema
judgmant and sstimates imalved in the PRA exantse mainky
relate 1o the determination of the fair value of the acquired
azaels, padicuiarly goodwil and intangibles acquired as a
rasult of the atquisition

We read the purchesa agreement 1o geln an understanding
ol B ey beerns and conditians,

W= angagad our internal valuabion apacialist fo assist us in
reviewing Ihe managemenl’s valuation mathodologhes and
assissag the key assumplions and inputs used in mrasunng
the fair value of intangiblea asset acquirad.

Wi assassad the sompetance of both intermat and axtemal
gpeciallsis and the objectivity and mdependence of axtamal

speciaiets, to consider whethar they were sbpropriately gqualifisd
fo cary out the valuation,

We essessed the veluation model, the exicess sarnings
projectionsg. and e Key assemplions used in the catulalion
of the imtangible agset's fair valua,

We mseecsed the adequacy al the dislogess in ascordanse
with the applicable fnarcial reporting standards

2.Met realizabla value of televislon program costs

Az at the year end. the balance of 1elevislon program costs
amounied 1o As, 7E0,427 506 (30 Jene 2023: 483,447 376)
which reprasents unamontized cost of compéstad television
pregrams and telavision progrems in produection

A5 par the accounting policy of fhe Holding Company, etewsaon
program cosls are charged bo expenas based on the ratio ol
Bl rriued aurned Gl dite lo bodal revenuas to be aarmed
frzm the program including future estimated revanuas, laes
cost expansad in pror years on an indtvidual program besis,

Cwur audlt procedunes amangst athers, comprised reviewing
thiz approprsieness of the ascounting policy of thie Haolding
Coempany’ In sccordance with the apoiicable financial reporting
standands. Further, we oblained understanding of the revens
astimalion and amarbeation prosess ol fhe Holding Company,

in this regard, we sslected a sample of betevision programs
and considarad the laglors Used by e managaemant lar
ravanus astimation and amodizatan of telavision program
cost inguding:

. histaric axparance of revenus eaxrned by similar
programs;
- ratings of the program fram avallagble evidences;
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Fodlciasniy mre e Koy Audil Bathers

Hay sudit matter

ey audit maier How the matter was addressed in our audi

Alocation of 1elavigion program costs ovar several accounting
pariods Invelves estimation of fulure revenues by the
ranaperieed, We have identilied (his ared as key audil rmgtier
due t the significance ol the sstmation and the amount o
audit efforts in redstion to this area.

Aafer notes 3.4, & and 22 to the consolidated financeal
siataments

] retes used by the Hodding Company and its fluctuaton
baped on the trand analyals, and
# whee also congsgerned subsequent evants which may

hawa an impact on unamortized cost

We also avalumted whethar adequate dissiasures have baen
mads in the accompanying consolidated financial statemants
in geoordance with the applicable linancial reporting standards.

3. Revenue recognition

{Aetar note 311 and 29 to the accompenying consalidated
finaneinl stalamants)

The Group eams revanue from & varety ot esurcas among
the diferent business aneas of which 5% pertaing (o revenus
from advartisamants and subscriptions.

As reporied in the explanalory nofes, revenuas fram
advartisaman ase recognized al the fima of the appearance
of the advertisemant and subscriplion mcoma is recognized
in thie maath In which sarvice ls rendaad.

W corcluded that this area constiules a key audit matter for
the Group consiienng the significance of the emount, it b=ing
a kay pardpmmance indcsor and aiso the increasa ol 15% and

We obtained an understsnding of the Group's processes in
place for revenue racognition gnd lesled Ray conirals over
aach significan! ravanue siraam,

We mspacted a sampés of conlracts to check thal revenia
recognition was in accordance with the contmact termes and tha
Giroup’s revenue recogniticn poicies

‘Wa performed anafyticad mviaw procedures and oftes tast of
datails ower ravenus including cul-off procedures to check that
revenie has been recagnised in the approprizie accounting
parind,

We assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in
aconrdancn with the applicable linancial meportng skandartds,

6% in advertizement and subscription incoma as compared
te the peior year respeclively.

information Other than the Consalidated Financisl Slalements and Auvditors' Reporl Thereon

Managamant ie responeios for the other informabion. The othar inlormation comprises the information incleded in the Anneal Report,
but does nat Includs he consalldated linancial statemernts and our auditong' repor tharean.

Clur opinion on tha conseddatad Fnancial stetamants doss nod cover the althar information and wa do not sxprass any lorm of Sss0rance
conclusion fhensan

I commaction with our awdit of the conschdated financial statements, our responsibility ks 1o read the other infosmalion and, i doing
50, consider whelher the olher information s matedally inconststent with the consotidated linancial statements o our knowledge
obtained in the audlt or otherwiss appears o b m.-'ql:-ur:iﬂ"l misstalod. W, based on e work W hawe parfarmed, wa conclude that
thara i3 a matanal misstabement of this cther information, we ara requirad 1o report that fast We have nothing to report in this regand

Responsibiliies of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Manageament is respansibde for the preparation and falr pressntation of the coneofidated financial stetamants in acoordance with the
acoountirg and reporing standards o applicable in Pakisten ard Companies A, 2017 and lor sach ntermal conlral 85 managament
datarmises is necassany 1o #sabils the praparation of consolidaled financial statements that ara free from maderia! misstatamant,
whather due to fraud or error
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In praparang the conscddated financial slatements, managemen & responsible for gsassing the Group's ability to corfinue as & going
congeny, duclosing, &5 appicable, matiens refated b golng concern and Using the geing concetm basks af acoountng ursss managemeant
gither intands 1o liguidate the Group or to coease operations, or has no realistic altarmative but 1o do so

The Baard of Direclors are responsibis fof oversesing the Group's financial reparling process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Auwdit of the Consclidated Financial Statemenis

Cwr objectvies ara o obiain reazonable assurancd aboul whedhar the consolidsied financial slalerments a5 & whole are trea from
matarial messtaiement. whather dus io fraud or emor, and 1o issue an auditor's report that Includes our opmion, Reasonable asswance
ls & high leval of assurance, but (5 nol a guereries that an awdl conducted in accordance with 1545 as applicable in Paklstan wil
atways datedl & matisnal misstalamant whan o exisls. Misslidemants clin arise lrom Faud of emror and are considened maledal 8,
inciricuaity or in the aggragate, they could reasonably be axpectad 1o nfluence the aconomic dacisions of wsers taksn on the basis
of thasa consolidatad financial atalements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 154: ae applicable in Pakistan, we exerciss professional jedgment and maimain prodessional
skepdicism throwughout the audt. We also;

. Idenlify and assees the nsks of material mesetaiamant of the conseédated financial slalsments, whather duss {o fraed or ernor,
deslgn and perform audit procadures responsae o thoss rsks, and obiein audit evidance that ia sufficlant and appropriate
1o provide a bisls tor auf apinlon. The fskof not dstecling & malardal misstaternsn] resiling rom Fad 15 fighar ihan b
aniz résuling fram arror, as Iraud may invelve colluskon, lorgery, intedtional omissions, misteprasantations, of the overnds
of internal controd

. Cixtain an undersianding of intersa! control rebevant to the audit In arder to diesign sl procaduras that ang appropnate n
tha circumstances, but not for the purpoes of expressing an opinton on the effectivanass of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the approprialeness ol accowunting policies wsed and the reasonableness of accounling
estmates and ralated disciosures mads by managemeant.

Concluge on the pproprigtenass of managemant's use al e going concarn basis of accaunting and, Based on e audit
evidancs obtaened, whethar 8 material uncartaenty awests relatad 1o evants or conditions that may cast signilicant doubd on
the Group's sty to continue a5 a goéng concem. I we conclude that a matedal unceralnty exists, we ane reguired jo draw
attentian n our audior's repar 1o the related disclosures in ihe consalidaled financial statemanis or, I such disciosures ang
inadaquate; to modiy our opinion. Sur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obiained up 1o the date of ouwr auditor's
report, Howewer, future events or conditions may cause the Group o cesse o continue as & going concarn,

. Evaluate tha ovarall presentation, stucture and contant ol the consoSdated financial statemeants, including the disclosures,
and whether the coneolideied financial statemens represant the underhyving transactions and events n & manner thet achlavas
fair presenialion.

. Cidain eutficlant appropeate audi evidence ragarding the finencial infoemation of the entities or businaes activikes within the

GGroup fo express an apinian on the consalidated financial stabemends. 'We are respansiss for the direction, supandassn and
peformance of the group addit, We remain solely resporsible for our audit opmsgn

We commumcals with the Board of Directors reganding, amang alher malters, the planned scope and eaing of the it mrd signilicant
audil tindings. ingloding any signiticant deliciancies in internal contrel that we dentily during our auvdil

Wi plso provicds the Board of Directors with a sleement tha we have compiad with relevant athical requiremens reganding independenca,
o cormmunicate with em all reafionships and othe: maliers that may reasonably be fhoughl to bear on aur indepetdence, and
whara applicabla, related saleguards
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Fram e maters communicaled with (he Board of Dveclon, we detamine those mattens thial were ol most slgnificanse in the audil
of fhe consoldated Gnancial slaterments ol the currént year and ara thersdore the key audit malters. Wa describa thase matters in oy
audlor'e raport unlees kaw or ragulaton prachdes pulblic discioaure abaut the matter of when, in axiremaly rare croumetances, wa
determine that & matler should nol be sormmunigated in our repor becauss the adverse consequences of doing so would reasanably
b pupstciod to oulwaigh the pubic inters] banafits of such communication,

The engagement panner on the audit resulting In thes nodepandent audsors’ report & Arslan Khalid,

Zv B MU,

EY Ford Rbodes

Chartared Accountant

Place; Karachi

Draba: Ccdobar O7F, 2024

LIEHN Mumbar: AR2024107 8 pvs3iay

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS
MON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property and eguipmeant
Intangible assats
Lesntg-term Irivestorent
Lomg-lerm deposds
Television prograrn oosis
Defarrid Gax aseat

CURRENT ASSETS

Invantories

Curment porion of ielevision program costs
Tradke deblis

Short-{enm meesimeants

At anoes

Trade deposils and shom-larm prapayments
Diher recaivables

Taxaton — meat

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authoresed capital
1,500, 00000 (2023; ¥, 500,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 1/- each

Issued, subscribed ard paid-up capital
Revanus reserves

CHhEr resamves

Attnbutable o owners of the Holding Company
Mon-zcontroling mierast

NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lo Jindelitios
Leng=lerm nancing
Shall relrament benalils

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and oiher payablas

Contract llabiity

Aconied mark-up

Linctaimed disvidéand

Urpaid dvidend

Current porlion ol lease |iamlites
Current portion of long-tarm financing

CONTINGENCIES ARD COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

e sl R gh da

10
1
12
13
14

17
18

1B

17
16

20

The annexed notes from 1 1o 28 form an mtegral par of these consolidated financal statements.

¥

g
e i

DURAID QURESHI

Chiel Executive Diractor

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

MAZHAR-UL-HAD SIDDIGLI

109

2024 2023
Rupees —-———--
(Restated)
1,514,824 032 1,466,308, 4559
319,247 397 208,183, TEE
- 48 527,574
Ba 277 145 30,905,161
68,059, 141 397 617 518
169,109,833 152,607,326
2,761,517, 548 2,307, 160,806
24,506,679 16,715,567
B1.533,365 85,320,558
5,272,832 500 3.100,542,350
1,062.444,008 580,143 207
B8O, 303,171 217,960,460
99,470,526 87,363,141
235,029,859 220,260,938
17,564,196 245,616, 828
2 313,397 809 2,101,996,791
10,007,082 313 6,868, 438, 244
15&5@&1 EI!E-“?ElﬁElEIIJEH
M NN ). . G R (1N TIPS
1,134,000 000 1,134, 000, 00D
B 730 B2T7.072 5,780,683 800
555,306,689 516,888,670
10,420, 223,761 ¥.431,572.560
(B8.677.022) {88,551, 465)
10,331,545 838 7,342,901 005
149,492 417 55,234,536
1,488,288 58,765,328
108,013,256 84,100 346
258,583 941 208,188,210
1,466,398 357 1,192,647 473
B50,0992 343 137,005,058
1.923.660 2,033.411
6,066,096 6,153,603
740,472 1,374,738
16,889,875 15,664,930
058,458 B6,528,523
2 AT8.070 061 1,421, 407,745
1 £09.861 8,972 508,050
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Revenus - nel

Caat af preduction
Transmission cost

Gross profit

Distrfabon cosls
Sominsirative expaness

Other income

Oither expenses | charges

Dperating profit

Finence cosis

Prafit before Income tax and levies
Lewies - fina tax

Profit beflore Income tax

Incomue lax

Profit after taxation

Attributable to:
Crwness of the Holding Company
Mar-comraling inlerast

Earnings pér share — basic and dilutad [Rupse)

a3

22

23

2

25

26

28

28

a0

The annexed nobes frorm 1 6o 38 Mo a&n imegral part of these consolidated financial stabermsnds.

Ly
8%
DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

y
i

MAZHAR-UL-HADQ SIDDIILN
Directar

2024 2023
B el 1111 C- G
{Restated)
12,348 461,990 7,667, BE3 540
{5,618, 176 BEE} (3, 7E4,000 31 )
1,178 030, 597 2 BOS. TO7
(6,794,207, 463) (4,117 05, 118)
B R4 954 37 2,450,260 22
[1.240,860,948) (482,974, 749)
(1,206,434, 376} {1,104 481 B12)
373, 185,966 488 E15,703
(111,416, 837)

3,374,728,531 2 261,617,064
(36,245, 668) (AT 136,014)
3,338,482, 863 2,214 481 G50
(54,105,424) (3T 200,204)
3,284,377 430 2177181748
(334,330, 714) {250,424 540}
2,050,046,725 1,917 765 BOG
28350143162 1,85 60 553
(96,457) (35,002,747}
2,950,046, 725 1,917, 766,806
2 60 1.72

MUHAMMAD ABEAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Prafil for the ymar

Other comprahansive income for the year

tems that may be reclassifled subseguently to statement of profit or loss
Eftect of ranslation of net investment in foreign subsidiary companies

Total comprehensive iIncome for the year

Attributable to:

Creners of the Hokling Company
Mon-controding inlernest

2k 2023
Rupeas

2,950,046, 725 1.917 766,808
38.508.019 XA 450 558
2,09E8 554,744 2155187 361
2 98 B51. 301 2.190,200,108
[96,457) (35,002, 747)

2 8BB 564, T4d 2,155,197 361

The anrexad notas from 1 to 30 form an integral part of these consclideted financial staterments.

A 18
.:I-:Eﬁﬁ’_f.! i sl -8
= e
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAD SIDDIGUI
Chief Executive Director

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

S

-
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Other Resarves Revenus Researves

I=sued, Fnulgn
subscribed exchange Momn-
and pald-up tramslation Unappropriated  contradling
capital TEsarve profil interest Total
Rupses
Batance as al June 30, 2622 345,000, 000 FTHARR 115 4 016,914,337 (93578, 718y 5 TET.TEE T4
Lol ~crriailing i

Liows aitribu i ey g inlereal for the yaar . |] . I . || 13-5_*:“]2_‘."-!?]" IEIE.IIE-E.N?J

- - - (5002, T4T) [35,002,747)
PioBL far B year - - 1,862 TEB 553 - 1,852 T84 553
Other comprefansive noame - FAT A0 555 - - FAT 400 565
Talal compretsnsios moome for e pear - AT 410 555 1,852 7B 553 - 2,190,300, 108
Issue of bonus shares @ 20% T80, 000,000 {1 BCLOD0, 000,
Balance as at June 30, 2623 1,134 000, 650 S8R0 &R £ TR0 B8 s (AT 458y T 342 499 085
L.oas sliribulaie 1o non-Corinall inleraal lor thes T

' e o - !I . l : || 155-*5~'fr|| mssﬂ]

- - - (96,457} 196,457)
Prodit dar She year - - 2,980 143,182 - 2,%50, 143 187
Dihar comprefanshve Reams = 1= 508,019 = = 3R, 508 0493
Total compretanaioe ncomi for e yaar = J& 5080149 2980, 143,182 = 2.9%ER.651,201
Batance as at June 30, 24 1,134,000, 000 555,306,653 8.730,827.072 (88,577 922} 10,331.545,530
Thee annexed potes fram 1 g 39 farm an mtegral por of hese corsclidated financial statemeants.

A \
[y et
e ailcit18
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAGQ SIDDICLI MUHAMMAD ABEAS HUSSAIN
Chiel Executive Direcior Chief Financlal Offleer

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



CaSH FLOWS FROM DFERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash ganerated from operations

Income tax and levies paid

Finamce costs paid

Long-term depasils

Television program costs

Met cash flow generaled from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additians fo progerty and aquipment

Acousttion of subsidianes

Lang temm Investmeant

Shart-lerm invastments - med

Prafil received on depos® accounis

Dividend received

Preceads Iram disposal ol operaling fixed assets

Met cash (used in) ! generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Lang-tarm financmng - mef
Hvidend paid
Leass rentals paid

Mat cash used in financing activities

Nt increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents at the boginning of the year
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year

The armaxed noles from 1 10 39 form an indegral pan of these consolidaled fmancial slatements.

]
Ly

X
MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDOIGLUI
Chief Executive Director

DURAID QURESHI

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Mate

|

11
24

4.4

18

17

2024 2023
wonsnsnnnce RUPQRE seemanas
1,308 845 899 1,542 805 6TE
[196,083,241) (248 585,741}
{20,481,0-8) (40,218, 206)
{58,357 1,984) 1,477,603
(271,341 623) (52,274, 45)
762,567,133 1,192,304, 742
{110,519,620) (478,405,110}
(115,003,523) (30,434, 566)
48,527 574 =
{440,007,085) E5H,609 632
83,203,676 67,326,851
93,399, 999 58,931,534
11,836,874 4,922 B
{428 462.105) 281 A6 180
{BE,T4T,105) {271,737 363)
(720,973) {925,077}
{33,735.832) [24,25E,833)
(122, 704,040) (796,921,373}
211,401,018 1,178,410 549
2,161 956,791 b6 576 242
2,313,307,809 2,131,996, 791
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1.2

1.3

THE GROURF AMD ITS OFPERATIONS

HUM Metwork Limited (e Hoiding Company} was incorporeted in Pakistan as a public limited company under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance). The sharea of the Holding Company are quofed on Pakistan
Hlock Exchange

The Heiding Company's poncipal business (8 o Bunch ransnational satelie channels and ams at presenting a wide

vanady of cultural herilage and news. Its core areas of oparafion are produckion, advedisement, enterlammant and
media marketing. B covers a wide vanely of programmes with respect to information. entertainment, cument affaies,

education, health, food, music and sochaty,
The 'Groug’ consisis of;

Holding Company
HUM Melwark Limited
Subsidiary Companies

2024 2023

Percentage of holding

HUM TV, |ng. 100% 1007
HUM Meteork LK Limited 100%: 100%
Suyline Publications [Private) Limited 1007%%: 100%
HUM Melwark FZ LLC 100% 100%,
HUMM Co. {Privata) Limitad 100%: 100%
HUM Mart {Private) Limited TO% TO%
Tower Sports (Privale) Lirmibed 100% 100%
TS3FZ LLC 1007 e
Sphera Ventures (Private) Limited 1005 0%

Mature of aperatians of subaidiaries

HUM TV, Inc, HUM Mebvork UK Limited and HURM Metwork FE LLC have been established with the purpose of
proveding antertsinment programmes 1o the Sowlh Asian commanity by increasing presenca in the United Statas of
America (LISA), Canada, UK and UAE respectively. The subskdiary companies will also serve as a plaform for the
Holding Company 1o axplore avenues for greater distinbartion of the Hobding Company brands in USA, Canada, UK and
UAE and will establizh relations with advertsers, as well as develop US-based media materals, such as dramas,
docwmaniarias and other antertainment shows and evenis,

Skyding Publicstions (Privata) Limited (SPL) is engaged in the publications of books and magazines

HUMB Co, (Privale) Limited has been established with the perpose of developing and producing comnients, shaws and
programs. A scheme of merger. by way of amalgamation, of M.C Productions (Private) Limited, a related parly wilh and
imio HUMM Co. (Private] Limibed was appeoved by the Board of Direciors of the Holding Company on September 22,
2016, The petikon for the schema of amangemeni has bean withdrawn by the Holding Company on Spnl 23, 201 % due
io inordinaie delay in the matter proceeding with the High Court.

HUM Mart (Private) Limited Is engaged in the business of oning shopplng for grocery, househoald bems and consurmer
goods,

In 202%, the Hebiing Company aequired 100% shareholding of Towsr Spos (Private) Limied e 20,100 cedinary
shares having face valwe of Rs. 1,000 each, issuad at Rs. 7 462.69 aach at a cost of Rs. 150 mé#on through purchase
af 20,100 ordinary shares. Resulftantly, Tower Spots (Privata) Limited bacame & subsidiary of the Holding Company
effective from 01 May 2023, Tower Sporls (Private) Limilad & angagad i the business of providing specialised spors
services which Include but are not limited to production, sales, marketing and distrbution of spors media contant.

During P currend year, HUM Nebsork FEZ LLG acguared 100% sharehalding of TS3 FZ LLG, Lo, 100 ordinary shares
having face value of AED 1,000 each, [saued at AED 17,556,773 each at @ cost of AED 1,753,673 millon through
purchase of 100 ordinary shares, Resultanily, TS3 FZ LLC becams a subsidiary af the HUM Network FZ LLE effective
from 28 Augusl 2023. TS3 FZ LLC & engaged in the business of providing spors consuftancy, media and marksling
consultancy and digital media services

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

During the year, lhe Holding Cormpany acquired 100% shareholding of Sphese Vendures (Povale) Limited, ie,
1,000,000 ordinary shares having face velue of Rs. 10 sach. Sphers Ventures (Private) Limited = engaged n
produchea, acqusibon, buymg, selling, precunng, sponsorng, commissioning and markeding of TV programmes,
evenis, films and entertaimment programmers and software for their exhitition, distibution and dissimination on TV
channels,

1.4 Geographical location and address of business units

Regislered office Plog Moo 1011, Hassan Al Street, Of. L1 Chundrigar Road, Karachi. Pakistan.
City offlce — Harachl B R.F Tower, Haszan All Streat, Off. L. Chundrigar Road

City offlce — Karachi Alfalah Court, 1| Chundrigasr Road

City affice - Islamabad 28, 18T center, sector G-6M

City office — Isiamabad Plod 20, Shakeel Express Building Mo, 2, Khayaban & Subarwardy, Aatxpara
City office — Lehora House # 58, R-24, Masson Road

City office — Paahawar Plot Mo 7-A, 29 The Mall, Peshewar Cantonment

City affice = Cuelia Pl Mo 4-A, Ground Floor, "Alwan & Mashrg” Hall Road Model Town, Quetta
HUBM Metwork LK, Limstad 38-P Alum rock ropd, Bemingham, England. 2 Hemlel Mews, London

Skyling Publications (Frivata) Plod Mo 10011, Hassan Al Streel, O LI Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakislan,
Lirmibed

Hurm hMart (Private) Limited Plot & BR-7, Shed # A-2, Survey 413, Secilor 7 A, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachl.
HLUM TV, Inc. G201 Bonkomme Rosd, 1808, Houston Texas,

Tower Sports (Private) Limited  Office Namber 113-114, st floor, Sidoo Avenue Centre, opposide YMMOA Saddar,
Karachi, Paksstan.
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of Compliance

These conschdated finencial statemsnts have besn prepared in accordance with the sccounting and reporting
slandards as apphcabde in Pakistan, The accounting and repoding standsrds appscabile in Pakistan cmprise af

- Iremational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (|ASE}
as nofified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act);

. Provisions of and directives issued under e Act,

Where provisions of and directives isswed under the &ct differ from IFRS. the provisions of and direclives issusd under
the Act have been followed.

2.2  Accounting Convention

221 These consolidated financial statements hawe been prepared on the basis of historical cosl convention, excepl
athernsse specifically statad.

2.2.2 These comolidated financlal statements are presented in Pak Rupees which = the Group's functional and presentation
CUMTEACY.

2.3 Mew standards and amendments to approved accounting standards
2.3.1 Adoption of Amendements to approved accounting standards effective during the year
Amendments to approved accounting standards
IAS B Definition of Accounting Estimates [Amendments)
The amendmenis to A5 8 darify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates. changss In accounting

pobcies and the correclion of arrors. They also Clarly how entifies use measurement technigues and inpuls to deselop
accounting estimates.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

232

1A% 1 and IFRS

Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendmeants)

Statement 2

The amendments 1o 1AS 1 and IFRS Pracfice Statement 2 Making Materlality Judgements provide guidance and
axamples io help entities apply materiality judgements o accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help
gnfities provide accounting policy disclosures that are mose useful by repdadcing the eguinement for enlities to disclose
thelr ‘significant’ accounting policles with a requirement 0 disclose their ‘matenal' aecounting policles and adding
guidance on how entifies apply the concept of matenaliy in making decisions abowt accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but nol on the
measuramant, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's financial statements.

lAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabllities arising from a Single Transaction {Amendments)

The armendments (0 145 12 Income Tax narmow the scope of the indial recogniton exceplian so that it no longer applies
o transactons that give rise 1o equal taxable and deductible temporary differences Le, leases and decommissioning
liakilities.

The amendments 1o 1AS 12 have been iMroduced in response lo the DECD's BEPS Pillar Two rules and include:

= A mandatory temporary exception to the recognition and disclosure of deferred faxes ansing from the jurisdictional
implemantation of B Pillas Twa model rules, and

* Disclosure requirements for sffected entites to help users of the fimancial statements better understand an entily's
axposune to Pillar Two income taoes arising from thal legislation, pariculary before its effective date,

The mendatory temporary exception — the use of which is reguired to be disclosed — appliss immedistety. The
remaiming disclosure requirements apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, but not for
any miterim peniods anding on or belore 31 December 2023,

The above amendments lo the approved accounting standards had no material impact on these finandial slatements.
Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The foflowang standards and amendmenis fo approved accouenting stendards a5 applicable in Pakistan would be
affective from the dates mentioned balow against (he respactive standards, amendments or improsemeants:

Effective date (annual

Standards | Amendments periods beginning on ar
after)
1AS 1 Clagaification of Liahlifles as Current or Mon-curreat and MNon-current Liahilities Janeary 01, 2024
with Covenants - Amendmsants 1o 1AS 1

145 Tand Disclosures: Supplisr Finance Amangaments - Amendments to lAS T and IFRS January 01, 2024
IFES 7 T

IFRS 16 Lease Liabdily in & Sale and Leassback - Amendments o IFRS 16 January 01, 2024
A 2 Lack of exchangeability - Amendments to &S 21 danuary 01, 2025
IFRS5 9 Classificabon and Measuremant of Financial Instruments - Amendments 1o January 01, 2026
and IFRS 7 IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

IFRS 1T Insurance Coniracls January 01, 2020
IFRE 18  Presentation and Discloswre in Finencial Statements January 01, 2027
IFRS 1% Subsidiarias without Public Accountability: Disclosures January 01, 2027
IFRS 10! Sale or Contribution of Azsets betwean an Inveslor and it Associate or Joind Mot yet final=ed

IAS 28 Venture - Amendment to IFRS 10 and 145 28

Further, following mew standands have been issuad by 1ASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of
appdicabilily in Pakistan.

ne HUM NETWORK LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

IASE effective date
Standard (annual periods
beginning on or after)
IFRS 1 Firat-ime Adopton of Imtermatonal Financial Regorbng Slandards January 01, 2004

Tha Company expecls thal above standards and amendments io the approved accounting standards will nod hawve any
malerial impact on the Company’s inancial slatements in the period of initial appBcation,

.4 Significant accounting judgments, astimates and assumptions

The preparafion of the consalidated hinancial staterments in conformily with approved acoounting slandards, as
appiicable In Pakistan, requires the management to make judgment, esfimates and assumplions that affect the
appfication of policies and the reported amounts of revenues, sxpenses, aseals and liabiflies and accompanying
dischnsuies, Uncerainty aboul these assumplions and aslimates could resull in oultomes thal requine 8 mabedal
adjustmvent to the camgng amaount of assets or kabllities affected in fulure perads,

The judgements, etimates and associated assumplicns are based on histoncal experence and varous other fachors
that are believed to be reasonable under the cdrcumslances, the mesults of which form the basis of meking judgements
about the carrying values of assets and Babilities that are not readily apparent from other sources

Judgemenis, estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to acoountng estimates are
recognized In the penod In which the ostimate i5 revised if the revision affecis only that perod, or in e panod of The
revision and future periods if the revision affects bath current and future periods.

In the process of applying the accounling policies, management has made the folbowing estimates and judgements
which are shgmificant 1o the consolidated financial statemenis:

Property and equipment and intangible assets (note 4 & 5)

The Group reviews appopnateness of the rale of depreciaton | amorisation, useful life and residual vablee used in the
calculation of deprecistion / amortisation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amownt of azaets i
made for possible impairment on an annoal basie. Any changa in the asbimates in e future mighl affect the carmying
amount af respective itern of propery amd eqguipment and Intangble assels, with cormespondimg effects on the
degpreciabion f amorisation charge and impsirmanl,

Television program costs (note &)

Television program costs represent unamartised cost of compleded television programs and television programs in
production. Im order Lo determine tha amount to be charged to consolidated slatement of profit or loss, the managamsanl
estimales fulure revenues from each program, Estimates of future revenues can change significantly due 1o 2 variety of
factors, including adwverdising rates and the lawal of markat acceptance of the production in different geographical
lecations. Accordingly, revenue estimates are reviewed penodicaly and amortisation |5 adjusted, 0 necessary, Such
adjpustments could have a matenial effact on results of cperations in futere periods.

Taxation (note 9 & 29)
In making the estimate for income tax payable by the Growp, the Group takes into account the applicable 1ax laws and
the decision by appeliale authonlies on cerain Isswes in the past,

Deferred fax assels are recognized for all unused tax kosses and credits 1o the exlent thal it is probable that taxable
profit will be avallable ageinst which such losses and credits can be utilized. Significant management judgemeant iz
reguired [0 determing the amount of deferred lax assels thal can be recognisad, Based upon the Eely e and level
cf future taccable profits together with future tax planning strabegies.

Impairment of financial assets (note 3.5.3)
The Group uses a provision mairx bo calculate Expeclted Credit Loss (ECL) for trade debis and olhaer receivables. The
provision rates are based on davs past due for Group's varows customer that have similar loss pattemns.

HUM NETWORK LIMITED n7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

31

Contingencies [note 20)

Thee assessrment of the conlmgencies inherantly invohees the exerdse of signilicant judgrment as the outcome aof the
fulure ewents cannol be predicted with cerainty. The Group, based on the availabllity of the iatest information,
estimates the value of contingent asssts and Habifties which may differ on the occumence f non-occurrence of the
uncartain fulure events

Leases- Estimating the incremeantal borrowing rate (note 17)

The Group cannod readily determing the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental bormowing
rate (1BR') to measure keasa liabdities, The 1BR is the rate of intensst that the Groug wauld haves B pay b Dorros aver a
samalar tesm, and with a simitar securly, the funds necessany o obdalin an asset of 3 similar value o the right-of-use
as82l in & similar economic enmvironment

Leases- Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options (note 17)
The Groug delermines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the leasze together with any periods covered by an
opfion o exand tha leasa if it is reasonably cartain to be exercissd, or any periods coverad by an oplion to terminaia
lh bessse, iF 1 is reasonably cerain nol io be exerdised

The Group has lease conbracts that include exlension and esmanation oplicn, The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether It s reasonably certaln whether or not to exercise the option fo renew or tesminabe the lease, That |s
it considers all relevant faciors thal create an ecomomic incentive for it bo exercise either the renewal or lerminabon.
Afer the commencament date, he Group reassesses the lease berm i there is a significant evenl or change in

crrcumstances that s within its contrad that aflects s abllity to exercse of nol to exercise the option 1o renew ar 1o
termminate

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies adopted by the Group in the preparation of these financiael statements are as follows:

Bagis of consalidation

Subaldisry 12 8 entity over which the Group has control. Contral 18 achieved when the groug B exposed, of has rights, to
variable redurns from its involvemant with the investaa and has ability to affect those ratums through its power over the
invesies. Generally, there is presumption that & majonty of voting rights result in controd,

The Group re-assess whether or not it controle an investes f facte and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
OFie OF Mone elemeants of Sonirol.

Subsidiary is consolidated from the date on which the Group obtaing control, and continue 1o be consolidated wntil the
date when such controd ceasas. Income and expenses of & subsidiary acguwred or disposed off during the year ars
includes In profit o 1oss from the date the Graup gaing control until the date the Group ceases ta control the subsidiary,

The financial statements of the Subsidiary Company ang prepaned for the same reporiing period as the Holding
Company, using consistent accouwnting policies. The accounling policies of the Subsidiary Company have bean changed
Lo eonforrm with accounting policies of the Holding Company, whene required

If the business combination 1 achieved in atages, the acquisition date carnang value of the acquirer's presvicusly held
aquity inlerast in the acgueree is remeasured Lo T value al the acguisidion dale, any gains or lpsses ansing from such
remeasurament are recognised in profit or loss.

Businass combinations are acoounted for wsing the acguisition method of accounting, |dentifiable assets acquired,
llabdities assumed and contngent kabllities assumed in a business combinalicn are measured inlbally a1 their falr values
at the acguisilion date. imespective of the extenl of any non-controlling interest.
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The cosi of an acguisition is measured as the cash paid and the fair value of other assets given, eguity inatrumenis
issuid and habilibes incurmad o assumead o he dale of exchangs, plus costs direclly allrtatabde 1o the acquisition,
Idantifiable assels acquired, labdibes assumed and contingent labilities assumed in a business combination are
measured iniially at their fair valwes at the acquisiton date, imespective of the extent of any non-cantrofing inbesest, The
excass of cosl ol acquisition is recorded as goodwill, howewer, if thae cost of acquisition is less than fair value of the net
ss3ets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the profit or koss,

Fedbing indlial recognition, goodeill s measured at cosl less any sccumulated impairment lesses. Goadwill is meviewed
for impairment annualty or more freguentty if events or changes in circumsiances indicate that the carming value may ba
impaired. Impalmment (s determened by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unlt bo which e
goodwill relates. Whore the recovarable amount of the cash-generaling unil is less than the carmying amount, an
imparmant bosa 8 recognized.

All intra=group balances, transactions and wnrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
divichends within the Gaoup are eliminated in full,

Mon-controlling interest (MCI) s that part of the net results of operations and of net assels of subsidiary atinbutable
imerest which are nol owned by the Group. The Group measures NG on proporionate basis of the nel assets of
subsidiary company.

A change i ihe camership inberes! of a subsidiary, withaol 3 loss ol contral, 15 accounted far & an equily iansadion. If
the Group loses control over 8 subsikdiary, it daracognises tha assets (including goodwill) and Rahilibes of the subsidiary,
carying amownt of any MCL cemulative translaton differences recognised in other comgeehenshe income, and
mecogrises fair walue of consideralion mceived, any invesimen] relamed, surplus or deficit in peofil and loss, and
reciassifies the Holding Company share of componenis previously recognised in other comprehansive moome o profit
or less account oF relained earnings, as appropriate,

3.2 Business combinations
321 Acquizition of Subsidiaries

Intemational Financial Reporting Sandacd 3, {IFRS ) "Business Combinalions”, requires thal all identilied assels and
liabilities actuired in @ business combinalion showd be caried al fair valses in the acquirer's balance sheel and any
intangitie essels acquired in the business combmation are required 1o be saparalely recognised and camied at fair values.

Dring the year, the Growp acquired 100% of the voling shares of TS FE LLE" a company established in the LAE, which
i engaged in the businese of sports conswllancy, madia | markeling conaullancy and digital madia servicas and “Sphere
Ventures [Privale) Limited® 8 company esiablished 0 Pakistan, whech s engaged in the business of production,
acqutsition, markatag, buyng and selling of programs.

The acquisifion kas been sccounted for by appiving the acquisition methed in aceordance with the requiremeants of IFRS 3
which allows the acguirer a mammum perlod of one year from the date of scquisilon 1o finallse the accounting for business
comination. Identified assets acouired. liabilikes sssumed or incurmed hawe to be camed gt the fair value as at the
acuisibion dale. Tha fair valuation exersse s nprograss and will be finalised within the perod of ona year as allowed under
IFRE 3, Any adjusiment ansing al the lime of finalisation of ths eercse will be incorporated with reirospective offect from
Ihe date af acquisdion,

Agsels acquired and liabilities assumed
The provigions] fair valees of the dentifiable assats and Gabilikes of TSI FZ LLC &= at the dsle of scquisition e August 28,

o P T T

Amount in AED Armouwnt in Rs,
Asgels
Advances, deposite and prepayments 11.410 831,931
Cash and benk balancas 398 457 A2 544,663
Total Assets 409 867 3,478,584
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3.2.2

Lishilities

Avoounts payable 150,10 12,252,322

Total Liabilities 150,048 12282 322

Identifiable net assels at provisional fair value 250,857 21,224 262

Purchase considaration transfered at acquisition date 1,753,673 143,234 210

Prenvisional fair value of net assels acquired (250,85T) (21,224 262)
Provisional goodwill arising on acguisition 1,493,818 122,009,948

Ciaeh pesd on acquisition {1 753673) (143 234 24909
Cash acquired in subsidiary 298,457 32 544 653

Net cash paid 11,355,2186) {110,689,557)

The provissonal feir values of the [dantfisbde sasats and labilibas of Sphare Ventures (Private) Limited a3 at the data of
acquisition i.2 July 26, 2023 ware;

armount in Bs.
Axgals
Advance tax 430
Cash and bank balances 4,786,034
Total Assets 4,863 464
Total Liabilities -
Identifiable nat assets at provisional fair value 4,861 464
Furchese consideration transfemed a1 acguisition date 10, 000, 000
Prowvisional feir value of nat assats acguirad 4 563 464
Provisional goodwill arising on acquisktion 5,136,536
Cash pakd on acguisilion [ #0, D00, 000)
Cash acquired in subsldiany 4, TEE 054
Mt cash pabd (5,213, 966)

Furtfier, as noled above, the goodwll recorded in e eonsolidated inancial slatements s based on provisional figures and
does nol Incorporate adjustments which will be recorded after completion of the falr value sxercize of recorded asdets and
liahilition

Purchase Price Allocation of subsidiary acquired in prior year,

Tower Sports (Private) Limibed acquired on May 1, 2023 was camied on provisional vahses in the prior vear's consofidated
fimancial statement. In ihe cwrent year, purchase grice allocation exenclse hes been completed with the asaistance of an
independent valuer and the comparalve informaton hes been restated fo reflect the aduatment to the provslons smounis
which include recogniton of goodwill and intangibsa

Detads af the Fair values of the assebs acquired, Gabilities assumed and purchasge conssderation and the resultant goodssl
recognised are as Tollows.

Restated
May 1, 2023
Mo Amound in Ra.
Identdfied net psseis 3221 42 714 341
Purchase consideralion 150 D00 Dk
Goodwill Hr‘ilﬂFE on acquisition 107 X85 689
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3221 The final fair values of identifisbls sseats (including intangible sssets) and lisbiftiae of Towar Sports (Private) Limited at

Jzz.z

tha date of acquisition are as folloes:

Provisional fair

Rights - Netwark Affiliate Agreement

Fair value Fair valuas as at
TH[;L:‘;,' adjustmeants May 1, 2023 [as
I-nr. audited recognised durng  per consultant’s
financial Sl - i pay repart)
atataiments gs at | Soneullant's report) Restaled
Juren 30, 2023)
Amaount in Rs.
Azsista
Properly and agquipmants 7038747 - 7,038,747
Intangible aesets 1 17,812,760 17812761
Long-larm deposits 16,160 . 16, 160
Lang=lerm invesirmenl 49 244 A48 . 45 244 948
Trade debis 3,182 387 a,182 3ar
Loans and advances BE2 1T - 582, M7
Shont-term deposit and prepayments 1,866 B26 - 1,866,826
interest raceivable 1,388,750 - 1,398,750
Income tax refundable-red 22, THT 564 - 42, TE7 564
Cash and bank balancas 119, 505,434 = 118,566,434
Total Assets 225 663,534 17 B12. 76D 243 476 294
Liabilities
Advance anainsi shanes 1,570,000 1,37 00000
Trade and other payables 21,183,114 - 21,148,114
Payable against sales - net 178,003,839 - 178,003,839
Total Liahilities 200,761,953 . 200,761,953
Fair value of net assels 24,901,581 17,812, TED 42,714,341
intangibie recognised on acquisition
May 1, 2023
Amount in Rs.
17,812,760

This reprasents an amangemant with MSM Asia which provdas it with righta 1o its channel Tenepors. The target has bean
entaring contracts with third parties based on these channel rght=. Thiz mears that the as=cciation with M5M Asis enables
tha target 1o ganerate significand vakee, The management believes that this association would continue in the fufune il
belieyes that this associaton would contira in the fulure as will, and the decision of acquisiticn was premarly laken dug o

lhee sarme association,

This has been wvalued wsing Muliperiod Excess Eamings Mothod. This method involves discownting the resulling excess
mamings, following the deduction of confributory asset charges, to determineg the intangible value. The denfified intangible

hiag a indefinite usel He
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3.3
334

3.3.2

3.3.3

3.5

3541

a.52

Progerty amd edguipiment
Operating fixed assets
Thzser are slaled al cost kess accumulabed depreciation and impairment, il any

Depreciaton |z changed to consolidated statemant of profit of loss using straignt line method so as to wnte off the
historical cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation on addiions & changed from the month In
which the sssat is avallable 1o use and no depreciation s charged for the month in wiech agsst was disposed of.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to consolidated statemaent of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvemaents, ifany, are apdakised when it is probable thal respectve fulune econamic benefits will fow
L3 the daroup

an rem of property, plant and agquipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic bensfits are
expacied from its use or disposel. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculalsd as the diference
batwasn tha net disposal procasds and the carrying amownt of the assat) is included in consoldated statemant of profi
or lass in the year the asset is derocognised,

The assals' resldusd values, useful lves and method of depreclation are revised, and adusied | appropriate, at each
consolidated statement of financlal position date.

Right of use azspsis

The Group recognises a right of use assels al the commencemen] dale of the lease (e, the date the underlying assal is
available for use]. Right of use assels are measured @ cosl less any accumulated deprecation and impairment losses
and adjusted for any remeasurenmsenl af lease liabdlies. The cost of fghl of use assels Boludes the amound of lease
liabillies recognised, milial direct costs incurred, and lease payments masde al or before e commencemeant dale less
any beass incentives received. Right of use assels are deprecialed on a siraighi-line basis ever Ihe shorer af [ease bem
or uselul ife, except for the leases nowhich ownership of the underying ssseta transfer o the lessee by the end af the
lease term or cost of right of use assets reflects that the leases will exenclse a purchase option. the Group depreciate
those right of use a=set over the usalu life of the underdying assat.

Capital work in progress

Thesa are staled st cost less accumulated impairmaeant losses and consists of expenddures ncurred and advances
made in respect of specific assels during the constructon period, These ane fransferred o specific assets as and when
msseds are avitilabie for ase.

Talevision program cosis

Talevision program costs represent unemortised cost of completad tedevision programs and televieson programs in
production. These costs include direct production costs, cost of inventory consumed, and produection overheads and are
stated at the lower of cost, bess accumulatad amortisation and net realizable value (MRVW). NRV iz estimated by the
mansgament on tha baszis of fulure revenus genaration capacity of the program. Acquired telavision program licanses
and rights are recorded wihen the lioense period Begins and the program is available for use

Talevision program cosls and acquired lelevision program licenses and nighls arm charged o expanss based on the
rilio af e revenees samesd fill date 10 ofal reeendes 1o be eamed from the pragram induding Tubere estBmated
rewenues less cost axpensed in prior years on an individuad program basis.

Financial instruments

A financial inslrumend s any conlract thal gives e to a financial assel of one enfity and a financial lability or equity
instrument of another anlity.

Fimanclal assets st amortised cost (debt instrumeants)

Fenancial sssats at amortised cost are subsequently maasured using the sfectva interast (EIR) method and ara subject
to impairment. Gains and kosses are recognisad in profit or lpss when the ssset is derecognised, modified or impained,

Financial assets at fair value throwgh profit or loss

Financial assets al FYPL include financial assets held for tracding, Financial assets with cashflows thal are not solely
payments of principal and interest are dassified and mesasured al faie yalue through profit or less, imespective af the
businass maodel.

Financial assets a1 FYPL am cammied in the consolidated statement of fimancial positon a1 fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised n consolidated statement of profit or loss,
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This caiegoey also nchedes lisied equity swvesiments and mutual funds which the Group had sol mevecabdy elecled 1o
classify at FVOC, Dividends on listed equity investments and mutual funds are also recogrised as other incame in profit
or loss wiven the Aght of paymean has been establishead.

A5 al the date of consolidated statement of financial position, the Group does naot have anmy equity instrument designated
at fair vakue through Gl

353 Impairment of financial assels

Far ade delds, he Group applles a simplified approach in ceclaling ECLs. Therefore, the Group does nod brack
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetme ECLs &t each reporting date. The
Groug has established & prowsicn matrx hat |s based on its historical credit loss experence, adjusted for forward-
lnoking factors specific to the debtors and the economéc environmsant.

The Group considers a financial asaet In defaull when confractual payments are B0 days past due. However, In certaln
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset 1o be in default when intemal or external information ndicates that
the Group is unlikely to receiss the outstandsng confractual amounts in full before teking into Bccount any credil

enhancemenis beld by the Geoup, A financial assed is writlen olf whien thene i no reasonable expectation of recowering
tha contractusl cash flows.

3.5.4 Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial racognition, bomrrowings and payables ane suhseguenthy measured al amorised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or less when the liablinies are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amartisation process

3.5.5 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financia! liabidities are offset and the nel amount 15 reported i the consolidated statement of
financial positon if there s & curmentty enforceable begal rght to offset the recognised amounts and there B an intention
ko satile on a met basis, to realiss the assels and saitle the liabiliies sinullanacwsly,

3.6 Contract Liability

A contract liabdity is the obligation of the Growp fo transfer goods or services o a customer for which the Group. has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration (s due) from the custorner. If a customer pays consideration
before the Group ransfers goods or services (o the customer, a condract Rability is recognised when the payment is
made ar the paymant is due (whichever is sarlierk. Confract liabéity are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
undes the coniract,

3T Impairment of nen-financial assets

The carrying amounts af non-feancial assels are assessed al each reporling dale 1o asceram whether Uhere s any
indication of mpameant. If such an indicatson exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated to defermine the
extent of impairment loss, If Ay, AN Imgr st loss is TEWHHiSHﬂ- @5 an expense In congolidated stalement of prafit oF
loss and other comprahensive incoma. The recoverable amount is the higher of Bn assel's fair velus less cost o
disposal and value in wse. Value in use B ascerained theough discounding of the estimated future cash flows using a
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of monay and the nsk specific to the assats for
which the estirmate of fulure cash flow have not been adjusted. Fos the purpose of asseasing impairment, assets are
groupssd al the lowasl lavals for which thare are separately wentifiabla cash lows (cash-generating wnils)

38  Taxation
3EA Currant
Prowisson for current fax is based on the Ezable income m accordance with the applicable laws.

J82 Deferred

Dieferred 1ax is recognised using the balance sheet liabilitsy method, an all mejor temporany differences arsing at the
cansalidated statement of inancal positbon date bebtwesn Lax bades of assetls and Eabilities and thelr carryng amounts
in the consaolidated financial statements.

Defered lax kabilites are recognized fer all taxabde temparary differences, Deferred tax assets are recognized for all
daductible tamporary differences to the extent that d i probable that the fulure taxable profile will be available against
which the azsels may be utiized, Defesred tax assets are reduced 1o the extent that if & no longer probakde that the
related tax benefit will be realized.
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383

3a

310

a1

The carmying amount of deferred tax assel s reviewsd al each consalidated statersent of linancial positon date and
reduced to the extenl that i iz no longer probable thal sullicient taxable peolits will be available o allow all or part ol e
dleferrad tax awgel 1o be recognized.

Creferrad tax sasets and liabildies are measured af the tax rate that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realisad or the liability is seitted, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that heve been enacied or substantvaly enacted at
tve consalidated statement of financial position date.

Lewies - Final tax

Pursuani o the release of cocular 72024 by the Instidute of Charaered Actountanis of Pakisian, the Group has elecbed
by change the method of accounting for minimem taxes and final taxes.

The Group designales the amount calculatad on taxabla income using the enacted tex 88 an moome tex within the
scope of A5 12 “Incorme Taxes' and recognise B as current income 18x expanse. Any excess over the amount
designaied & income tax ks recognised as a bevy fallimg under the scops of IFRIC 21 / 1AS 37,

As compuladion of final faxes under provisions of TTO, 2001 @ not based on taxable incorme, therefore, Ginal axes Fall
under ey wilhin the scope of IFRIC 21 7 1A% 37 and nod income tax in the consolidated sfatement of profit or loss,

The Group reclzasifled the levtes that fall under the scope of IFRIC 21 1 1AS 37 In the consolkated statemeant of paolil of
loss retrospectivelty. Accordingly, there are no changes in the conscidated statemsent of finanalal positien and profit for
b year.

Leasas

Thia Group assesses al conlracl incaplion whelhar a contracl is, or conlasns, a ease, Thal is, if the contract conveys he
right io conired the vse of an idenlified assed for a period of time o exchange for consideration

Group as a lesses

The Group agplies a single recognition and messuremend appeoach for all leases, except for shodl-term beases and
leases of low-valee asaeis. The Geoup recognizes lease liabillbes 1o make lease paymants and right of use assels
representing the fght e use the undedying aseets.

i) Lease Habllitles

AL the commenoeméanl dale of the leage, the Graup recoghnises lease labllities messuned al the present value of lease
paymends 1o be made over the lease berm. Tha lease payments include fised payments {incdeding in-substancs fioed
paymens) less any lease incentives receivable, varable lease payrnents hal depend on an index or @ rale, and
amounts expacted 1o b paid under residual values guaraniees. The lease paymenis aleo include the axercise price of a
purchase aption reasanably cedain 1o be exercisesd by e Group and payreents ol penalties for lermimateng Lhe keass, i
th termination option is reasonably certsin 1o be exerciged. Vadable lease paymentis that do nat depend on an indax o
a rafe are recogmised as edpenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the perod in which the event or
condition that triggers the peyrnent occurs. In celculating the present value of lease peyments st the lesss
commencemsant date, the Group usss the interest rate mmpliclt in the leass. In case whare the interest rate Implict in the
lease Is not readily determinabie, the Group uses its Incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, he
amount of lease llabilibes s ncreased 1o refiect the accretion of Interest and reduced for the lesse payments made. In
addition, tha carrying amount of bkeaee liabilities s remeasured if there ia a modification, a change in the leasa term, a
changa in the leasa paymaniz or 8 change in the assessmant of an option 1o purchase tha undarlying assadl

il) Short-term leases

Tne Group appies the short-larm lease recognition exemplion to its shor-term leases of office premizes (Le., those
lpases that have & lease tarm of 12 months or kess from the commencement date and do not contein 8 purchass
option). Leass payments on shori-term leases are racognisad as expansa on & straight-line basis over the lease tarm,

Provisions

Prewisions are recogrized whan the Group has a present obligation (legal o congtrective) as a resull ol past events, il is
probaile hat an outlow of resources will be reguired o setlle the obligalion and a reliable estimate can be made of fhe
armount of obligation. Provisions ara reviewed al each consolidated statement of Tnanclal positon date and adjusied to
reflect the currant besi estimate.

Revenue recognition

Advertaement revenue 5 recoonised when he related advertisement of commercal appears before the poblic |e.,
alrad.

Produwction revenue: Production revenue is recognised when producton work agpears before publc

Degital rewenua: Advertising revenuas from digiial proparties are recognized on the basis of number of impressions on
the adhartisemant aired on wabsite
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Subs=crlption moome arlges fram the manthly billlng to subacrbers for sendces provided by the Group and from digital
awvenues based on nuember of views, Revenue is recognised in the month the sendce is rendened.

Filrn Distribubion revenues: Revenus from film distribution is recogrized at a point In ime upon receipt of related sales
repodts from cinemas.,

Sake of goods are recognized when goods ane delivensd fo customens
Sake of magazines: Rewvenue is recognised on dispatch of magazines.
Ceredit limits in confract with customens ranges from @ to 90 days,
3.12  Other income
Predit on bank deposits is accounted for on effective interest method,
Driviclend incoma is recognized when il is declared and right to receive i established,
Irtesest | markup income |5 recognized on accrual basis
Qther revenuwes are accounted for on an acorual basis,
313 Eaff retirement benefits

Definad contribution plan

Thie Halding Cormpany operates a funded and appeoved prosvident fund scheme for all ils pesmanent employess. Egqual
rontidy confributions are made, both by the Holding Company and the employees, to the fund at the rate of 8.33% of
the basgic salany

3.14 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Faoreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchangs rates ruling al the dates of the
ransaclions. Monslary assets and llablities in forsdgn currencles are franslated imo Pakistanl Rupees using the
exchange rale al the consolidated siaterment of financial position date. Foresgn exchange gains and losses resulling
from the setilament of swch transactions and from the translations at tha year end exchange rates of monelary assats
and llabites denosminated in foredgn currencies are takean o consolidated statemeant of profil or loss.

The assets and liabilties of foreign subsidiary companies are translated to Pak rupses at exchange rates pravailing at
the comaolidaled statement of financlal position date. The income and expenses of foreign subsidiary companies are
ranglaled al average rate of exchange Tor the year, Translation gaing and losses ariseng on e franslalion of nel
inwastment in foreign subsidiary companias are takan o squity ender "Foresgn Exchange Translation Reserve® and on
disposal are recognised in the conschdated statermant of profit or loss

3.16 Contingencies

Caonbngencies are disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation thal arises from past events and whose
existance will be confirmed anly by the oocurence or man-ocounmgncg of one or more uncartain future events not whiody
withén the control of the entity or & present obligation that anses from past events but k5 not recegnised because it is not
probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to satile the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannaot be measured with sufficient reliabiliy,

3.16 Eamings per share

The Group presents basic and dituted eamings per share (EPS)] data for ils ordinary shares. EPS s caloulated by
dividing the prafit or loss alfributable to cedinary shareholdars of the Haolding Company by the weighied avarage number
of crdinary shares outstanding during the pericd

317 Functional and presentation currency

These consoidabed Gnancial slaiements are presentesd in Pakislani Rupees, which is the Groug's funclionsl and
presentebion cumsnicy,

3.18 Segment Reporting

Segmeni reporting is based on the feporting operating (busness) segments of the Group, An operaling segment is a
componant of the Growp thet engages in business aclivikes from which it may earn reverue and incur axpansas. An
operating segmeant’s operaling results are reviewed regularty by the senior manageament of the Group to make decisions
aboisd resources 1o be allocaled o the segment and assess ils performance, and for which discrebe Tinancal nlomation
is available
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4.2  Particulars of immovabde assels in the name of the Group are as follows:

Location Addresses Total Area
Karachi Plot Mo, 1011 Hassan All Sirest, off 11, Chundngar road, 2070 s v
lslamahad Plot Moo2a, 18T Cantre Sactor G-61. 30610 ag. 1t
fslamabad §-7 ke, Kashenic Highway, adjacent 1o Sector H-17 303 g yard

4.3  Depreciation for the year on operating fixed assels hag been allocated as Tollows:

2024 2023

MNate e RUPBES -mme-—ee
Cast of productian az 2,232 328 42104, 114
Distrbudion costs Ft| 11,024 675 3,293,258
Adrenistrative apenses H B4, 016,653 4G, 728, 2dd

147 273,651 37 081616

4.4  The details of oparating fixed asseis disposed | writben off duning the vear are &8s follows;

Accumuiated Mot book Sale i Maodas of
Descriplion  Cosl  deprecislbon  valus praceads [haas) Dipaaal Particulars of Buyer
Vehicles TATSEN 5020230 ZOS5STZ 212043 67,471 As per Group Polloy Masir Thahrani
2, 70700 T, 78D 440 917,581 1.728,651 E12.900 As per Group Folicy Fianan Zalar
6TE200 2497785 43281441 4308781 28950 As per Group Policy Ay Rara
Items having 1387ETE  RATRTIE 229107 Vanous Varous

book velue of laes &,761.071 [ T [
than Rg. 500,000

2024 EEIEME 16, 20, B4E E.B'lillﬁﬂ 11,836,874 3194 B35
2023 13, TE2E 228 B, Ta5 8 3066 742 4922 A3 A56, 007
2024 2023
Mote s RUP@EE —e—eas
4.5  Right of use assets
Year ended June 30
Cpening ned book valie 51,084,192 T8, 765,335
Ldditions in lease Rabiitles a7 536,881 1,630 453
Changes dus o modification - 16, 262,103)
Changes dus o remeasumamearn 15,318,366 -
Transfer o opersting fived assets = net book value (4,075, 7TR) 11,607 432)
Depraciation charge for the yesr 4528453 [20,914,828)  (20.550.075)
Closing nal book valus 139,838,733 51,984,132
A5 at June 30
Cogt 231,944 0484 153,666 550
Aocumulated depreciation (92 106,21 1t {101,882, 356)
Mot bock valus 139,838,733 21,9084 192
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451 Braakupof ned book value of nght of use assets by claas of undesying essets B as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees
Land amd baskdig 135,781,757 41,343,304
Yohicies 4,056,976 10,640,658
139 838,713 X TYRER

45,7 The right of use assobs are depreciated on straéght line basis over the kease term. Depreciation charge for the yoar on such assots
has been allocated as follows:

o4 2023
Mode Rupe#s ——-—-
Caost of praduction ] 15,339.073 16,805 285
Bresaribartion costs x| - Ba3 &G
ABcmirealrative expenaes 24 2,575,855 4,051 201
20,514 9234 20,550,075
4.5.3 Bregkup of depreciation of right of use asaals by class of underlying assal is as Follows:
Land and building 18 408,807 16,5440, 141
Viehicies 28081 4,0059714
EHIH-'I-.!EH .'-'I.'.I!E-Eﬂ]' a7s
4.6 Capital work In prograss
Leasehold land 162337930 182327930
Laasahold Improvamants 52 850, 841 38,548,298
218 208,711 200,878,146
.64 Maverment in capital wark in progress during the year
Batance at beginming of the yaar 200,876,148 106,814 520
Ackditicrs duning the waar 14,332,625 #3061 586
Bafance ak arnd of the vear 215 208,711 200876146
& INTAMNGIBELE ASSETS
Carsn Accurmilated amnorizaficn Book walus Armae| st
As A As al As @ Charge Tor As ik al taba
Jdudy 1, ”““"Lg’."”““ Jure 30, Julyai,  theyear  June 39, Jura 38 %
2037 ADTA 20371 anga Fnzd par annum
Goodmil SFIRETH T 149,114, 780 TEO.T4BTSE 49,880, TH 2 11, B8, T J2E 445 94T
Rigphts 17,812, Tl - 17 A2 7RO - - - 11X A1 T80
Compiar reltarss T, 0 DR = TREOIGROGT |mEnTE 1 EEETE #F A 1R Ad4 Lk 20 —-J¥
Litunen fsn 2,286 408 . 62 286 498 14,529,072 0,180 14733172 AT 587 126 EaT
Trade mory B3, D, TED a . BE 040,740 4405 TEE 6 508,158 B L5 D 16586876 0
354, 311,00 119,114, gy 457 425825 1331172 A1 131 Ta R 1247 207
Lot (Restaied) Acoumulated amontisaticn Boak wilii AIAET U dlian
Am ad ] A el Chargu lor As W A &l raka
July 0, mm;g-mmnﬂ Jduns 30, July thiy ywar June 13, Juna 30, %
2033 rathe] 2033 201 ngy paar annism
Sl 1LAE A5 107,258 B5G 131,134 5498 18,803, M1 - 11,503, M 108331 207
i gl 17012, Tei IFAEE R0 - - - 1F A2 TR
Comprtar soff s Mo T = TG T = B . P . SR TEY FOLNET A 203N
Lirenea e B 2R6 448 hz, 2B 408 14 34 872 2T 1000 14 3T AT THT 428 66T
Trade mars 41, 400477 26,570 T ¢ A5 0D Tl 38,0657 651700 44 045 TS 23 195 035
1R BEZ 361 151,663 602 JIEI 083 1T M TTT 12475518 130T 205 208793788

Y Fepresents aMacis of re-rangtation p Oiher Comprefenaie Income (OCT
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&1

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Amortisation for the year has been allocated as follows:

2024 2023
Mot Rupess -
st of production 2 1,015,852 &, 250,540
Sdmenisirative expances 24 6, 145379 5824 878
!Iﬂﬁiiﬁ-‘l ‘.EI E?EIE

For walustion purposes of the inangibles acouired (Rights) in Tower Spors (Private) Limiled, the fair value is detemnined based on
mulliparod eicess aamings malbad, whersin he resulling eacess eamings afler deduclion of conirbuiory assels chame an a projecied
period of B years, ane discountad 1o detaming the valie of 1ha intangile. The discsunt fale appkad 2 24.5% par annun

Key agsumptions used m valuation
Thi calculation ol far vakie 5 mast sensiive o the fellowng assuampions

- Discount ratas

= Ky busmess assumplions
Descound rains
The decount rale reflects curmenl marks] assessmen! of e rale of relum reguired for the besiness and &5 cfculated using the Capital Assst
Pricing Moced The discount rata reflecis tha baret 'Waighoad Avarage Febum on Assals (WARA| La. Waighted Avaragn Cost of Capital JWALCD)
+ 1% of the Subsdary Company.

Key business assumptions

These apsumpions nchadas Meenos growdh in maneeting e subscnpban seryioes, customarn chium rale and operaling prodk margin,

Sensiivity to changes in assumplions

Marmpermnent beleves thal alter cormsidering the vaious stenanos, ro measanably possible thangs in any ol the above key ssumplions would
cause the far value of the intangibie o matanally vary from &s eaissing Tair value delermined.

LOMG-TERM INYESTMEHT 024 023
MHote s RUPERE .
Pakiglan irvasiment bond H 4 T 574

LONG-TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits - unsecured - considered good

- Hent 12,681 944 TATE AT
- Trads= 15,075 425 15,875,435
= CHherg 3963 524 5,648 AE2
31,800 003 28,800,084
Prapaymaents
- Solbware devalpomeni fos 37,380,243 2,406,077
- Membemehno les -
TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS
Urieleazad ¢ releasad - nel of amorEation BE&3 B4, 711 432,619,756
In produciion
y 481,447,
Less: Curmasnl partion (81,538, 265) (05 B0 R
e SEBEERAA  SELEITEIE

DEFERRED TAN ASSET
Taxable temparany differmbces arsing in reapect of:

Urvealzed gain on shor lem investments - nel 13,5608, T06) *
LUrrealsed axchanos gein - ral - |2 H86.908)
13,5686, 708) | 1
Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
Provisimns 130,714,380 128,838, 706
Leasa kabiitas - nel 10,551,968 7376, 546
Accaleraled 1oy dedrasahon and aroriaation 4,940, 337 1972220
Uirwealgad hoes onghorl-term invesiments - nal - 414,837
Lirenizen anchniancs ss - net 933,232 =
Unabsorbed ossas 1?,12'1,51? 16907, 52%
173,078,530 155504, 234
=1 A00 0 ____SREO7I26
TRADE DEBTS — unsecured
Considenad good 8 372,832 500 3 100,542 350
Considen=d doubihl n2 a1 124 47 592 291
6,356,273 521 3148 134 541
Less: Aldowance for ECL 101 (B2, 41 121} (47,5093 291)

10.3 — ot P ERGSO0 S VSAE 550
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11 Allswancs for axpacied credsl loas
Oiperers balamos &7, 532,731 194,234 244
Addition af subslidiany . 3,488 488
Wit oif 28 BET B42 {28, 936,065)
Charge for the year 26 16, 054, 354 6,215,308
Rewvarsal of provison - (52 746,517
Impact of fraesktion 18,346,654 5,337,737
Balarcs ag al the and al [ha yaar B2.481,.121 47,592, 291
102 Paricilars of recenabbe rom doreign jursdclions:
Jurisdietian
Liritad Arab Emiratas 437, 245,214 IE0ET 258
Liritad Kincdom 264,140,045 197 AB0 GES
Liritad States of Amenca 95 408 (A3 &4, 160 BES
N 71T R RR
10.2.4 These recervables are covered under condraechual terms and thenz are no defaulting parbies as of Juna 20, 20024 and Juns 30, 2023
103 The aging of irade debis a1 thea atatament of Trancial posilion date was:
Past dus 39-60 Past due 6180 Past dus mare
Mot past dise Past due 1:30 days days kg than 00 days
ad Rupess
2024
Gincess rece ymabhe 4,048 GRERSET G47. 988,108 306,250,596 232,954 403 120,483, 656
Dedadt ics= rate iy b 10T 4.42% TI.48% 1E.00%
2023
Gioss recey ks 2,505 754 503% 284, TS5 AM 147 &38,419 137,801,137 87,934 9t
Delaull loas rals DoAE% 2.57% 162% 12.62% 17.83%
24 2023
Hote seees RUP@EE --omeee
11 SHORT-TERM INWESTMENTS
A falr value throuwgh profit or loss
U Microfinance Bank Limited
2023 B,40] TFCz having face value af Rg.2 496 asch (Fer Value: 1.0087T) - 21,148 158
Mulual Funds
Listed securities
Javadan Corparation Limited
Market value: 5000000 shares at Re. 35.06/share (2023; W) 175,300,000 -
Mulual Funds
AED Dpporiuniby Fund
653,780 (2023 542,247 unilz havng NaY of Be 110.31419 (2023: B=. 88.84) per unil 61,088 579 48,170,891
AED lslamic eomsse Fund
196,510,473 (2023: 99,961} unils hawving MAV of Rs, 51,6940 {2023; Rs. 508434 per uni 6,004 918 6,087 156
ARD Goldan Arew Slock Furd
3,980 880 (2023: 3 200,830) units hawing MNAY of Rs. 18,9778 (2023 Rs. 122031 2) per unit TE 4R 4T2 46 931 TE0
MEP Money Markal Fund
3621 414 (2023, 3872 935 unils hawng MaN of Rs, 10,0082 (2023 Rs. 5.9797) por unil 35243012 20, 668 547
UBL Liquidity Phiz Fund
ZT0E00,86 (H02%; 228.544) unds having N&aW of s 100 358 (2023 Bs, 101,1864) per wnit 27437 568 23,125 660
Fayzal Islarmic Cash Fund
1,457,817, 1186 unils hawving NAV of Rs. 1001658 per unit 150,000,000 -
Aaiah Islamic Capfal Preservaticn Plan 4 Class &
2023 B wmits hawing MAY of R, 1005236 - B4l
Altplah GHP Money Market Fund
2068 418 63 unita (2023 1,320,747 having MaY of Rs. 86 2424 (2023 Rs. #8.6615) par unh 204,703,774 130,306, 874
MCE Pakistan Cash Management Fund
3454 122.TH units (2023 2)086,618) havng NAW of Rs. 500467 (2023 Rs. 50038) par uni 174,826,656 105,139,135
Faysal Fimancial Sector Opportundy Fund
D190.43 unts having WAY of Re. 103.6 par und 851,026 -

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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Fayaal Halal ferdani Fund

TES2.FT umits having NAY of Rs. 101 4217 per unil Ta5 5EE
HEL Cash Furgd

1,180,764, 73 Lits (2023: 1,004, 2020 having My of Fe, 1052107 (2023 102, 164H8) pev unll 121 805628
AL Cash Fund

2,747 352 45 umits (2023 2.316,350) haviag May of Re. 1002305 (2023 R 102257 per unil 125 66T
Ankan Hagh ¥alld Behame

TA325 units (R023) 512, 963) Faving MAY al Rz 10428 (20273 103 872 ) par unil T4 a0

114  These carry interest ranpng from 20,32% 1o 21 52% (2023 18,73% o 2001529 per annum

02,504 118

2360 247

53,284 537

1,063 44 003 45201

2024 2023
12 ADVANCES Mete Rupees -
= Unsecurad
Interest fres advancas o
- Producars 121 &12.2 531,566,521 86, 0% 07
= Bupplisrs 332437 301 B0,142 517
884003827 156,755 596
= Secuned
Inberas) ree advancas io;
- Employees 16,209, 345 50,723 854
e SR, e L0450,
121 This mcludes asvance amaunding to Mil (2023: Rs, 29,1087 14] paid 10 M.D Productions (Prvate) Limited,
122  The agmg of edvances o MO Produstions [Frivabe) Limitad, a related party 18 as Tobowa:
Ja24 {1
[REENUREE - [T, 7T S —
Hestninr past dus nor impained 70,108,714
Pasl cus bl nol irgaiced
- 07 13 30 cays .
=31 o 6 canyx s
- e EO days - =
. 25,108,714
2024 2023
Hote Rupeeas
13 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS
Deposits - unsecuned
- Rent 1,364,500 LT
= Qther - 1,373 6349
1,364,500 1,730,814
Prepayments
- Irvsurance 32,210,107 22 B62 865
- Rent B.GOT.874 18,709 604
- Software developmant fee 8,751,367 -
- Oither 47,526,678 43,058 753
98,106,026 85832327
0,470,526 87 363,141
14  OTHER RECEIVAEBLES
Sales tax receivable 141 160,539,158 129,235, B5T
Income f mark-up accrued - 3,863,035

CHhers

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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141

15

151

16

161
16,2

17

17.1

As per rule 3(5) of Sindh Sakes Tax Special Procedure (withholding} Rule, 2014, registered persons as recipient of
adverisement senices shall withheld whole of sales tax applicabde on the person providing advertisement sendces.
Accordingly, the Holding company s unabie to adjust #s inpul Bx deducted on purchases of taxable goods and
services as 100% of the oulput tax on the Holding Company's 1axatie senices are being withhesd by the reciplent of
these services. However, Holding Company is in comespondence with the relevant authoribes through ifs legal
advisor 1o resolve e malber

2024 2023
Hala Rupees
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash In hand 4,622 T3 301,193
Cash at banks
- in current accounis 1,445 218,021 | 1,522 252 443
- in deposit accounis 151 863,557,085 579,353,155

—2,308,775,106 _2,101,605,558
2,313,387 809 7 107,886,751

These carmy profit at the rales ranging from 18.5% to 20.5% per annum (2023: 5.5% to 12.B5%) per annum,

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2024 2023 024 2023
{Mumber of sharas) wrvvereees RUPEEE  weeermes
Ordinary shares of Re. 1/~ each
500,000,000 H00.000,300 Fully paid in cash 500,000,000 500,000,000
634,000,000 634,000,000 |ssued as fully pald bonus shares 634,000,000 534,000,000

1,134, 000,000 1|13=!|EIDDIDDU 1,134,000,000 1|134.UEIDIIJ'DU

Wotirg rights, bosrd selecton, aght of first refusal and block voting are In propartion to the sharehokding,
Bonus shares isswed to directors of the Hodding Company are Mil shares (202 3; 95,8657 ,802).

2024 2023

Hote —eeeee— Rupees
LEASE LIABILITIES
Cipening halancs 70,890 475 22,048 467
Additians during the yaar 97,526,882 1,375,281
Changes due to modification - 6,262, 102)
Changes due to reaasessment 15,318,366 -
Mark up on leasea abilities 15,873,501 10,805 7TRZ
Leass rentals paid (332359338  (24,258.933]
Closing balance 166,362,292 T0,508 475
Currenl poriion of lease Babililies (16,8E8.B75) (15664 835
Mon - current porlion of lease liabilites 145, 452417 55,234,506

Includes k=ase finance facllity enterad (nfo by the Holding Company with commercial banks for vehicles amounting to
Fls. 50,000,000 (2023 Rs. 115,000, 000) owl of which Rs.49.384 158 (2023 Rs. 108,752, 920) remains unulilized at year
and. Lease rentals are payakde in monthly instalkments and had commencad from Septamber 2022,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

18 LONG-TERM FINANCING Hote wmmmees RUPRES ==sssseee=
Islamic banks - secured
Deminshing Musharaka i8.1 3,250,000 03,750,000

1 250,000 03,750,000
Less: current maturity (314,250, 000) (62 G00,000}
= 31250000

Conventional bank - unsecured
Bounge hack loan 18.2 5,296,746 31.543.651
5,296, 746 31,543,851
Less: current maturity {3,808,458) (4,028,523
1,488,288 27.515.528
1, 488 284 68 TG5. 528

18.1 Represents Diminishing Musharaka facility carmang profit at the rate of § monthe KIBOR phes 1% per annum. The financing
i reparyable in B equal quarberdy instalments commencing afler a grace period of 12 manths Trom the date of dEbursamienl
ia. Dessmber 2021 Financing ts sacurad by way of Equitable Morigage over registered office, first hypothecaton charge
owar plant, machinary & aguipment, first pan passu charge over receivablas of the Holding company and firsl pan passu
charnga by way of comatructive mortgage charge over lalamabad office.

18.2 Represenls foreign ceriency loan amounting 1o E100,000 obfained by the Group fram Barclays Bank UK PLC a1 The
rate of 2.5% per annum. The loan is repayable in &) egual installments commencing after a grace period of 13 months
fram the date of disburserment. Durning the first 12 months, the UK govemment will pay mntesast due on this loan as
Business Interruption payment. The loan & supporied by the Bounce Bank Loan Scheme (BBLS) managed by the
Erislish Business Bank on behall of the Secretary of Stale for Bussess Energy amd Industrial Sirstegy,

2024 2023
Note —eeeeee RUPBAS ~meeeeeeee

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Credilors 18.1 T30,068.473 05 554 269
Accrused lahilits 514,468,737 452,580,331
Withhalding tax pavable 44,714,830 19,144 897
Others 177,146,317 342,248 276

‘IEIEEEEEEEEE 1.1'9_2‘64?.&?3

18.1  Includs ameunt payable to fofllowing related parties:

M.D Productions (Frivate) Limited 36,021 464 -
fomina and Duraid Foundation 64.203.087 55,079,481
104,224 561 55,070,481

20 CONTINGENCIES AMD COMMITMENTS

201 Contingencles

20.1.1 For tax related matiers, refer note 2% o these consolidated financial statemenls.

20.2 Coammitments

20.2.1 Purchase of telavision programs cormmitments with M.D Productions (Privata) Limited - a related party as al Jums 30,
2024 amounted to Re. 308,368,667 (June 30 2023: Ra. 258 562 000). Commitment for purchass of telenision programs
with otiver than relaied parties as &l June 30, 2024 amounted 1o Ra 160, 108,800 {June 30, 2023 Rs. 41 215,500}

2024 2023
sesmszaaas RUPERE =sssssseas

20.2.2 Commitment for broadcasting contract 1421470350 -

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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21

211

1.2

2.1

222

REVEMUE = nai

Advertisement revenus
Produciion revanue

Cgital revenuss

Subscnpbon ravenue

Markating Fas (Commaskon) - net
Fiém distribution rewven e

Sale of magazines

Revars is nat off the follawing items:

Sales 1ax
Trade and volums discount

Represents revenue from the fallowing gecgraphical regicons
Asis

Maddle Easl

Umatad Hepgdom

Armiaric

COST OF PRODUCTION

Coest ol oulsourced programs
Cost of in-houss programs
Ciat of invantory consumed
Salanes and benefils
Tachracal advisory fes
Depraciatian

Travelng and conveyance
Liilithes

Renl, rales and Laxies
Insurance

Repair and maintenance
Fee and subscription
Cammunicalion

Security charges
Amortisation

Congutlandy

Printing and slalioneny

Im production television programs - ogsening
In production television programs - closing

Redeased ¢ unrebased program:s - opening
Redeased § unrelessed programs - closing

2024 2023
MNole s UEES —r—
7406 520,223 5404 575,900
2,304 846,326 221,648 86
16T 425,196 B.643,000
2,220,654, 322 1,852 244 525
101,910,308 -
56,058,272 7437 607
T4T7 253 1,514,018
21&M2 12,348 461,950 7.007 663 940
1,055.594.813 T22.681 112
666,561,086 508 870 841
1,722 155,609 1,321,551 953
7,891 460,211 5,200,572 087
1,91592% 952 502 BoG.047
274,155 252 251,810,181
2, 266,862,535 1,722 6B4.715
1Z 1 T 56¥ BE63 940
3,593 516, 5684 2087¥ 370,509
432 BET 055 313,767 5859
1,001,462 2,000,487
221 1,320, 998 B29 1,079,682 252
222 54,751,500 54 751 500
438452 TO.571,358 Y. 744 375
242 582 B26 138,773,083
20,870,205 14,869 487
BTG, 547 305,538
33,435,168 27,386,601
33,670,948 26,373,693
7,080,344 4,814 981
G4 BEGATT 21,781 486
T26,000 438,350
5.1 1,915,852 6,350,640
426,803 1,188,586
3,164 595 51272688
5 BB 226 596 3 842 TS6 455
50,BZT. 650 35 460,250
(66,655,705) (G082 GBSO
5,867,108 B51 3827 385 055
432 619,726 380,220 088
(6B3,641,711) (432 619,726)
5616,176,866 3,784 805 321

Includes Rs. 33400473 (2023 Rs. 20,765,962} In respect of stall retirerment benelils

Represents fee paid o a Director for fechnical advisory services rendered in terms of the technical advisory

agreement duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Group.
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2024 2023
Mole s---—--- Rupees
23 DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Adverlisemant and promolion 753,395,925 180,958,104
Salaries and bensfits 231 415,979,504 180,245,803
Traveling and conveyance 30,666 581 28 130 827
Fent, rates and taxes 2,126,750 L3z za7
Lizilities 3,079,048 2,580,633
Depreciabion 4315452 11,024,675 B,086 BT
Communication 837,193 74,255
Insurance 4,509,124 3588542
Repair and mainlenancs 1,315,656 2,461 343
Feaes and subscription 950,040 1,120,873
Commisslon expenss 16,158,493 &1,619,207
Printing and stationery 817,960 1,546, 725
1.240 860 949 482 074, 749
231  This includes Ra. 8 527 681 (2023 Re 7 860, 125) in respact of staff ratiremeant benefits.
2024 2023
Mote ---—-- Rupees
24  ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salares and benefils 24.1 616,014,756 325, B850 665
Cepreciation 4318452 6, 592, 508 50,700,445
Amortisatan 54 6.145.279 5 E24 8578
Repair and mainienanos 68,782,336 57 443,503
Communication 5.850.853 7,361,876
Traveling and conveyance 101,287,245 74,825,501
Fee and subscription 18,376,039 20,581,887
Linilities T2,0876.993 52 118,188
Legal and professonal charges 50,TE7 B33 58 051,941
Printing, stationery and periodicals 9,534 363 11,181,135
Rent, rates and tawes 40,152,437 25,122,148
InsUranoe 12,819.710 8,838 454
Audifors’ remunerafion 282 16,749 116 B, 356,708
Security charges 12,706,811 0,254,141
Donatian 24368244 77,548 087 108, 230, 252
1,206 376 1.194 481,812
241  Includes Ra. 9,186,396 (2023: Re. 7,030,043} in respect of staff retirement benefits.
2024 2023
Mote sseees Rupees
24.2  Auditors’ remuneration
Audit Tee for unconsolidated financial statements 10,059,073 4,641,570
Audii fee for consolidated financial statements 853,875 801,500
Fes for half yearly review 698,625 656,100
Tax and other assurance senvices 3,963,940 2,200,000
Dut of pockel sxpenses and Sindh sales tax on services 1,173,603 E5T, 136
16,749,116 B 856 TOR
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243

25

27

Diomation includes the following denees exceeds whom donations 10% of the Group's tolal donations o Bg 1 milllon;

2024 2023
[— Hu“" [
S5 Gargen 1,100,000 -
Moming and Dwraid Foundadion 75,223,097 105,650,202
76,323,007 105, 855, 202

Recipients of donations do not include any dones in which any direcior or his spouse had any interest except for
danation pald o Mamina and Durald Foundation, Following directors of the Group are also rusiees of the said trush:

= MF, Dusraid Clureshi
- Ms. Sultana Siddioui

2024 2023
Note s RUPEES -emeeees
OTHER INCOME
Income { {loss] from financial assets - nat
Profit on deposit accounts 141 83,203,676 67328 B51
Exchange gain - net - 176,577,118
Dividend income 93,399,999 5B &31,53%4
Interest | mark-up income 46 294,807 T804 052
Armprtisation of govamment grant - 4TE 147
Unreallsed galn § {kass) on revaluation of investments 31,733,646 {7.320,853)
Gain on redemplian [ sale of iInvestments 1,559,986 27543 052
258,196,114 331,841,921
Imcome from nan flinancial asaets
Gain on dispossl of operating fxed assels - nel 4.4 3,194,634 236, 0aT
Reversal of provision for impairment against in subsidary - 1,776,832
Reversal of expected credit loss - i, an 5140
Liabilites no longer payable - writben off 54,741,167 Q8 671,515
Sale of content and festival revenue 38 404, 287 25 200 T8
Sundry Income 26,649, 760 -
122 989,852 156,973 T2
379,185,966 456,815,703
OTHER EXPENSES { CHARGES
Allowance Tor expecled cradil loss 10.4 16,034,334 -
Exchange loss - net 94,814 4689 =
Trade debts - written off 10.1 567,842 -
111,416,637 =
FIMANCE COSTS
Mark-up on bong-term finanzing 16,379,996 24 508,149
Mark-up on ahort-termn Domewings - QB 402
Mark-up on bease liabilites i 15,873,501 10,996,762
Bank charges 3992171 1,535,701
36,245 668 47 136,014

LEVIES - FINAL TAX

This represants final taxes paid under section 5 {tax on dividend) and 1544 (esport of services) of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, epresanting levies in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 /145 37 (also ses nofe 5.8.3)

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
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29.1

29.3

29.4

3o

a0.1

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

2024 2023
{Restated)
Mote smmamasese  [RANEIGE sssssssane
INCOME TAX
Current 360,723 408 195 A0a 485
Dimferred (15,684 535) £, 353,085
P (10,686, 158) 3,263,370
3'.!-l|33ﬂ.'.l"|d- 253 424 IB-1-IZI
Felationship betweesn accounting profit and tax expense
Profit baefore income tax and bedes _EM 2|214|-EH-1 IEEE
Tax at the applicabde rals BEE 160,030 642 189, 766
Tax sffects of
Tax at reduced rals {1,249,335) 14.563.977)
Income sulact o final tax regimsa {615,461 B2 E) (445,631 872}
Effect of levias (54,105 434) (37,200,204}
Provwision Tor susser b a5 AEE TTT 35 747 467
Prigr wear tax {reversal) | charge (12,470,454} 3,652 814
Others (45,210 B58) 35 411 046
F54, 330,714 239 424 Bi0
Efteciive % 10% 1.2%

The retum of meome for the las vesr 2023 has been flled Ly i Hnldlr-;; Company wisich s deamed 10 ba an
assagament undear the provigions of seclion 120 of the Income 1ax Ordinance, 204017

Diuring the year F017, Deputy Commissioner Intgnd Revenue E5uad & show cause notice to the Holding Company, tor
the lax yasr 2014, showing his Inbention o disaliow the deduction caimsd on account of agency commigsion on alleged
non-gdeduclion ol 1@ on such agency commission. The Hosging Company flled a suit before the Hon'ble High Court of
Simdh challenging the above showcausa notice

Basad on a8 recent judgemant of the Hon'ble Suprems Court of Pakistan, suits filed by taxpayers ara nof fo ba
maintainad unless 50% of the lax dus iz deposited Dy the petilioners. In compliance 0 the abowe ordar, the Hokding
Company has geposited an amount of Rs, 24,385,042 it the Govermment freasuny, The decigion in nespact of the Sult
filad by the Holding Company (s still panding, The managemant, based on the legal advica, s confidant that the ulbmate
autcome will ba in fevor af the Holding Cormpany and socordingdy, no prosdalon has baen mads in this respect In thass
consolidated financial statemeants,

During e year ended 30 June 2022, the Cormmissionss Infand Revenue (ACIR) issued show-cause nolice daled 15
May 2022 whersby ha had raised caain queres relatng o tax year 20917, In response, the Hobding Company ed
explanation along-wilth documentary evidence. The Commissioner Inland Revenue (CHR) being dissatisfied with e
respanse of the Halding Company, issued an arder under Section 122(1) of the Ordinancs whereby lax demand of Rs.
F71,6844 857 has been raised. While the Holding Company's appeal was pending before the Commissioner Inland
Rewanue (Appeals) for Tax Year 2017 bul Ihe depariment was seeking 1o ecover the ouistanding tax. Therelones the
Holding Cormpany filed a petilion before the Honorable High Courl of Sindh Tor issuance of & slay order. Subseguent to
the year end, on 7 July 3022, the Holding Company received a stay onder on the malter and the cass is pending balons
the Commissionser nland Fevenus (Appeals). The management, based on fhe legal advice, s confident ihat the
ulfimate catoome will Be in favor of the Holding Compasny and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect
in wese consobidalbed financial statemeants.

During the year ended 50 June 2007, the Tower Sports (Private] Limited received a show cause notice from additional
Commissionar in Land Revenue under Seclion 122{5A) of the Income Tax Ordinanoe, 2001 in respect of o pear 2014
creating a dermand of Rs. 330,855,089 The Tower Sports {Private ) Lirmifed filed an appeal befores the Appellade Tribonal
Inland Rewenua which is pending for hoaring. Based on advice from its tax advisor, the mansgemant of the Company
axpects a favouratds culcome, hencs no provision in thes respect is made in the Enancisl slatements.

2024 2023
EARMNINGS PER SHARE = basic and diluted memmmemnee NG smm—e————
Profit stributable 1o the owners of the Holding Company 2850143182 __1,§52,769.663
Weighted average number of ordinary shams
oulstanding during the year 1,134 000,000 1.7 3 0080, 00N
Eamings per share (Rupes) 2,60 LIz

There is no dilutive =fact on the basic samings per share of e Holding Company.
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k]|

CASH GEMERATED FROM OPFERATIONS

Pyl braliers Wetoered Lok, gl lowing

Bdjestments for
Diaprecialion
Amortisaton

Provaian lor stat earement berefis

Finanoa cosis
Exchange Inss ! [gain) - net
Praolii an deposi acoounts

Gain on Mspasal o aperasng fxed asmais

Diidand Incoma
Aticaton ol §ovameant Gran

Gain on redemplicn ¢ sale of invesiments
Wbroresgsd i Jigasdni i ) icmad G penialusston of aresglivents

Favarsal ol mmparment m subskdany

Labilbes no longer pavable - wnlien of

Changa ¢ {raversalp of provision Tor EGL - nal

{Increase) ! decrease in current assets

Iweriianas

Canrant portion of trkvEian program coats

Traka dabis
Agharng

Traks doposds ardl shorl-Senm prapaenants

Oiber recwivables

Increase | |decreasa) in current Babilities

Trade and cther payables
Corirasct liabd ity

REMUNERATIDN OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, HRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2034 2023
Hals e RUpees e
3,398 482863 2,714,451 050
FER L) 168,185,581 || 177,651 681
2 824 B, 064,131 12,175,518
12812910 48,120,543
b2 36,245,658 47,136 014
SERIS 94 314 451 FEVESTT. 18]
5 153-.2!3.&7‘5[- 15?.123.-551]
5 {3,154, 6LE)} (935 007
o {03,399.990)||  {58.501.534)
- [4TH 147
) (1,550 886)|| (2T M300
2 {39,733, 606 7,30, B53
z3 . 1,776,832)
) (84,740,067} | J0AET151E)
b & 26 'IM {00 2l 1R
E8, 324 973 42T a8 106
7.7 083} [28,326)
4,391 483 4,517 361
{2,153, 17,196)( | (235347 114
(882,342,711} | {901, 5003,054)
(12,907 385)||  [33484,209)
{100,574.382)| | (B.408 063
2,040 440 273} (a70,401 a0
328,452.051 11B, 153.5553
513,927 285 B0, 648 260
1,3 1|5-1.: G055 675

The aggnegate srmounls changed in S conaalidated fnancial slalamenta for rermunaration, Paduding &l bewlis o the ciiel soecitives. dinsctonrs and

supculives see e (ol ke,

224 anr
Chind Exmouinm Mon-Exscubye Execustrems Chied Exmrurve Mon-Ersculive Exsculives

Exiieilivit Dir e o Dreaciora Ewmdnziitivi DNF et TR HIL b
Maapstal remurernalsy 166,241,712 - . 315,237,579 151,104,853 ] . 307,054, 054
Tavhnicw pchimory fea - 54,751,500 - - - B, PR, 50 - -
Fea L] = 5,000,030 ' 3, 800, B0
Bomus 203 311 204 mz2301 ka6 - 59,715,280 Tl 8514 i, e, 54 - -
Rafrement beralis ] . . 2, TITE1T . . 18,B5E Gda
Houmse reni 1K 244 465 3 + 137,500,144 17155042 + - e, 15, 200
LHiGos 121 381 = [ 28,017 368 1,807,683 ZZ03E 602
Car allorwance 0,767 06 + 1,835,347 A0 TET, 16 &, 500 (M
Fusd and oonseyanig 2975 351 E?'I]ﬁl.l-ﬂ 2,075,351 2.7 411 1478, HT 1':l1

JMH “E EIEEIEH !I?ﬂ E IIEEIH M?? 1ﬂ ﬁ ?Izﬁ § ﬁ:'g [T N ﬁ?:uiﬁ
Mumba

Tha chial asecutivrs, dirciors and cerain esacitives ane also prosided with e e ol Groun mainhainad s inaccencdlance with tha Oroop's policy
anel reimburssmman of expanans reabed B business rael

TRAMSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Folated padips ol te Group compriss sssoceied ondsrtaking, retliremanl banehis rd aed key mansgement persanngl, Destads of ansaclors with
related partes durg the waar, other than those which have been dsclosed elsswhom in these consolfabsd fnandal sialements are as folows:

Relationship
Axzpcixies

Othems

Hature of ransactions

Purchases al iMevision program rigns
Payriwe] inade during the pear

Caniributian 1o ke prosiden] Tund

FLFES 2023
e £ ]
1,831,002, 134 1,573 300,800
1006937 566 1,893,714, 343
51,184,000 A4, 565,150

Al transactions with related partes an= eniered imla at agreesd |erms duly approwed by the Board of Directors of the Group. The outslanding rece vable
and payabie balances of the relaled parties are cisclosed in their respectye nobes to thess cansalidaled financial staternents.
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334 Following ere the related pedias with whom the Holding Company had entered into transactions or have arangement |
agresmernt In place:

5.Mo. Company Name Basis of association Aggregate % of
shareholding
1 MO Productions (Private) Limited Associated company (33.1.1) =
2 hiaming & Duraid Films [Private) Limiled Associated company (33.1.1) -
i Meamina and Durssd Foundation Associabed company (33.1,1}) -
4 HLIM Matwork Limited - Employsss’ Provedend Fund Fetirernent Fund -
5 Ms. Sultana Siddiqui Dhirechor 0.73%
] M. Blazhar ol Hag Siddigu Dlirgcler -
7 ffr. Duraid Qurashi Director A5 TR
i . Shamasd Qureshi Diractor B 8%
" hirs, Mahiab Akbar Rashdi Direchor -
10 Lt 3en (R) Asif Yasin Malik Direclor -
11 ftr. Muhammad Ayub Younus Adhd Oireclor -
12 M. Sehadl Ansar Dirachor -
13 hta. Khush bakht Shujaat Direclor =

33.1.1 These antities are associated companies | undartakings of the Group in accordance with the requiremeant of Companies
Ak, BT,

332  Mone of the key managemen! personnel kad any amangemenls wih the Groug other han e armgboyrisent conirael,

333 Investments out of provident fund have bean made in accordance wih the provigions of Section 218 of the Act and the
reguiationg formutated for this purpose.

a4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

341 Financial assels as per eonsolidated stalement of linancial pesition

2024 2023
Hote Rupees
Finangial assets al amortised cost
Secutily deposils T 31,800,503 28 800 084
- Trade debis 10 5,272 832,500 3,100,542 550
- Trade deposis 14 1,364,500 1,730,814
Qiher reciivables i4 74,490, 701 a1,034 081
- Long-lesm investmeants B . 40 527 574
Cash and bank balances 15 2,313,397, 600 2.101,996.701
7803 886,413 A.373.631.604
Fimancial assets ai fair value throuwgh profit or loss
- Short-term imvesimanis 11 1,062 444 OG0B SED 143,201

HUM NETWORK LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

323

as.1

5.2

Financial liabilitins as per consolidated statemaent of financial position

2024 2023
MHole RUpBas ----——

Firancisl llahiltlaa at amortlasd cost

Lease liahilities 17 166,382 2032 0,899.475

Lang-tern financing 18 36,546,746 125293851

Trade and other payables 19 1,421,683, 53T 1.475,502,576

Accrued mark-ugp 1,923,660 2033411

Unslalmesd dividend 6,066,606 6,153.603
- Unpaid dividend TAD 4T 2 1,374,738

1,633,343.503 1. 378,257 64

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activibes expose (1o a vansly of financial rekg e, maket fsk meluding currency nak, intensal rale risk and
price risk), cradit risk and Bguidily risk, The Group's overall sk managermen] progrsmeme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial marksds and sasks to minimise polential adverse effecte on the Group's fimancial performance,

The Grodp's seniaf management oyerseas the managament of these rsks, The Group's seniof management povides
palicies for owerall nsk managemant, as well as policies covanng specific areas swch as foreign exchange msk, intersst
rake risk and credd risk, use of finencial derivatives, financial instruments and westment of excess liquedily. it s the
Group's policy thal no trading |0 dervalives Tor speculative purposes shall be underlaken, The Board of Direclors review
and agree poicies for managing sach of these risks which ame summanzed bedow

Market risk

hiarket fisk s the risk that fair vabee of fulure cash flows wil flucteate because of changes i market prices. Markes prices
comprise three ltes of Ask: intberest rabe sk, curmency isk and equily price nsk, sdach as equily risk

Interest rate risk

tnterest rate risk is the risk that the falr value or futune cash fiows of financial iInstruments will fluctuale because of changes
in the rarked inlenes) mbes. The Group's eres] maite risk arises from finance lease obligalions, shorl-derm borowings and
bank balancas, The Group manages these nsks throwgh risk managament strategees.

Sangitivite analvsis:

The following figures demonstrate the sansilivity 1o 8 reasonably possible change in intarest rate, with all athar variables
held comstant, of the Group's prafit before taxation:

Increase |
decreass in EE:::::::&I
basis points
Rupeess
June 30, 2024 +100 8,595 150
S L] 1&5!5.150'}
June 30, 2023 +100 3,828 500
-100 — (3,820,500}
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3a.3

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

Currency risk

F-EII"EIQ:‘I Currency risk g the rigk that the value of financial azsats or fnancial abilieg will lucteals SGue 1o a change ir
r-::relgn e:-::;hange rales. N arises malnlg,r where receivables and pE]‘EhIE& exist due o lransadlions in an'eign Curmancies,
The Group's exposare 1o foreign curency risk 5 as Toliows:

224 - 2023
Us Dollar GEP AED US Dallar GEBEP AED
Trade deabis 348,370 To0,7I1 5,730,645 203 635 G4 BOG 4623515
Deposlts and prepayments - TE,385 4124 760 1,250 105, 564 232 918
Trade and cthar payables (10,496) (105, 850) {862, 576) (196, 040) (88.545) (20, 149)

The foflowsng significant exchange rates have been applied at the reporing datea:
—rrreeeees RUPEESE eeeeeeees s RUPBEEE e

Closing exchange rates 27E.60 351.85 7630 285 T4 Sh3.52 ]

Sensitivity analysis:

The following fabse demonstrabes the sensfivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar and GBP exchange
raie, with all cther varabies held constant, of the Group’s profit before faxation;

Change in Effect an Chancsin Effect on Change in Effect an
US dallar  profit before GBP ragta (%) profit before  AED rate  profit before
rate %) tax tax %) tax
== Rupeas - == Rupres - == Rupras -

30 June 2024 +10 10 +i0
-10 =10 =10

30 Jure 2023 +11 g%% %E: 10 %EEE; I?% +10 Eiig%é%
-10 -1d -1

Equily price risk

The Group's nvestments are susceplible lo markel peice sk arising fram uRcedainties about fubure values of
investment securifies. The Group manages the eguity price sk through diversibcation and placing limits on individual
and lodal mvestiments, Reports on dhe investiment porifolio are submitied 1o the Group's senios manageméent an a
regular basls,

Ag ool the slatement of financial pogilicn date, (he expogione o investments al lair value through pralil oF loss was Bs.
1062444 0D0E (2023 Rs. 58D 1435291 )

Cradit risk

Cradi risk is the sk which anses with the possibility that one party to a financial instrumend will Tadl to discharge is
obiigation and cawse he olher pary 1o ingur a fmancial loss. Concenlration of cradil risk arese when a number of
counierparties are engaged in similar business aclivibies or have similar economic features that would cause their
ability o mesat contraciual obligations 1o be similarly affected by changes in economic, polifical or olher conditions,
Concenirations of credit rsk indicale the relative sensithvily of the Group's performance 1o develepments affecting a
particular industry,

The Growp is manly exposed o credil sk on fade debds and bank balances, The Group seeks o minimize the credit
risk expogune throwgh having exposures anly o cusiomers considersed credit worthy and oblaming securites whers
applicable.

Management of credit risk

The Group's policy 5 1o enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors
and cther intermal guidelines.

Credi risk is managed and contralled by the management of e Growp in the Tollowing mannar

= Gredil rating and § or credil worthiness of the counlerparty is takan into account along wilh the Tinancial background
%0 &% o minimize the sk of default,

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreemants causing a koss o the Group 5 milgated by a panodic
review of thair credit ratings. financial stalemants, credit worthiness and market information on a regular basis

= Cash is held with reputable banks only
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35.6

38.6.1

ol gha consalidaiad stalemant ol indncis posilion disds, the Group s esposed 1o credit sk an the allowing assels:

2024 2023

Hote - Ruptes —
- Securily deposts ¥ 51,500,900 26,530,084
- Trade dabis 10 §.2TE BI2 500 3400542 350
- Long-tenm investmants i s 40,027 574
. Enart-tarm Irvesimenis 11 1.06F 444 D08 HE9,143,291
: Trade deposits 13 1,364 500 1,730,814
. Ciiher receivables 14 T4.430,701 81,034 081
- Bank Galancas 15 2,.308,775,106 210,605,558

el 3LIOTTI8, 062 00,000

Quality of financial asseis
The oedi guality of finendal asseis can be assessed by reference o edemal credit mlings or 1o histodcal infsrmation: about

countarparty detault rabas

024 2023
Haote Ripaag —--—--
Bank balances
LT . ATR B3 AT
Sk - AT AT ET
LY 18 850,505 919,057 535
& - 458,450,958
a1+ 2,206 813,851 -
] B3, 110,230 =
a1 4320 '
15 2, M08 TTE 106 2101 805,
Short-tenm Investments
Miusieal fends e 158, 548,051 s
A+ 176,200,000 -
afy T a0 53 204 857
el 51,028 5,087,356
BaT 186,578,600 20550, 00S
Aa+(T) S50, 8935 493 J04 AL0 85
A1) 8,001,542 £
Man-ratad . 85,103,299
1,062 444,008 SET.085133
Torm finanos cartficade B . 21,148 1548
" 1,062,444 008 SE0, 143,291

—_—e e e
Liguidity riak
Lsquidity m=k i= e risk that tha Group will not be able to maesl ils fnancal cbligations as they fal due. The Group applies prudent

rsk manegement palices by maintaieng suflicient cash and bank hafances and by keaping commilled cradi ines, The ablke befow
gumimarizas e maturity pealile of s Grodp's nandaal labiliies ag at the folladrg repoing dalas

2034 Less than 3
On demand months 3 to 12 months 1 to & years Todal
Rupaag
Laase liabilties . 4,232 469 12,667 406 149,492 417 166,182, 292
Larng-term Tinancing 35,058 458 1 488,208 36,548, T40
Trande and other payables G01.615,054 318,311,415 410,757,058 . 1,421,083 527
Aoomed mark-up 1 923 &G0 = e . 1,923 650
b0, I8 333,733,004 450483933 130890705 1636538233
023 Lezs than 3
Dipy dbarmand manths 3 o 12 manths 1 0 5 years Tedal
Rupaes
Lease linnilities - LI ) T I 55 354 535 70,880 475
Lang-ipem financing = 16,622,130 20 BSE 53 B8 755,328 125,283,861
Tresda and ofhsar payehlas 452911, 715 235,383,385 45,157 478 - 1, 173.502.578
Aol mak-up 2055411 - - - 203 41t
413-!.‘5“5'1:"5 HEIE'EGIM‘I _"H:IEIBTTIE?E‘ 113, 95409 Bl 1|3?1|T1!:||3‘|3-

Changes in liabilities from financing activities

1 Judhy 30ED Cash flows Hew loases Chers 30 June 2024

Rupaas

Longs-ierm financing 12 3,851 HE 74T 108 u . 36, 5K Tl
Lease liabllities Fienﬁsﬁit a7,526,882 31,191,866 166,382,

1 Judy 20E2 Cash flows Mow loases Oihers a0 June 023

Rupses

Laaga liahililles B9 048 467 {24,258 B33} 1,575,261 4. T35, B0 70688 475
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35.6.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The camying values of al financial as=eis and liahilities miected in the consolidaled financial slatemenis appropriate their
fair valuss.

35.7  Capital risk

The Group finences its operations through equity, bomowings snd management of working capital with & view of
malntaiming an appropriate mo betwean vanows sowrces of finance to minimize rsk. The primary objectve of the Group's
capiky managemend is 1o angure hal it mainlaing beallhy capilal ratios in order o supgon IS business, suslam fulyre
developrmenl, and maximize shaseholders’ value. The Group manilors capital using a delbl equily raio as Rollows:

2024 2023
Maote ssssencses Rupaes

Lease liabilites 17 149,492 417 55,234 56
Long-terrn financimng 18 1.488 288 58,765,526
Trade and other payable 14 1,466,308 357 1,192 647 473
Accrued markup 1,823,660 2,033,411
Currenl portion of bease liabilites 17 16.BE3,8TS 15,664 938
Current portion of kong-tarm financing 18 35,058 458 85528 523
Total debt 1,671 ,EE'I.ﬁEE 1,390,874 210
Share capital 16 1,134,000, ) 1,134,000 000
Feservaes 9 286,223 TE1 6 297 572 560
Total equily 10,420,223, 761 7,431 572560
Tatal dedst and aguity 12,091,474 816 8822446 770
Gearing ratho 13.62% 15.77%

5.8 Fair valee measursment

Fair value is the pnca that would be received to sell an asset or pad to transfer a labdty m an orderly fransaclion
patwesn market particinants at the measurement date.

The camying values of all financial asssls and liabilities reflected in the consolidated financial stalements approximate
ihelr falr valses.

The following table shws assets recognisad alt fawr value, anelysad between those whose fair value is basaed on;
Laevel 1 Cuoted prices o aclive markels for identical assels or liabilties,

Lavel 20 Those invahing inguls alher than guoted prices included in Level 1 hal are observable Tor the assel or iabaly,
gither directly (a5 prices or mdirecily (derived from pricesk and

Laval 3: Thosa whose inputs for the assel or Rability that ara not based on observabla market data {unobsarvahble mpuls),

Acsets measured at fair value

2024 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total
[Rupeaas)
Lomg-{ermn invesimenis - - = - 45 527 5T4
Shori-term imeestments 175 300,000 BET 144 008 - 'I,HILE,-I-H,IIIB 5ED 143 20

During The year, there were no irarsiers Depwesn level 1 and level 2 T value measurements, and no irenskers inlo and
oud of level 3 fair value measurement

358 Financial ingtruments which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the
consolidatad statemant of financial positon data.
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3

36.1

a7

Ah
384

iR

OPFERATING SEGRENTS

Far management purpeses, the Gmup has delermined follresn] reponiable operaling segments an dhe basis of ansas of operations e enteranment

AN Meas

Enloriarmanl segmend & engaged in adverisement, enlerarment and media manootng

Mo gegmend = engaged in brosdessting of fess programs,

Emirria e M s

Crihors Tatal

20 24 203

ks

[Rupsss|

Reahagiiiin
Ml setspn U from
i pshomar

BEAATTTAAL. 6 AR NG HI0 BEBF0ZGET 12004 R0 4 TVR AR BES

lnbEmE A3 JAR AR 80 TG BE a0

Resiil
Eogmoslprafl) oss| 4 093,86E861 1515218558 T AB0 B 05,126,847 FOEEAM  (ITDELITE 43380578 2 967,284,073
Tacation (134, 30, T i) 36524 =40
Unaiacaied ncome /!

|Bupeneng) -
Ardrinisrate spsnsss 11A0E834, 376 (1,904,481 203
[Mrarincome ITE LES,BA6 482 15,703
Caas soprroass frrd 418, E4T)
Fiuan e sl |56, 248 B E) |4 206 T
Praft bew Thi yaar 3304 153 148 1 955057 &th
Ohis Irdormatan
Agmertiaathon T, S0 4Es 5519, 40} 45H0583) 3651, M . 113, 37E] {EDET,131] MZ,175,5t8]
[ h e |1 1|]|!'|'E.'|'E I'ﬁl-l'[ﬂ.ﬂ[ll jﬁ&ﬂ!! |El£‘9§.15§| 1 ETET |'I']|'I_'El]'_5L 1155.15"1' !:1'-".53 .E-E1|
Sapmest s ety B49.B50. 287 B3G5 023 ATR.MIGAZE B3R M1 K6 5AMR2ZEE 1M IRk 12341 T1,478 1 5T G2 22T
Unaiocaied Azssts 3 10,334 438,413 T 206 005,023

Segrwetloniten  ___ SELEINII 1O06 A3 15

"Eﬁ-iﬂ (51 Hﬁ-m HHEH—“ ﬁil.}-m !ﬂgi-E [FRITRT] 13, 76060, B0 1373 Hi
12 AR A b L I - 1T L T - E P P 2A3T.084, 073 1 Bs him s

Feyenies bom thres major ceslomers af e Group durrg the ysar constiluled 55% (2023 57% ) of the okl rervemos

NUSMBER OF EMIFLOYEES

The= dolal number of empioyees and sverage ramber of employsss al ysar end and dureg (he peoar respecieely are as folows:

Tiodal muenber of employoes

AvBrags numbar of empicynas during e yeal
GENERAL

2024 2023
) i
T2 Fdh
TER T

Correspording Soures have besn resrranged and reclassifisd, whereyver nscsmsary. However, olher thap thoss disclossd in thess coraolidated financil

gl lemeris, There wive fo Signilice eclasslicatioss 1o repon,
Figuras havi baan runded ofl 1o e naansst Rupam.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

Thiese corsolidaled financial siabemonls have been authorsed for ssue on Oclober 04, 2004 by tha Boand of Direclors of the Holding Company

DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

MAZHAR-UL-HALQ SIDDIGW
Dirachor
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FORM OF PROXY

T Company Secretary,

HLM NETWORK LIMITED

M Anrusl CENERAL MEETING

Kiarachi

K S . hofdar af CNIC Na, Resident af . beting member of HUM NETWORK

LIMSTED, holdirg ordirary shares 3 per Regebarad Folio | COS Account Mo, hereby  appoird ;

reakdenl o o Taling himd her Brihds
ol flull addrass] who Isfare &S0

member(s) of the Company. 85 my § odr proey b afend, acland wote Tor me us aod an my £ our behall 8l Arnual General Meeting [AGM) of  he
Comgany o be hekd on Thursdsy, 287 deay of Detobar, 2024 8t 2:00 pm &1 Graund Floor BRR Tower, Hasan A% Steeet off 1, Chundriges Rlosd Karachi

and ! or anyy A cumme thensal,

A2 WANERE oy | olF hand ! eaal s day of 2024,
Eignad by in the prasance of
Wi
1 Pame

Sigranum

Mk ress.

I or Passpor bo
2 Haire

Signaluns

Audirees:

CHIC or Paszpor Ma.;
Motz

1 Fhremmm-ﬂ.ﬂﬂnﬂﬁldI:I"l‘.lﬂ:lrrl-ﬂ.MHEWEMMWNHMMMF.HMHMW.HHM 10719, Hassan &8 Etresr, OF. L), Chandnigar
Faanchd
2 Al membess are eoliisd bo siend and vois al e mesiing
A A o b it 50 angend desd veta & thi Maakng may Apeing andthad mambiee s BT peosy 0 send, and vos o of himdhiee,
4. A inslrument of prosy app cabls Tor ihe maalbing B beng provided with tha noios son B mombarns. Furthor oopkes of B insirument ol prosy may bo cblabad o
repisiened office ol he Compary durng nommal offce hours
G. An inirurad of proody and e powsed of alloimesy o offer aulsonty (F o), undoer witich i is Signed o & nol abtly Cenlied oy of saoh power of salaily misl, % o valid, Do
dopasied . e mgsened offos not less Than 48 hours bl e bme of e mesting.
fi Harnl:rrtllﬂmﬂhmlhmmmnmthmm:mum'pmwmmmb:laml:ﬂ'l:-u'mlhhen:mpuru’.mmlnﬂmmrl'I:nlp'l:uyuhdll:-e
rnclered i,
7. Msrrhsns ane s 50 nolify any changes in thee s mmsdibely,
] E&[ﬁ:jﬁmuﬂmmmwvmnMwhwrmMMuMan1 haind Jaranny 26, PN ee] [y e Socun Bea & Eaanga Comm ewon
Lan

For CIOGC Account Holdens i onponain Entites:

In s fiom to above, the fobosing requisemeanis hees to bs met

I} Thed oy Moerm s b wiinissed iy beeg (2 porsons sMoss Nemce. addneesis and CHIC numbors shall be rcnbionsd on @ fom.

By Altaaiad copaii of CRIC OF padcdet f Dhe Banslc | deisrs and T peioy ahall e fum e G i the phee Bdan

11 Tha prooey shall producs his ongnal TG or ciginal passpor al he mes of mesing

1) I sczaeed ol coprule antly. the Board of Dimecios’ meaobon | power of aloimany' wilh soecmisn ggnotune sl be submited {unbeis i hee Besn peovidied asdiar] sl ong with
ety ko jo B o plany.
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